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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that of the Members of Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited will th28  Annual General Mee�ng 
be held on  through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Monday, September 28 , 2020 at 12:30 p.m.
Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 

Ordinary business: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 together with Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon and 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 and the report of Auditors thereon.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Chirag Soni (DIN: 01684683) who re�res by rota�on, and being 
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

Special Business:

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Shah (DIN: 02377709) as an Independent Director of the Company:-

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a 
Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 ('the Act') and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof 
for the �me being in force), Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee, Mr. Dinesh Shah (DIN: 02377709), who holds the office of the Independent 
Director up to September 29, 2020 and being eligible, has submi�ed a declara�on that he meets the 
criteria of Independence under Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and Lis�ng Regula�ons and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng under sec�on 160 of the Act from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on and to hold office for the second term from September 30, 2020 
to September 29, 2025.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers    conferred 
herein, to any commi�ee of Directors, with power to further delegate to any execu�ves / officers of the 
Company to do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things and also to execute such documents, wri�ngs, 
etc., as may be necessary in this regard.”

5. To give omnibus approval for Related Party Transac�ons:- 

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a 
Ordinary Resolu�on:

  pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the “RESOLVED THAT
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Mee�ng of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modifica�on(s) or enactment thereof for the �me being in force), and applicable provisions 
of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015, subject to such approvals, consents, sanc�ons, and permission as may be necessary, consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Company  to carry out the transac�ons with 
the following related par�es and for the maximum amounts as men�oned herein for the year 2020-2021.
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 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the transac�on may be entered into subject to the Compliance of criteria 
men�oned under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 as 
amended from �me to �me and in compliance with all other applicable provisions thereto.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any directors be and is/are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, the 
Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to perform and execute all such deeds, 
ma�ers and things including delegate such authority as may be deemed necessary or expedient to give 
effect to this resolu�on and for the ma�ers connected thereto.”

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

related Party  

Nature of 

transac�on as per 

sec�on 188 of the 

Companies Act, 

2013 

Name of the Director/KMP 

who is related and nature of 

their rela�onship 

Receipts 

(₹ In Crores) 

Payments 

(₹ In Crores) 

1.  

Turnrest 

Resources 

Private Limited 

Services Availed Mr. Manish Kumar Dangi and   

Mr. Mitesh Sanghavi 

Directors of the Company are 

the Directors of Turnrest 

Resources Private Limited. 

NIL 1.00 

2.  Jyacad Solu�ons 

Private Limited 

Advance for the 

Transfer of 

Technology 

Mr. Ramesh Sojitra and Mr. 

Chirag Soni Directors of the 

Company are the Directors of 

Jyacad Solu�ons Private 

Limited. 

1.00 1.00 

3.  Mrs. Minal Soni Services Availed Mr. Chirag Soni is husband of 

Mrs. Minal Soni. 

0.50 0.50 

4.  

Prop Corporate 

Mentors Private 

Limited 

Services Availed Mr. Manish Kumar Dangi and 

Mr. Mitesh Sanghavi 

Directors of the Company are 

the Directors of Prop 

Corporate Mentors Private 

Limited. 

0.15 0.15 

5.  
Scan Press 

Limited 

Services Availed Mr. Kan�lal Ladani Director 

of the Company is Director of 

Scanpress Limited. 

0.05 0.05 

6.  Diyatech Private 

Limited 

Services Availed Mr. Chirag Soni Director of 

the Company is the Director 

of the Diyatech Private 

Limited. 

NIL 0.50 

7.  Chirag Soni HUF Services Availed Mr. Chirag Soni is karta of 

HUF. 

NIL 0.02 

8.  Beta Resources 

Private Limited 

Purchase sale of 

goods/material 

Mr. Kan�lal Ladani and Mr. 

Mitesh Sanghavi Directors of 

the Company are the 

directors of Beta Resources 

Private Limited. 

12.00 12.00 
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6.  Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 13, read with Sec�on 61 and 64 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rules thereunder (including any Statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof, for the 
�me in being in force) and any other applicable provisions of the Act and applicable provisions of the 
Ar�cle of Associa�on of the Company, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company from exis�ng ` 13,00,00,000 (Rupees 
Thirteen Crores Only) divided into 6,50,00,000 (Six Crores Fi�y Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of ` 2 each 
(Rupees Two Only) to ̀  15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fi�een Crores Only) divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores 
Fi�y Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of  ` 2 each (Rupees Two Only) ranking pari passu in all respect with the 
exis�ng Equity Shares of the Company.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company be altered in the following 
manner i.e. exis�ng Clause V of the Memorandum of Associa�on be deleted and same be subs�tuted 
with the following new clause as clause V;”

 V. The Share Capital of the Company is ` 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fi�een Crores Only) divided into 
7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores Fi�y Lacs Only) Equity Shares of ₹ 2 each (Rupees Two Only).

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolu�on, any of the Directors and 
Company Secretary of the Company (hereina�er referred to as “Board” which term shall include a 
Commi�ee thereof authorized for the purpose) be and are hereby authorized jointly/severally to take all 
such steps and ac�ons and give such direc�ons as may be in its absolute discre�on deemed necessary and 
to se�le any ques�on that may arise in this regard, without being required to seek any further consent or 
approval of the shareholders or otherwise and that the shareholders shall be deemed to have given their 
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolu�on.”

7. Issue of Equity Shares against the outstanding loans or borrowings availed by the Company

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a 
Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any amendments thereto or re-enactment 
thereof for the �me being in force), the provisions in the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
Company and other applicable provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and 
such other applicable guidelines/rules/regula�ons/ circulars issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Board 
of India from �me to �me, the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”),the 
applicable rules, regula�ons, no�fica�ons and circulars, if any, issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), 
Government of India or any other competent authori�es and clarifica�ons, if any, issued thereon from 
�me to �me by appropriate authori�es, the applicable regula�ons of the Securi�es and Exchange Board 
of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 as amended (the “Lis�ng 
Regula�ons”), and other applicable laws, if any, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) 
and/or sanc�on(s), if any, of the Government of India, RBI, SEBI and any other appropriate authority(ies), 
Bank(s), Ins�tu�on(s) or Body(ies), as may be necessary and subject to such condi�ons as may be 
prescribed by any of them in gran�ng any such approval, consent, permission or sanc�on, as are accepted 
by the Board of Directors of the Company, (hereina�er referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be 
deemed to include any duly cons�tuted commi�ee thereof which the Board may have cons�tuted or 
hereina�er cons�tute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolu�on), the 
consent of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to avail and accept, loans, 
borrowings, advances or financial assistances (“Loans”) from any banks, financial ins�tu�ons, promoters 
and promoter group of the Company or any other body Corporates, individuals or persons (hereina�er 
referred to as “Lenders”) containing, inter alia, an op�on to convert such Loans into the Equity Shares of 
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the Company or get the allotment of the Equity Shares of the Company against any such Loans subject to 
following terms and condi�ons:

 a. The Equity Shares shall be issued and allo�ed by the Company to the Lender(s) who exercises the 
op�on to convert its Loans (wholly or in part) into Equity Shares of the Company in accordance with 
terms and condi�ons specified under the loans agreements, facility agreements or other similar 
arrangements or agreements executed or to be executed between the Company and the Lenders or 
who exercises the op�on to adjust and treat the outstanding amount of Loans or any part thereof as 
an applica�on money while making applica�on for subscribing to the Equity Shares of the Company 
offered through rights issue, preferen�al issue or other permissible mode;

 b. The Equity Shares shall be issued at a price determined by the Board in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, regula�ons issued by the SEBI and other 
applicable laws;

 c. The Equity Shares allo�ed by the Company shall be subject to provisions of the Memorandum and 
Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company;

 d. The Equity Shares allo�ed by the Company shall rank pari-passu with the exis�ng Equity Shares of 
the Company in all respects and shall be listed on the Stock Exchange(s), where the exis�ng Equity 
Shares of the Company are listed.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to provisions of this resolu�on and the applicable laws, the 
Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to nego�ate, finalize and accept the 
terms and condi�ons of availing the Loans from the Lenders, to enter into loans agreements, facility 
agreements or other similar arrangements or agreements with the Lenders and to do all such acts, 
deeds, things and ma�ers as it may, in its absolute discre�on, deem necessary, expedient or 
desirable for availing the Loans from the Lenders and for giving effect to this resolu�on.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized and 
empowered to do all such acts, deeds, things and ma�ers as it may, in its absolute discre�on, deem 
necessary, expedient or desirable, for issuing, allo�ng and lis�ng of the Equity Shares in accordance 
with this resolu�on and the applicable laws, to delegate all or any of its power conferred by this 
resolu�on to any of its commi�ee or any director(s) or officer(s) of the Company, to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to do all such other acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things as the Board in its absolute discre�on may deem fit for giving effect to this 
resolu�on, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or 
otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolu�on.”

    Date: August 25, 2020                                                          By Order of the Board
  Place: Ahmedabad                                      For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

     
                                              Shaili Mehta
                                  Company Secretary

    Registered Office:
  9, Mahakant Complex, 
  Opp. V.S. Hospital, 
  Ashram Road, 
  Ahmedabad Gujarat-380006
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Notes :

1 In View of  inistry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'), Government of India, permi�ed conduct of Annual General 
Mee�ng ('AGM') through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) and dispensed 
personal present of the members at the mee�ng vide its circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, prescribed the specified 
procedures to be followed for conduc�ng the AGM through VC/OAVM. 

2. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
thDisclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) and MCA circulars, the 28  AGM 

of the members will be held through video conferencing ('VC') or other audio visual means ('OAVM'). 
Hence, Members can a�end and par�cipate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only. The detailed procedure 
for par�cipa�ng in the mee�ng through VC/OAVM is annexed herewith.

3. The Company has appointed Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited (“NSDL”) to provide VC/OVAM facility 
for the AGM of the Company.

4. The helpline number regarding any query/assistance for par�cipa�on in the AGM through VC/OAVM is 
1800-222-990 (toll free). 

5. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, where physical 
a�endance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by 
the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and A�endance Slip are not 
annexed to this No�ce.

6. The facility for joining AGM through VC/OAVM will be available for up to 1,000 Members and members 
may join on first come first serve basis. However, the above restric�on shall not be applicable to members 
holding more than 2% or more shareholding, Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel(s), the Chairpersons of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors, Scru�nizers etc. Members can login and 
join 30 (Thirty) minutes prior to the schedule �me of mee�ng and window for joining shall be kept open 
�ll the expiry of 15 (fi�een) minutes a�er the schedule �me.

7. Members a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Act. 

8. The explanatory statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Act, which sets out details rela�ng to Special 
Businesses at the mee�ng, is annexed hereto.

9. Ins�tu�onal/Corporate members are encouraged to a�end and vote at the mee�ng through VC/OAVM. 
We also request them to send, a duly cer�fied copy of the Board Resolu�on authorizing their 
representa�ve to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM and vote through remote e-vo�ng on its behalf at 
info@sgligis.com pursuant to Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. Only bonafide members of the Company, whose name appear first on the Register of Members, will be 
permi�ed to a�end the mee�ng through VC/OAVM. The Company reserves its right to take all necessary 
steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from a�ending the mee�ng.

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel's and their Shareholding maintained under 
Sec�on 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested 
maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Act will be available for inspec�on by the Members in electronic 
mode during the AGM. Members who wish to seek inspect, may send their request through an email at 
info@sgligis.com up to the date of AGM.

12. Members holding shares in physical form are advised to inform the par�culars of their bank account, 
change of postal address and email IDs to our RTA i.e. Link In�me India Private Limited at 5th Floor, 506 TO 
508, Amarnath Business Centre – 1 (ABC-1), Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, 
Off C G Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380006. or the Secretarial Department of the Company.
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13. Members who have not registered their email ID with the depository par�cipants, are requested to 
register their email ID with their depository par�cipants in respect of shares held in electronic form and in 
respect of shares held in physical form, are requested to submit their request with their valid email ID to 
our RTA at ahmedabad@linkin�me.co.in or info@sgligis.com for receiving all communica�ons including 
annual report, no�ces, le�ers etc., in electronic mode from the Company.

14. In compliance with the provisions of MCA vide its Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and SEBI circular dated May 
12, 2020, No�ce of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-20, are being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members whose email IDs are available with the Company/Depositories/RTA.

15. Members may note that the No�ce of the AGM and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the 
Company's website www.sgligis.com and website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com.

16. The Company has fixed Monday, September 21, 2020 as Cut-off date for determining the eligibility of 
Members en�tled to vote at the AGM. The remote e-vo�ng shall remain open from Thursday, September 
24, 2020 to Sunday, September 27, 2020 (both days inclusive).

17. Members who are present in mee�ng through video conferencing facility and have not cast their vote on 
resolu�ons through remote e-vo�ng, shall be allowed to vote through e-vo�ng system during the 
mee�ng.

18. The Company has appointed Mr. Harish P Jain, Prac�cing Company Secretary, of M/s. Harish P. Jain & 
Associates, Company Secretary, Ahmedabad (FCS 4203; CP: 4100) as Scru�nizer to scru�nize the e-vo�ng 
process in fair and transparent manner.

19. Informa�on required under Regula�on 36 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, Directors seeking Appointment/Re-
appointment at the AGM is furnished as ANNEXURE-I to this No�ce. The Directors have furnished 
consent/declara�ons for their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Act and rules made 
thereunder. 

20. In consonance with the company's sustainability ini�a�ves and Regula�on 36 of the SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the company is sharing all documents with 
shareholders in the electronic mode, wherever the same has been agreed to by the shareholders. 
Shareholders are requested to support this green ini�a�ve by registering/ upda�ng their e-mail 
addresses for receiving electronic communica�ons.

21. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying No�ce and the Explanatory Statement shall be 
open for inspec�on by the members at the Corporate Office of the Company during the normal business 
hours on all working days except Saturday and Sunday up to the date of the Annual General Mee�ng. 
Members who wish to seek the inspec�on, may send their request under the Act and rules made 
thereunder.

22. SEBI has recently amended relevant provisions of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 to disallow listed companies from accep�ng request for transfer of securi�es which are 
held in physical form, with effect from April 1, 2019. The shareholders who con�nue to hold shares in 
physical form even a�er this date, will not be able to lodge the shares with company / its RTA for further 
transfer. They need to convert the equity shares to demat form compulsorily if they wish to effect any 
transfer. Only the requests for transmission and transposi�on of securi�es in physical form, will be 
accepted by the RTA.

23. In case of Joint holders a�ending the AGM, the Shareholder whose name appears as the first holder in the 
order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be en�tled to vote.

24. In compliance with provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to 
exercise their right to vote at the 28  Annual General Mee�ng by electronic means and the business may th
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be transacted through e-Vo�ng Services provided by Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited. (NSDL). The 
detailed process, instruc�ons and manner for e-vo�ng facility is enclosed herewith.

25. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not required to be annexed in this to the 
No�ce.

 

 Date: August 25, 2020                      By Order of the Board
Place: Ahmedabad For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

                                                         
                                          Shaili Mehta
                               Company Secretary

 Registered Office: 
9, Mahakant Complex,
Opp. V. S. Hospital, Ashram Road, 
Ahmedabad Gujarat-380006

The process and manner of par�cipa�ng in Annual General Mee�ng through Video Conferencing mode is 

men�oned below:

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the   

Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula�on 44 of SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 the 

Company is providing facility of remote e-vo�ng to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Na�onal 

Securi�es Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilita�ng vo�ng through electronic means, as the 

authorized e-Vo�ng's agency. The facility of cas�ng votes by a member using remote e-vo�ng as well 

as venue vo�ng system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

the facility to appoint proxy to a�end and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 

However, the Body Corporates are en�tled to appoint authorised representa�ves to a�end the AGM 

through VC/OAVM and par�cipate thereat and cast their votes through e-vo�ng.

3. Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered: 

 a) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

 b) For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or 

NSDL-16 digit DPID +CLIENTID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 

statement, PAN (self-a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-a�ested scanned copy 

of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

  Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Vo�ng system at h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/

  Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Vo�ng system.
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Details on Step 1 is men�oned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-vo�ng website

1. Visit the e-vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

'Shareholders' sec�on. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verifica�on Code as 

shown on the screen. Alterna�vely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in 

at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your exis�ng IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices a�er 

using your log-in creden�als, click on e-Vo�ng and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

 

5. Your password details are given below:

 a) If you are already registered for e-vo�ng, then you can use your exis�ng password to login and cast 
your vote. 

 b) If you are using NSDL e-vo�ng system for the first �me, you will need to retrieve the 'ini�al 
password' which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'ini�al password', you need to 
enter the 'ini�al password' and the system will force you to change your password.

 c) How to retrieve your 'ini�al password'? 

  i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'ini�al 
password' is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL in 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the a�achment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID 
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
'User ID' and your 'ini�al password'.

  ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps men�oned below in this No�ce.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Ini�al password” or have forgo�en your password:

 a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) op�on available on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

 b. “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) op�on available on 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 

or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 

with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID For 

example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12****** 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account 

with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID For example if your Beneficiary 

ID is 12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the company For example if EVEN is 101456 and 

folio number is 001*** then user ID is 101456001*** 
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 c. If you are s�ll unable to get the password by aforesaid two op�ons, you can send a request at 
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in men�oning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address.

 d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for cas�ng the votes on the e-
Vo�ng system of NSDL.

7. A�er entering your password, �ck on Agree to “Terms and Condi�ons” by selec�ng on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu�on.

9. A�er you click on the “Login” bu�on, Home page of e-Vo�ng will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below: 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-vo�ng system? 

1. A�er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-vo�ng. Click on e-vo�ng. Then, 
click on Ac�ve Vo�ng Cycles.

2. A�er clicking on Ac�ve Vo�ng Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose vo�ng cycle is in ac�ve status.

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote, which for this AGM is 113882.

4. Now you are ready for e-Vo�ng as the Vo�ng page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�ons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirma�on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op�on on the confirma�on 
page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 i. Ins�tu�onal / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolu�on / Authority le�er etc. with 
a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
through its registered Email Id to the Scru�nizer at cs.harishjain@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in.

 ii. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confiden�al. Login to the e-vo�ng website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful a�empts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op�on available on 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com to reset the password.

 iii. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
vo�ng user manual for Shareholders available at the download sec�on of www.evo�ng.nsdl.com or 
call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in.

  Grievances connected with e-vo�ng may be referred to: 
  Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL, 
  4th Floor, 'A' Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, 
  Senapa� Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013.
  Email Id: evo�ng@nsdl.co.in / pallavid@nsdl.co.in 
  Tel: +91 22 24994545 / 1800-222-990
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ON E-VOTING SYSTEM ARE AS 
UNDER: -

1. The procedure for e-vo�ng on the day of the AGM is same as the instruc�ons men�oned above for 
Remote e-vo�ng.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 
not casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-vo�ng system available in the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the members through the e-vo�ng available during the AGM and if the same 
members have not par�cipated in the mee�ng through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 
members shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-vo�ng during the mee�ng is available only to the 
members par�cipa�ng in the mee�ng.

4. Members who have voted through Remote e-vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the AGM. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Vo�ng 
system. Members may access the same at www.evo�ng.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by 
using the remote e-vo�ng creden�als. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members 
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops for be�er experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the mee�ng.

4. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may register 
themselves as a speaker may send their request 7 days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id).

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have ques�ons may send their ques�ons in advance 7 
days prior to mee�ng men�oning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at (company email id). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng.



11

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

Explanatory Statement

(Pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 4

Reappointment of Mr. Dinesh Shah, (DIN: 02377709) as an Independent Director of the company for a second 
term of five year Mr. Dinesh Shah (DIN: 02377709) was appointed as an Independent Director of the company in 
the financial year 2014-15 for the period star�ng from 30  September, 2015 to 29  September, 2020. As per the th th

provisions of Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, an Independent Director 
can be reappointed for a second term of 5 (five) years by obtaining approval of the shareholders by a way of 
special resolu�on and on disclosure of such reappointment in the Board's Report. Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 provides for performance evalua�on by the Board before extending the term of Independent 
Director. Mr. Dinesh Shah has given declara�on to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 16(1)(b) of Lis�ng Regula�ons and 
in�ma�on in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualifica�on of Director) Rules 2014, to the 
effect that he is not disqualified under Sub-sec�on(2) of Sec�on 164 of the Companies Act 2013. In the opinion 
of the Board, Mr. Dinesh Shah fulfills the condi�ons provided in the Act and the Rules made thereunder for 
reappointment as an Independent Director. Brief background of Mr. Dinesh Shah is exhibited in this document 
separately. The Board of Directors and Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee are of the opinion that 
considering the vast experience, knowledge and the possession of relevant exper�se by Mr. Dinesh Shah (DIN: 
02377709) his con�nued associa�on would be of immense benefit to the Board and accordingly board 
recommend the Resolu�on for your approval. Informa�on Pertaining to Director seeking reappointment as 
men�oned under Regula�on 36(3) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 
and applicable Secretarial Standards as ANNEXURE-I.

None of Director, key managerial personnel (KMP) and their rela�ves except Mr. Dinesh Shah, is concerned or 
interested in the said resolu�on except to the extent of their directorship and shareholding in the Company.

Item No. 5

As per the provisions of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Mee�ng of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, 
(hereina�er “Lis�ng Regula�ons”) except with the approval of the Shareholders by way of resolu�on. The 
Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transac�ons and dealings between the related par�es 
of the Company. The provisions of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 that govern the Related Party 
Transac�ons and Lis�ng Regula�ons, requires that for entering into any contract or arrangement with the 
related party, the Company must obtain the prior approval of the Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors 
and, if required, prior approval of the shareholders by way of a Ordinary Resolu�on must be obtained for 
material transac�ons. There is no exemp�on even if such transac�on is in the ordinary course of business of the 
en�ty and on arm's length basis. A transac�on with a related party shall be considered material if the 
transac�on / transac�ons in a contract to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 
transac�on during the financial year, exceed ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company 
as per the last audited financial statements of the Company. The material terms of the respec�ve Contract or 
arrangements entered into or to be entered into from �me to �me are in the ordinary course of the business 
and on an arm's length basis.

In the light of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company has approved 
the proposed transac�ons along with annual limit that your Company may enter into with the related par�es 
(as defined under sec�on 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013. The material terms of the respec�ve Contract or 
arrangements entered into or to be entered into from �me to �me in the ordinary course of the business and on 
an arm's length basis and all factors relevant to the respec�ve transac�on have been considered by the Board.

Except Mr. Ramesh Sojitra, Mr. Kan�lal Ladani, Mr. Chirag Soni, Mr. Manishkumar Dangi, Mr. Mitesh Sanghvi and 
his rela�ve none of Director, key managerial personnel (KMP) and their rela�ves, is concerned or interested in 
the said resolu�on except to the extent of their directorship and shareholding in the Company.
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Item No. 6

The present Authorized Capital of the Company is ` 13,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirteen Crores only) divided into 
6,50,00,000 (Six Crores Fi�y Lakhs only) Equity shares of ̀  2/- (Rupees Two Only) and the paid up share capital of 
the Company is ` 9,88,39,036 (Rupees Nine Crores Eighty Eight Lakhs Thirty Nine Thousands Thirty Six only). 
The Company proposes to increase its Authorized Share Capital to ` 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fi�een Crores 
only) divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores Fi�y Lacs Only) to facilitate any fund raising of equity shares of the 
company.

The increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company will also require consequen�al amendment in the 
Clause V of the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company. 

Pursuant to Sec�on 13 and 62 the Companies Act, 2013, altera�on of the Capital Clause requires approval of the 
members of the Company by way of passing an Ordinary Resolu�on to that effect. 

The Directors recommend the Resolu�on set out in the No�ce for the approval of the Member.

None of Director, key managerial personnel (KMP) and their rela�ves, is concerned or interested in the said 
resolu�on except to the extent of their directorship and shareholding in the Company.

Item No. 7

The Members are aware that the Company is required, in the ordinary course of its business, to borrow money 
from the banks, financial ins�tu�ons, promoters and promoter group of the Company, or any other body 
corporates, individuals or persons (hereina�er referred to as the “Lenders”) for the business purposes of the 
Company and is required to enter into loan agreements, facility agreements or other similar arrangements or 
agreements with such Lenders (“Loan Agreements”). The terms and condi�ons of the Loan Agreements may 
require, inter alia, to include an op�on to convert the outstanding loans or financial assistances into the Equity 
Shares of the Company. 

Pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules framed thereunder, the Company is required to obtain approval of its members by way of a special 
resolu�on for raising any loans which, inter alia, contain an op�on to convert such loans into equity shares of 
the Company.

Accordingly, to enable the Company; a) to enter into Loan Agreements with the Lenders which, inter alia, 
contain an op�on to convert the outstanding loans, borrowings, advances or financial assistances (“Loans”) 
availed or to be availed from the Lenders from �me to �me, into the Equity Shares of the Company in 
accordance with the terms and condi�ons as specified under the Loan Agreements executed or to be executed 
between the Company and the Lenders or an op�on to adjust and treat the outstanding amount of such Loans 
or any part thereof as an applica�on money while making applica�on for subscribing to the Equity Shares of the 
Company offered through rights issue, preferen�al issue or other permissible mode in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, regula�ons issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India and other applicable laws and b) to issue and allot the Equity Shares of the Company against such Loans, 
the approval of members of the Company by way of a special resolu�on is sought at Item No. 7 of this No�ce. 

The proposed resolu�on is in the interest of the Company and your Directors recommend the proposed Special 
Resolu�on men�oned at Item No.7 of this No�ce for shareholders' approval. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves are concerned or interested financially or 
otherwise in the proposed resolu�on.

Date: August 25, 2020                                                                 By Order of the Board

Place: Ahmedabad                                        For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 

Registered Office                                                                 Shaili Mehta

9, Mahakant Complex,                                                     Company Secretary

Opp. V. S. Hospital, Ashram Road,

Ahmedabad Gujarat-380006.
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ANNEXURE-I

Details of the Directors seeking Re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Mee�ng (in Compliance 
of Regula�on 36 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, and the 
Secretarial Standard 2 on General Mee�ng:

Name of Directors  Mr. Chirag Soni (Whole Time 

Director)-  Re�re by Rota�on  

Mr. Dinesh Shah (Independent 

Director)-  Reappointment  

Date of Birth  July 11, 1974  February 8, 1954  

Date of Appointment  November 01, 2019  30th  September, 2015  

Qualifica�on  Bachelor of Science and Diploma in  
Mechanical Engineering   

Chartered Accountant  

Nature of exper�se & Experience.  He has experience in GIS & IP 
based applica�on development, 
GIS based customiza�on and R&D 
ac�vi�es undertaken by your 
Company.  
 

He has been associated with your 
Company as a Director since last 13

 
years.

 

 He is a fellow member of 
Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. He holds 
cer�ficate of prac�ce with the 
ICAI. He has been associated with 
our Company as a Director since 
August 13, 1994. He has 
experience of more than 15 years 
in the field of taxa�on.

 
Names of listed en��es in which 
the person also holds the 
directorship

 

None
  

Nivaka Fashions Limited
 

Membership/Chairmanship of 
Commi�ees of listed en��es

 

None
 

4
 

Number of Shares held in the 
Company

 

5,00,000
 

None
 

Rela�onship with any Director(s) 
of the Company

 

None
 

None
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Foreword 

Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to present the 28 Annual Report and the performance of the Company.th 

The year 2019-2020 has presented both challenges and opportuni�es to your Company. During this year, your 
Company has delivered revenue of Rs. 4924.62 Lakhs and Company's net profit has increased to Rs. 174.29 
Lakhs from Rs. 167.49 Lakhs in previous year.

Indian Geospa�al Market is poised for growth! Governments at all levels in India - na�onal, state and local, need 
data in order for governance. Geospa�al data and aided applica�ons are helping departments across various 
sectors in India with the same. Further, GIS use was not limited to the niche market of government and has 
grown substan�ally, as well as due to large retailers and tech startups have seen the benefits of understanding 
data geospa�ally.

Your Company has con�nued with its research and development ac�vi�es with regard to its so�wares and 
developed enhanced versions of the so�wares which can be more useful to its users. Your company has 
awarded many projects from various State Government authori�es and many upcoming projects are in the 
process.   

Finally, I would like to convey my deepest gra�tude to all the Board Members, Employees, Customers, Business 
Associates, Bankers, Shareholders, and Government Authori�es with whom we have forged strong 
rela�onships, for their con�nued support in our journey towards crea�ng state-of-the-art value offerings in 
India.

Warm Regards,

Ramesh Sojitra

Managing Director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To
The Members, 
Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited 

thYour Directors' are pleased to present the 28  Annual Report on the business and opera�ons together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2020. 

Financial Results

The Company's financial performance for the Year ended on March 31, 2020 is summarized below: 

(` in Lakhs')

 

Business Overview 

Standalone Basis 

The total revenue during the year under review was ̀  4924.62 Lakhs as against ̀  4127.07 Lakhs in the previous 
year, Opera�ng Profit for the year is ` 516.33 Lakhs as against `422.71 Lakhs in previous year thereby an 
increase of 22.15%. Net Profit a�er tax amounted to ` 174.29 Lakhs as against ` 167.29 Lakhs in previous year 
and thereby an increase of 4.18%. 

Consolidated Basis 

The total revenue during the year under review was ₹ 4924.62 Lakhs as against ₹ 4127.07 Lakhs in the previous 
year, Opera�ng Profit for the year under review is ₹ 515.69 Lakhs as against ₹ 421.24 Lakhs in previous year 
thereby an increase of 22.42%. Net Profit a�er tax amounted to ₹ 173.65 Lakhs as against ₹ 166.02 Lakhs in 
previous year an increase of 4.60%. 

In compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 including the Indian Accoun�ng Standard 
(Ind AS) 33 on Consolidated Financial Statements, this Annual Report also includes Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the financial year 2019-2020.

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars  Standalone  Consolidated  

31.03.2020  31.03.2019  31.03.2020  31.03.2019  

1. Total Revenue  4924.62 4127.07 4924.62 4127.07 

2. Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation  

& amortization Expense and Tax 

Expense (Operating Profit)  

516.33 422.71 515.69 421.24 

3. Finance costs  178.14 119.20 178.14 119.20 

4. Depreciation and Amortisation  87.75 78.15 87.75 78.15 

5. Profit before Taxation (PBT)  250.44 225.36 249.80 223.89 

6. Tax expense      

 Current Tax  70.48 48.47 70.48 48.47 

 Deferred Tax  5.67 9.40 5.67 9.40 

7. Net Profit  174.29 167.49 173.65 166.02 

8. Total comprehensive income  (after tax)  187.86 132.01 187.22 130.54 
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Dividend 

In order to conserve the resources and to strengthen the financial posi�on of the company and to meet long 
term fund requirement, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

Transfer to General Reserve 

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the General Reserve for the 
year under review. 

Share Capital 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was ₹ 988.39 Lakhs. During the Year under review 
Company has allo�ed 43,33,819 fully paid up Equity Shares of ₹ 2/- each at a price of ₹ 23 (including a share 
premium of ₹ 21 per Equity Shares) on a rights basis aggrega�ng to ₹ 996.78 Lakhs.

Material Changes and Commitments Affec�ng Financial Posi�on between end of the Financial Year and Date 
of Report 

There are no material changes and commitment affec�ng the Financial posi�on between end of the Financial 
year and Date of Report.

Subsidiary Company 

Pursuant to Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the 
report on performance and financial posi�on of subsidiary company is a�ached as ANNEXURE II in Form AOC-1 
prepared under sec�on 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 to consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company.

The Company has kept the separate audited financial statements in respect of subsidiary at the Registered 
Office of the Company and available upon the request by any shareholder of Company. The said financial 
statements are also available on the website of your Company at www.sgligis.com. 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

Re�re by Rota�on

Mr. Chirag Soni is liable to re�re by rota�on at the Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment. The Directors recommend for his re-appointment.

Resigna�on

Mr. Mukesh Limbachiya has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
Company w.e.f August 2, 2019.

Mr. Chintan Bha� has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 
w.e.f. January 24, 2020. 

Appointment 

Mr. Kalpesh Rachchh has been appointed as an Addi�onal Director (Non-Execu�ve and Independent) on the 
Board w.e.f May 03, 2019 for a term of five consecu�ve year upto May 02, 2024.

Mr. Suresh Tejwani has been appointed as an Addi�onal Director (Non-Execu�ve and Independent) on Board 
w.e.f May 03, 2019 for a term of five consecu�ve year upto May 02, 2024.

Ms. Shaili Mehta has been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company w.e.f 
February 15, 2020.

Re-appointment

Mr. Dinesh Shah (DIN: 02377709) an independent Director of the Company to be re-appointed. Considering his 
knowledge, exper�se and experience in respec�ve fields and the substan�al contribu�on made by him during 
his tenure as an Independent Director since his appointment, the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and 
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the Board has recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Shah as an Independent Director on the Board 
th thof the Company, for further term of 5 (five) consecu�ve years commencing from 30  September, 2020 to 29  

September, 2025. 

The Board seeks approval of Members of the Company to confirm the above appointment/re-appointment in 
the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.

Criteria of independence as men�oned under Sec�on 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Independent Directors of your Company have given the cer�ficate of independence to your Company 
sta�ng that they meet the criteria of independence as men�oned under Sec�on 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Familiariza�on Programme for Independent Directors 

The Company keeps its Directors informed of the ac�vi�es of the Company, its management and opera�ons 
and provides an overall industry perspec�ve as well as issues being faced by the industry in a proac�ve manner. 
The details of various familiariza�on programs provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the 
Company's website on www.sgligis.com. 

Mee�ngs of Board

The Board of Director met 11 �mes during the year 2019-2020. The Details of the Board Mee�ngs and the 
a�endance of the Directors are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Commi�ee 

The Audit Commi�ee comprises of directors namely Ms. Pooja Shah Chairperson, Mr. Dinesh Shah and 
Mr. Ramesh Sojitra as members of the Audit Commi�ee.

In accordance with the provisions of sec�on 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 
Board has accepted all the recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee during the financial year 2019-20.

The details of term of reference of the Audit Commi�ee member, dates of mee�ng held and a�endance of the 
Directors are given separately in the Corporate Governance Report.

Commi�ees of Board

Details of various commi�ees cons�tuted by the Board of Directors as per provisions of the Lis�ng Regula�ons 
and Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Corporate Governance Report and forms part of this report.

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to the requirement in sec�on 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

a. in the prepara�on of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable 
Indian accoun�ng standards have been followed along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material 
departures;

b. such accoun�ng policies as men�oned in the notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and 
applied consistently and judgments and es�mates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2020 and of the profit of 
the Company for the year ended on that date;

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d. the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were 
opera�ng effec�vely systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place 
and were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.
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Evalua�on of Board Performance 

In compliance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 27 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 
the annual performance evalua�on of Board and its Commi�ee was carried out during the year under review, 
details on the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Auditors 

l Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Jayamal Thakore & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 104098W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors 
of the Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecu�ve years, at the Annual General Mee�ng held on September 
28, 2017. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from con�nuing as Auditors of the Company. 

The Auditors' Report on the accounts of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is self-
explanatory and does not call for any further explana�ons or comments that may be treated as adequate 
compliance of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors' Report does not contain any 
qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-sec�on (12) of Sec�on 143 other than those 
which are reported to the central government:-

During the year under considera�on, there were no such instances.

l Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Harish P. Jain & 
Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for the financial year 2019-2020. 

The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-III. The Secretarial Audit Report does 
not contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark.

l Cost Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, Cost Audit is 
not applicable to the Company for Financial year 2019-2020.

l Internal Auditor

The Company has appointed M/s. Parikh Shah Chotalia & Associates, Chartered Accountants as an Internal 
Auditors of the Company.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards 

The Company has complied with all Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of 
India from �me to �me.

Management Discussion and Analysis 

As s�pulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms an integral part of this report.  .

Corporate Governance Report 

As per Regula�on 27 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, a separate 
sec�on on corporate governance prac�ces followed by the Company, together with a cer�ficate from the 
Prac�cing Company Secretary confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Report.

Energy Conserva�on, Technology Absorp�on and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The informa�on on conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
s�pulated under Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) 
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Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE - IV.

Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Sec�on 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Par�es 

The Company has entered into Related Party Transac�ons during the financial year. All Related Party 
Transac�ons were placed before the Audit Commi�ee of the Board of Directors for their approval. The Audit 
Commi�ee has granted omnibus approval for Related Party Transac�ons as per the provisions and restric�ons 
contained in the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng 
Regula�ons”). There were no material related party transac�ons entered by the Company during the year 
under review. Accordingly, there are no transac�on that are required to be reported in Form AOC-2.

Your Directors draw a�en�on of the members to Notes to the financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures.

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of Related Party Transac�ons and also on dealing with Related 
Party Transac�ons. The policy is available on the Company's website on www.sgligis.com/investors/governance

Extract of Annual Return 

The par�culars required to be furnished under Sec�on 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 as prescribed in Form MGT-9 is given in 
ANNEXURE-V. Further, the extract to the Annual Return of the Company can also be accessed on the Company's 
website www.sgligis.com. 

Par�culars of Employees and Related Disclosures 

Disclosures pertaining to remunera�on and other details as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is a�ached 
as ANNEXURE-VI which forms part of this report. 

In terms of the provisions of Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the 
names and other par�culars of the employees drawing remunera�on in excess of the limits set out in the said 
rules is a�ached as ANNEXURE-VII which forms part of this report.

Internal Financial Controls  

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. During 
the year no reportable material weakness in the design or opera�on were observed. 

The internal audit covers a wide variety of opera�onal ma�ers and ensures compliance with specific standard 
with regards to availability and suitability of policies and procedures.

Development and Implementa�on of Risk Management Policy 

Business Risk Evalua�on and Management is an ongoing process within the Organiza�on. The Company has a 
robust risk management framework to iden�fy, monitor and minimize risks as also iden�fy business 
opportuni�es. 

Further, the Company iden�fies risks with its degree and control systems are ins�tuted to ensure that the risks 
in business process are mi�gated. The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk Management Policy 
periodically. In the opinion of the Board there has been no iden�fica�on of elements of risk that may threaten 
the existence of the Company. 

Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy for directors and employees to report to the 
management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or viola�on of the Company's code of 
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conduct or ethics policy. The said Policy is available on the website of the Company on www.sgligis.com.

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy 

The policy on Director's appointment and remunera�on including criteria for determining qualifica�ons, 
posi�ve a�ributes, independence of Director, and remunera�on for Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees can be viewed at the Company's website at www.sgligis.com

Significant and Material Orders by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern 
status and the Company's Future Opera�ons.

No such orders have been passed by the Regulators/Courts or Tribunal which can impact the going concern 
status and Company's opera�on in future.

Public Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the meaning of sec�on 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the financial year under review.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not 
applicable to the Company.

Disclosure as Per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 
2013 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on preven�on, 
prohibi�on and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules. No 
complaint has been received on sexual harassment during the financial year 2019-2020.

Industrial Rela�ons 

The Company enjoyed cordial rela�ons with the employees during the year under review and the Management 
appreciates the employees of all cadres for their dedicated services to the Company.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Director express their sincere thanks and wishes to place on record its deep apprecia�on for the 
con�nued support, confidence and co-opera�on that the company has received from SAC-ISRO, ANTRIX, 
customers, suppliers, investors, bankers, government agencies and other associates. Your Directors also place 
on record their deep apprecia�on of the employees for the valued and con�nuous support at all levels for their 
services and commitment during the year. 

Date: August 25, 2020                                       For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Ahmedabad                                   For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

   
                                           Ramesh Sojitra                                                   Chirag Soni
                                    Managing Director                    CTO & Whole Time Director
                                           DIN: 00016149                                             DIN: 01684683
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ANNEXURE-II

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiary Company

Sr.
No.

Name of Subsidiary Repor�ng
Currency

Exch.
rate

Share
Capital

Reserve &
Surplus

Total
Assets

Total
Liabili�es

Invest-
ments

Turnover Profit 
before
taxa�on

Provision
for 
Taxa�on

Profit 

a�er
Taxa�on

1 Jyacad Solu�ons 
Private Limited

INR NA 1,00,000 Nil 76,34,933 78,62,831 Nil Nil (62,932) Nil (62,932)

Amount in `
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ANNEXURE - III

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended March 31, 2020

[Pursuant To Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of The

Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on Personnel) Rules, 2014

To, 

The Members, 

Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate prac�ces by Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited (hereina�er called "the Company"). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the 
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verifica�on of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng 
made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;

v. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-

a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on Of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 
1992; as amended on even date;

b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue Of Capital And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2009;

c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars To An Issue And Share Transfer 
Agents) Regula�ons, 1993; as amended on even date;

d) The Securi�es And Exchange Board Of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on Of Shares And 
Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011; 

e) The Securi�es and Exchanges Board Of India (Employee Stock Op�on Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 ;( Not applicable as the Company has not issued 
any such shares during the year under review. 

f) The Securi�es and Exchanges Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) 
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Regula�ons, 2008; (Not applicable as the Company has not issued any such Securi�es during the 
year under review). 

g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009; (Not 
applicable as the Company has not de-listed any such Securi�es during the year under review). 

h) The Securi�es and Exchanges Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 1998; (Not 
applicable as the Company has not bought back any such Securi�es during the year under 
review).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India, to the extent applicable 
under the companies Act, 2013 Regarding Convening of Mee�ng of the Board of Director and the Share 
holders of the Company.

ii. The provisions of Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015.

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Director The changes in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

ii. Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on 
at the mee�ng.

iii. Majority decision is carried through while the dissen�ng members' views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes.

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and opera�ons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons 
and guidelines.

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT during the period under review Company has issued shares on Right basis in 
full Compliance with applicable Law.
   For Harish P. Jain & Associates

   Prac�cing Company Secretaries

   

   Harish Jain

   (Proprietor)

Date:  July 28, 2020 Membership No. 4203  

Place: Ahmedabad  CP No.: 4100 
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ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 To, 

The Board of Directors, 

SCANPOINT GEOMATICS LIMITED 

9, MAHAKANT COMPLEX,  OPP. V. S. HOSPITAL, 

ASHRAM ROAD,  AHMEDABAD – 380006, 

GUJARAT, INDIA. 

Our report of even date is subject to the followings: 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2.  We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and prac�ces, 
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representa�on about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc. 

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards is 
the responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedures on test 
basis 

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

 For Harish P. Jain & Associates

 Prac�cing Company Secretaries

 

 Harish Jain

 (Proprietor)

Date:  July 28, 2020 Membership No. 4203  

Place: Ahmedabad CP No.: 4100 
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ANNEXURE - IV

Informa�on as per Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and forming part of the Directors Report for 
the year ended March 31, 2020

A) Conserva�on of energy:

Energy conserva�on is an ongoing process within the Organisa�on. Being a so�ware Company energy use is 
limited in running computer, air condi�oning etc. Ac�ve measures are being adopted by upgrading the 
present system by replacing it with energy efficient system. Your company also facilitates WFH (Work from 
Home) in some of the cases based on merit which effec�vely contributes to reduced carbon footprint by 
reduc�on in energy consump�on and commute requirement.

(B) Technology absorp�on, Adop�on and Innova�on:  

Efforts made towards technology absorp�on and the benefit derived like product improvement, cost 
reduc�on, product development or import subs�tu�on.

Your company has invested in state-of-the-art tools to manage end to end product development cycle and 
enhanced security of developed assets.

As your Company has not entered into the technical collabora�on with any en�ty, there are no par�culars 
rela�ng to technology absorp�on.

With respect to the technology innova�on the Company has developed the IGIS-CAD So�ware for 
providing the services to various professional i.e. architect, interior designer, civil, mechanical and 
electrical engineers etc.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

      (Figures in Rupees)

 Par�culars   2019-2020 2018-19

 Foreign Exchange earnings NIL NIL

 Foreign Exchange outgo NIL NIL

(D) Research and Development (R&D):

Your company being in so�ware product development, research and development is an ongoing and core 
ac�vity. A sustained effort is put in to engage with the intellectual capital available with product 
development partner ISRO for exchange of technology know how and trends to enhance the product.  
Apart from this your company con�nues to carry our research and development in the field of Geo-spa�al 
as well as in IT as a part of rou�ne product development journey, however there was no specific expenditure 
incurred on it.  
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I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L22219GJ1992PLC017073

2 Registra�on Date 07-02-1992

3 Name of the Company Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares

Indian Non-Government Company

5

Address of the Registered office  & 
contact details

9, Mahakant Complex, Opp. V.S. Hospital, Ashram Road, 
Ahmedabad – 380006    Contact No.  079-26575371

6 Whether listed company Listed

7

Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any

Link In�me (India) Private Limited
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 
Vikhroli (West) Mumbai - 400083 
Contact No. 022- 25963838

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. No. Name and Descrip�on of main products / services NIC Code of the 
Product/service

%  to total turnover of the 
company

1 Computer programming, consultancy and related ac�vi�es 
[includes both the segment of the Company viz. i) GIS Services & 
Other Products ii) GIS So�ware & Solu�ons]

62 99.04%

 III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Sec�on

1

Jyacad Solu�ons Private Limited
Address: A-502, Pushpavan Apartment, Nr. IOC 
Petrol Pump, Bodakdev Road, Ahmedabad – 
380054.

U72200GJ2017P
TC098399

Subsidiary 99.90 2(87)

ANNEXURE – V

FORM MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on March 31, 2020

Pursuant to Sec�on 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administra�on) Rules, 2014.
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Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on 01-04-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-03-2020]

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year  Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 18,25,669 - 18,25,669 4.05 20,39,435 - 20,39,435 4.13 0.08

b) Bodies Corporate 1,12,59,203 - 1,12,59,203 24.97 1,10,59,203 - 1,10,59,203 22.38 -2.59

Sub Total (A) (1) 1,30,84,872 - 1,30,84,872 29.02 1,30,98,638 - 1,30,98,638 26.51 -2.51

B. Public Shareholding 

1. Ins�tu�ons

a) Mutual Funds - 20,700 20,700 0.05 - 20,200 20,200 0.04 -0.01

b) Banks / FI 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000 - -

c) Central / State Govt. 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - -

d) Insurance Companies - 27,200 27,200 0.06 - 27,100 27,100 0.06 -

Sub-total (B)(1):- 1,100 47,900 49,000 0.11 1,100 47,300 48,400 0.10 -0.01

2. Non-Ins�tu�ons 

a) Bodies Corporate

I) Indian 49,46,643 - 49,46,643 10.97 1,18,34,878 - 1,18,34,878 23.95 12.98

b) Individuals

I) Individual  shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 2 lakh

53,35,857 14,14,166 67,50,023 14.97 56,18,758 13,88,591 70,07,349 14.18 -0.79

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 2 lakh

1,52,62,409 - 1,52,62,409 33.85 1,22,56,763 - 1,22,56,763 24.80 -9.05

c) Others (specify)

a) Non Resident Indians (Repat & 
Non-repat)

2,50,317 1,02,900 3,53,217 0.78 2,81,942 1,02,900 3,84,842 0.78 0.00

b) Clearing Members 1,01,177 - 1,01,177 0.22 24,624 - 24,624 0.05 -0.17

c) Trusts 5,000 - 5,000 0.01 5,000 - 5,000 0.01 0.00

d) HUF 45,33,358 - 45,33,358 10.5 47,59,022 - 47,59,022 9.63 -0.43

Sub-total (B)(2):- 3,04,34,761 15,17,066 3,19,51,827 70.87 3,47,80,989 14,91,491 3,62,72,480 73.40 2.53

Total Public (B) 3,04,35,861 15,64,966 3,20,00,827 70.98 3,47,82,089 15,38,791 3,63,20,880 73.60 2.62

Grand Total (A+B) 4,35,20,733 15,64,966 4,50,85,689 100.00% 4,78,80,727 15,38,791 4,94,19,518 100.00 -
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

Sr. 
No. Shareholder's Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of Shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbere
d to total 
shares

No. of Shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Ramesh Sojitra       5,23,553 1.16 1.16 7,37,319 1.49 1.08 0.33

2 Leelavan� Sojitra 1,48,911 0.33 0 1,48,911 0.30 0.00 -0.03

3 Vishwas Sojitra 2,48,068 0.55 0 2,48,068 0.50 0.00 -0.05

4 Vaacha Sojitra 2,93,063 0.65 0 2,93,063 0.59 0.00 -0.06

5 Rameshchandra K. Sojitra HUF 1,12,074 0.25 0 1,12,074 0.23 0.00 -0.02

6 Chirag Soni 5,00,000 1.11 0 5,00,000 1.01 0.00 -0.10

7 Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Ltd. 1,12,59,203 24.97 9.93 1,10,59,203 22.38 11.28 -2.59

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

Sr 
No. Name of Promoter / Par�culars

Date Reason

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumula�ve Shareholding during 
the year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares

1 Ramesh Sojitra 01-04-2019 - 5,23,553 1.16 5,23,553 1.016

Transfer# 29-06-2019 - 12,57,766 - 17,81,319 3.60

Transfer 06-09-2019 - (4,00,000) - 13,81,319 2.80

Transfer 22-11-2020 - (6,44,000) - 7,37,319 1.49

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 7,37,319 1.49 7,37,319 1.49

2 Leelavan� Sojitra* 01-04-2019 - 1,48,911 0.33 1,48,911 0.33

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 1,48,911 0.30 1,48,911 0.30

3 Vishwas Sojitra* 01-04-2019 - 2,48,068 0.55 2,48,068 0.55

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 2,48,068 0.50 2,48,068 0.50

4 Vaacha Sojitra* 01-04-2019 - 2,93,063 0.65 2,93,063 0.65

At the Year end 31-03-2020 - 2,93,063 0.59 2,93,063 0.59

5 Rameshchandra K. Sojitra HUF* 01-04-2019 - 1,12,074 0.25 1,12,074 0.25

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 1,12,074 0.23 1,12,074 0.23

6 Chirag Soni* 01-04-2019 - 5,00,000 1.10 5,00,000 1.10

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 5,00,000 1.01 5,00,000 1.01

7 Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Limited. 01-04-2019 - 1,12,59,203 24.97 1,12,59,203 24.97

Transfer 16-08-2019 - (2,00,000) 1,10,59,203 22.38

At the year end 31-03-2020 - 1,10,59,203 22.38 1,10,59,203 22.38

# The Promoter has acquired the shares through Rights Issue. 
* Note There was no change in no. of shares however percentage of shares held were reduced as company had came up with rights issue during the same.
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(iv) Shareholding Pa�ern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Change in Shareholding
(No. of Shares)

Cumula�ve Shareholding at 
the end of the year

1 Theeta Trading LLP 41,65,693 9.24 0 0 41,65,693 8.43

2 Rajesh Thakkar 46,18,680 10.24 0 (15,18,680) 31,00,000 6.27

3 Rajesh Thakkar HUF 24,70,712 5.48 0 0 24,70,712 5.00

4 Mayur Desai 13,98,762 3.10 1,34,454 0 15,33,216 3.10

5 Amar Patel 20,39,524 4.52 0 (17,83,880) 2,55,644 0.52

6 Ashish Desai 8,70,236 1.93 81,180 0 9,51,416 1.93

7 Shaival Desai 7,46,302 1.66 41,178 0 7,87,480 1.59

8 Mukesh Patel 6,69,626 1.49 0 (70,227) 5,99,399 1.21

9 Taraben Thakkar 12,38,812 2.75 0 0 12,38,812 2.51

10 Shimulben Shroff 5,94,711 1.32 0 (26,011) 5,68,700 1.15

11 SMC Global Securi�es Limited 625 0.00 38,15,381 0 38,16,006 7.72

12 Upsilon Trading LLP 0 0.00 26,51,263 0 26,51,263 5.36

13 Milind Pankajbhai Shroff 5,86,179 1.30 26,398 0 6,12,577 1.24

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

Date Reason

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumula�ve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

1 Ramesh Sojitra

Beginning of the year 01.04.2019 5,23,553 1.16 - -

At the year end 31.03.2020 - - - 7,37,319 1.49

2 Kan�lal Ladani

Beginning of the year 01.04.2019 2,70,810 0.60 - -

At the year end 31.03.2020 No Change - - 2,70,810 0.55

3 Chirag Soni

Beginning of the year 01.04.2019 5,00,000 1.11 – –

At the year end 31.03.2020 No Change - - 5,00,000 1.01



30

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addi�on 504.71 0.00 0.00 504.71

* Reduc�on 0.00 364.93 0.00 364.93

Net Change 504.71 364.93 0.00 139.78

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

I) Principal Amount 1097.77 751.84 0.00 1849.33

ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 28.48 0.00 28.48

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ii+iii) 1097.77 780.32 0.00 1878.31

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary Mr. Ramesh Sojitra
Chairman and 

Managing Director 

Mr. Chirag Soni
Whole Time Director

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sec�on 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

24,00,000 21,00,000 45,00,000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

© Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 17(3) Income- tax 
Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Op�on - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

Commission - - -

4 -  as % of profit - - -

-  others, specify - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total 24,00,000 21,00,000 45,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act: Being 10% of the Net Profits of the Company 
calculated as per Sec�on 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

NA NA

V. INDEBTEDNESS

(` in Lakhs)

Par�culars Secured Loans excluding 
deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

I)   Principal Amount 593.28 1145.25 0.00 1738.53

ii)  Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total (i+ii+iii) 593.28 1145.25 0.00 1738.53
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B. Remunera�on to other Directors

SN Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of Directors Total Amount

1 Independent Directors  Pooja Shah - - -

Fee for a�ending board commi�ee mee�ngs  55,000 - - 55,000

Commission - - - -

Others, please specify - - - -

Total (1) 55,000 - - 55,000

2 Other Non-Execu�ve Directors - - - -

Fee for a�ending board commi�ee mee�ngs - - - -

Commission - - - -

Others, please specify - - - -

Total (2) - - - -

Total (B)=(1+2) - - - -

Total Managerial Remunera�on 55,000 - - 55,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA

C. Remunera�on to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S.N. Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount

1 Gross salary Kan�lal Ladani
Chief Financial Officer

Chintan Bha�*
Company Secretary

Mukesh Limbachiya
Company Secretary**

Shaili Mehta***
Company Secretary

-

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in sec�on 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- 1,32,740 1,21,135  56,700 3,10,575

- - - - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- - - - -

© Profits in lieu of salary under 
sec�on 17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961

- - - - -

- - - - -

2 Stock Op�on - - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - - -

4 Commission - - - - -

-  as % of profit - - - - -

-  others, specify - - - - -

5 Others, please specify  3,00,000 - - - 3,00,000

Total 3,00,000 1,32,740 1,21,135 56,700 6,10,575

* Mr. Chintan Bha� has resigned as a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f January 24, 2020.
** Mr. Mukesh Limbachiya has resigned as a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f August 02, 2020.
*** Ms. Shaili Mehta has been appointed as a Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f February 15, 2020.

VII) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

There were no penal�es / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any sec�on of the Companies Act, 2013 against the Company or its Directors or 

other Officers in default during the financial year 2019-2020.
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ANNEXURE - VI

Details under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(I)  The ra�o of the remunera�on of each director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the company for 
the financial year and the percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

*Non-execu�ve Independent Directors are paid only si�ng fees for a�ending the Board and Audit Commi�ee hence 
not Comparable.

** Mr. Kan�lal Ladani does not form the part of remunera�on. 

*** Ms. Shaili Mehta has been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f  
February 15, 2020.

(ii) The median remunera�on of employees during the financial year under review was ̀  4,80,000/-.

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remunera�on of employees in the financial year 2019-2020;

 The median remunera�on of employee in the financial year 2019-2020 was ̀  4.8 Lakhs (` 4.2 Lakhs in financial year 
2018-19). There was Increase of 14.29% in median remunera�on of employee.

(iv) There were 147 numbers of employees on the rolls of company as on March 31, 2020.  

(v) Average percen�le increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase in the managerial remunera�on and jus�fica�on 
thereof  and point out if there are any excep�onal circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera�on:

 Average percen�le increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel was 22.98% 
and Average Increase in the managerial remunera�on for the same financial year was 8.34%. The criteria for 
increase in remunera�on of employees is based on performance evalua�on carried out by the Management 
annually.

(vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on is paid as per the Remunera�on Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees.

Note: Managerial Remunera�on includes Chairman and Managing Director and Whole Time Director.
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ANNEXURE -VII

Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2020.

A. Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year: 

B. Employees who are employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ` 1.02 Crores (Rupees 

One Crores and Two Lakhs) or more per annum: NIL

C. Employees who are employed part of the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating ` 8.50 Lakhs (Rupees Eight 

Lakhs and Fifty Thousand per month)or more per month: NIL

Employee Name 
& Qualification  

Age in 
Years 

Designation Date of 
Employment 

Gross 
Remuneration 

p.a. 
(� in Lakhs) 

Total 
Exp. (In 

Year) 

Last 
Employment 

% age of 
equity 
shares 
held 
by 

employee 
Deven Laheru,  
Bachelor of 
Engineering 

47 President 01-May-18 40.80 20+ 
Year 

Oracle India 
Private 
Limited 

- 

Narendra Patel,  
Bachelor of 
Engineering 

53 Executive 
Vice 

President 

10-Oct-18 30.00 30+ 
Years 

HITACHI 
Systems Micro 
Clinic Pvt Ltd 

- 

Pratik Machchar, 
M.Tech 

44 Sr. Vice 
President 

09-Sept-19 30.00 20+ 
years 

Vyap 
Technologies 

- 

Vinod Mishra,  
Diploma & 
PGDBM 

40 Vice 
President 

02-Jul-18 24.00 13+ 
Years 

MAPMYINDIA 
(CE Info 

Systems Pvt. 
Ltd) 

- 

Rajbir Singh,  
MBA 

49 Vice 
President 

07-Nov-16 23.40 25+ 
Years 

Nasent Info 
Technologies 

- 

Rakesh Patel, 
MSW 

44 Vice 
President 

22-March-19 21.00 20+ 
years 

Rain Group - 

Rikin Mehta, B.E. 
Electrical, MBA  

49 Vice 
President 

03-Feb-20 18.00 25+ 
Years 

Sigma 
Enterprise 

 

Krishnkant 
Kumar 
M.Tech 

46 Assistant 
Vice 

President 

14-Feb-11 16.80 
 

20+ 
Year 

IL & FS 
Environment, 

Noida, UP 

- 

Kaushal Vyas,  
Bachelor of 
Engineering 

50 Vice 
President 

01-Mar-19 16.80 25+ 
Year 

Genesys 
International 

Corp. Ltd 

- 

        

Bhavin 
Khanderia, MCA 

41 Assistant 
Vice 

President 

01-Jan-20 16.2 19+ 
Year 

Knowarth 
Technologies 

Private 
Limited 

 

 

-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduc�on to GIS, Industry Structure and Development

So�ware and compu�ng technology are transforming businesses in every industry around the world in a very 
profound and fundamental way. As the world has become progressively versa�le and technologically more  

developed, the need to locate people, places and things to derive useful informa�on from loca�on has gained 
increased importance. Geospa�al popularly known as 'GIS' data is dynamic in nature and requires periodic 
updates as there are con�nuous changes in the real world. Advance remote sensing and IOT sensor technology 
has made it easy to capture ever changing real world with loca�on a�ribute effec�vely. Integrated view and 
geospa�al analy�cs of loca�on aware data has thrown many poten�al uses cases across various industry 
domains. Emergence of COVID-19 pandemic has put the focus back on effec�veness of geo-spa�al data and 
technology for targeted response and mi�ga�on planning by government across the globe. New geospa�al 
techniques are being evolved to address the customary issues more viably in less �me. The geospa�al industry 
and its users are now aggressively tes�ng these techniques to embrace them into the mainstream workflows of 
the organiza�ons. The ability to visualize geographic data is becoming a standard and required part of many 
businesses and government administrators.   Thus, increased adop�on of GIS technology as decision making 
back bone for many organisa�ons in different industry ver�cal across globe acts as opportunity for growth of 
geospa�al market. 

Technology interven�on like GIS in ac�ng as boon for vast and diverse country like India. Vision of ISRO's 
founder Dr. Vikram Sarabhai to use remote sensing technology for large good of society is really coming true 
now with aggressive adop�on of GIS technology to address challenges across various sector in India. It is widely 
used for urban planning and administra�on, developing smart ci�es, asset management, Agriculture and 
forest, , disaster management, water resource management, Defense, home land Security and law 
enforcement agencies, land records management, geology and mining, heath care, u�li�es like power, gas, 
Telecommunica�on, water etc. Analysis of real �me as well as �me series data is key drivers of GIS usage. 
Integra�ng GIS with transac�onal system in government administra�on is helping to bring about major change 
in form of transparency and automa�on, which further pushed aggressive adop�on of GIS in public sector.

GLOBAL OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic is inflic�ng high and rising human costs worldwide, and the necessary protec�on 
measures are severely impac�ng economic ac�vity. As a result of the pandemic, the global economy is 
projected to contract sharply by –3 percent in 2020, much more than during the 2008–09 financial crisis. In a 
baseline scenario--which assumes that the pandemic fades in the second half of 2020 and containment efforts 
can be gradually unwound—the global economy is projected to grow by 5.8 percent in 2021 as economic 
ac�vity normalizes, helped by policy support. 

The global geographic informa�on systems (GIS) market size is expected to grow from USD 8.1 billion in 2020 to 
USD 14.5 billion by 2025 at a CAGR of 12.4% from 2020 to 2025. The key factor driving the growth of the GIS 
industry are the development of smart ci�es and urbaniza�on, integra�on of geospa�al technology with 
mainstream technologies for business intelligence, and growing adop�on of GIS solu�ons in the transporta�on 
sector. However, geospa�al data barrier and high costs associated with GIS solu�ons pose a major restraining 
factor for the growth of this market.

PERFORMANCE SNAPSHOT

During the year under review, there has been a marginal impact of COVID-19 on Project Deliveries due to the 
Lockdown in the last quarter of the year. However, the Company has been able achieve higher profits as 
compared previous year. Also, there has been visible improvement in the Topline of the Company. We remain 
focused on execu�ng our strategy and increasing momentum of our businesses across the key sector for long 
term, sustainable growth.
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Your company's customer centric approach to provide comprehensive solu�on for customer's business 
challenge has helped in acquiring many turn key enterprise GIS solu�on in the domain of smart ci�es, urban 
planning, spa�al data registry, land records etc. Partnership with large MSIs (Master System Integrator) and GIS 
service providers has further enhanced the reach of your company. To boost it's product license your company 
has added IGiS CAD as standalone product for target segment of AEC, mechanical and electrical engineering in 
this financial year.

In line with “Make in India” campaign of Government of India, your company has contributed in the field of GIS 
& Image Processing so�ware technology, in consor�um with Indian Space Research Organisa�on (ISRO), 
Government of India. Your Company has con�nued with its research and development ac�vi�es with regard to 
it's product. 

COMPANY PROSPECT AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The main business of the company is to provide IGiS technology in the domain of Geoma�cs to several business 
areas. Geoma�cs is now being used in various segments including Environment, Healthcare, Forestry, 
Emergency Response, Land Informa�on, Transporta�on, Resource Explora�on, Agriculture, 
Telecommunica�on, Urban Planning & Infrastructure, Defense & Security, Developing Smart Ci�es and Power & 
Gas U�li�es. An Indigenous technology is the strongest a�ribute of the Company. With the policy ini�a�ve of 
government of India to provide preference to “Make In India” product for all government purchases, your 
company is well poised to seize the ini�a�ve to fuel next phase of growth.  Considering the usage of IGiS 
Technology in various ver�cals, your management strives to iden�fy the growth opportuni�es to deliver strong 
performance.

The management is focusing on solu�on ver�cal like Smart City, Urban Planning and Infrastructure, Defense & 
Security, law enforcement agencies, forest and Agriculture, land records, disaster management and u�li�es. In 
smart city domain you company has emerged as key player by bagging orders for implementa�on of enterprise 
GIS solu�on for many ci�es. With established creden�al and healthy funnel of many upcoming smart city 
projects in near future, we expect exponen�al revenue growth in smart city ver�cal. We believe that technology 
founda�on being created in smart ci�es is just a start and many Geo-enabled use cases like 3D city modelling in 
urban planning, smart u�lity management, smart environment management etc. has huge poten�al in short to 
medium term �me frame. Many government welfares schemes for agriculture sector would need geo-mapping 
of land records for effec�ve implementa�on. We expect significant poten�al for long terms orders as well as 
revenue conversion in this domain mainly due to proven IGiS-LIS developed by your company. With focus to 
improve farm produc�vity, solu�on like IGiS-AIS (Agriculture Informa�on system) has resonated well with many 
government authori�es. We see with increased use of remote sensing technology in agriculture sector, this 
ver�cal would be a long medium to long term growth driver for your company. As Make In India product, 
defence has always been a next big thing for us. Having proven our capability and product maturity through 
mul�ple order execu�on as well as series of technology evangelism with Indian armed forces, your company is 
well placed to increase penetra�on in defence sector. Strong push for indigenous technology under 
Atmanirbhar Bharat it would only accelerate the pace further. Since long, u�lity industry has seen the strong 
ROI for investment in GIS. We see a huge jump in need for GIS implementa�on in ver�cals like gas, telecom, 
power and water due to various government ini�a�ves like bharatnet project to link all villages with fiber, 
gran�ng of CGD (City Gas Grid) license for many ci�es, next phase of IPDS ( Integrated power distribu�on 
scheme) implementa�on and  “Nal se Jal” scheme of GoI for providing tapped water supply to each house holds 
by 2024. Your Company has developed effec�ve solu�ons for the all these ver�cals  which duly comply with 
Digital India Ini�a�ves. Apart from this, GoI's commitment for reform in space technology, new geo spa�al and 
remote sensing policy in near future can be a game changer to unlock the value for geo-spa�al industry at a 
large. You company is closing monitoring the development and ready to cease the opportunity on back of it's 
exis�ng partnership with ISRO. With increased reach in market through direct sales team as well as partners, 
We are well placed in market to explore and tap into  the opportuni�es in GIS. 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue from opera�ons

The revenue from opera�ons stood at ₹ 4924.62 lakhs as compared to ₹ 4127.07 lakhs in the previous year.

Profit Before Tax /Profit A�er Tax

During the year under review profit before tax stood at ₹ 250.44 lakhs as compared to previous year ₹ 225.37 
lakhs and Profit a�er tax for the year under review stood at ₹ 174.29 as compared to previous year ₹ 167.49 
lakhs.

Deprecia�on

During the year under review the deprecia�on is ₹ 87.75 Lakhs as compared to ₹ 78.15 Lakhs in the previous 
year.

Balance sheet

Equity and Other Equity

The Equity and Other Equity (includes Paid up Capital, Security Premium and other reserves), during the year 
under review stood at ̀ 5570.29 lakhs as compared to ̀  4423.80  lakhs. 

Property Plant & Equipment

During the year under review, the Company has purchased Computers, Peripherals and other installa�on. 
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets of the Company stood at ` 180.81 Lakhs as compared to
 ̀  146.18 Lakhs in the previous year.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables, during the year under review, stood at `1194.10 Lakhs as against ` 1448.62 Lakhs in the 
previous year. 

Trade Payables

Trade Payable was ̀  114.59 Lakhs at the end of current fiscal as compared to ̀  358.40 Lakhs in the previous year. 

Details of Significant Changes in the Key Financial Ra�os & Return on Net Worth (details to be taken from the 
accounts)

Pursuant to amendment made in Schedule V to the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, details of significant changes (i.e. 
change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in Key Financial Ra�os and 
since there were no changes above 25% as compared to immediately previous financial year. Henceforth the 
explana�on for the change in financial ra�os is not required.

  Par�cular March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Change between current
   FY & Previous FY

  Debtor Turnover 3.69 3.31 0.38

  Inventory Turnover NA NA NA

  Current Ra�o 1.70 1.48 0.22

  Debt Equity Ra�o 0.62 0.61 0.01

  Interest Coverage Ra�o 2.41 2.89 -0.48

  Opera�ng Profit Margin (%) 8.79 8.68 0.11

RISKS & CONCERNS

As it is normal and prevalent for any business, the Company also is likely to face compe��on from exis�ng 
companies. There can be risks inherent in mee�ng unforeseen situa�ons, not common in the industry. Your 
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Company also recognizes the risks associated with business and takes adequate measures to address the 
associated risks and concern. 

Except as otherwise stated and the Risk factors men�oned here, the following important factors could also 
cause the actual results to differ materiality from the expecta�ons:

· Changes in domes�c laws, regula�ons and taxes.

· Failure to obtain and retain certain approvals and licenses.

· Risk in realiza�on of Con�ngent Liabili�es.

· Termina�on of customer contracts without cause and with no�ce period or penalty.

· Occurrence of natural disasters or calami�es, pandemic or socio-poli�cal unrest affec�ng the areas in 
which we have opera�ons.

· Disrup�on in sources of funding could adversely affect the liquidity and financial posi�on of the Company 
however, the Company meets its funding requirements from diverse sources i.e. Shareholder funding, 
secured and unsecured loan and several other credit facili�es.

The Company has laid down a well defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping, risk 
exposure, poten�al impact and risk mi�ga�on process. The Board periodically reviews the risk and suggests the 
steps to be taken to control and mi�gate the same through properly defined framework.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

SGL has proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded, and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposi�on, and that transac�ons are authorized, recorded 
and reported correctly.

The internal control systems are supplemented by an extensive programme of internal audits, reviews by 
management, and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal control systems are designed 
to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data, and 
for maintaining accountability of assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company's HR philosophy is to establish and build a high performing organiza�on, where each individual is 
mo�vated to perform to the fullest capacity: to contribute to developing and achieving individual excellence 
and departmental objec�ves and con�nuously improve performance to realize the full poten�al of our 
personnel. Industrial rela�ons are cordial and sa�sfactory.

We con�nuously strive to a�ract and retain the best talent from the local markets; clearly define their roles and 
responsibili�es; include them into robust performance management systems; create an inspiring and 
rewarding work environment; engage them into an inclusive work place; impart training and create 
development opportuni�es for increasing employee knowledge and efficiency to make them future ready and 
to create career opportuni�es. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objec�ves, projec�ons 
es�mates, and excep�ons may be "forward looking statements" within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regula�ons. These statements are based on certain assump�ons and expecta�ons of future events. Actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factor that could make a difference to 
the Company's opera�ons include economic condi�ons affec�ng demand/ supply and price condi�ons in the 
domes�c and overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the Government regula�ons, tax 
laws and other statutes and other incidental factor The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, 
modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, informa�on or 
events.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(As required under SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 as amended from 
�me to �me)

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Director present the Company's Corporate Governance Report for the year ended March 31, 2020 in terms of 
Regula�on 34(3) read with schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 
(hereina�er referred as “Lis�ng Regula�on.”)

SGL's Corporate Governance philosophy is about intellectual honesty whereby the governance is not just about 
encompassing regulatory and legal requirements but also strives to enhance stakeholders' value as a whole. Your 
Company belongs to a legacy where the visionary founders laid the stone for good governance. Your company's 
philosophy includes protec�on and facilita�on of shareholder's rights, provide adequate and �mely informa�on, 
opportunity to par�cipate effec�vely in general mee�ng and ensure equitable treatment to all shareholders. 

Your company also ensures �mely and accurate disclosure on all the material ma�ers including the financial situa�on,  
performance, ownership and governance of the Company. The Company views corporate governance in its widest sense, 
almost like trusteeship, integrity, transparency, accountability and compliance with laws which are the columns of good 
governance and are reflected in the Company's business prac�ces to ensure ethical and responsible leadership both at 
the Board and at the Management Level. 

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is to enhance the long-term economic value of the Company and 
give sustainable return to its stakeholders i.e. the society at large by adop�ng best corporate prac�ces in fair and 
transparent manner by aligning interest of the Company with that of its shareholders / other key stakeholders. Corporate 
Governance is not merely compliance and not simply crea�ng checks and balances, it is an ongoing measure of superior 
delivery of Company's objects with a view to translate opportuni�es into reality. This, together with sustainable 
development a�ributes followed by the Company, has enabled your Company to earn trust and goodwill of its investors, 
business partners, employees and the communi�es in which it operates. The Company places emphasis on integrity of 
internal control systems and accountability and total compliance with all statutory and / or regulatory requirements. 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composi�on and Category of Board of Directors as on March 31, 2020:

The Board of Directors of the Company have an op�mum combina�on of Execu�ve and Non-Execu�ve Directors and in 
conformity with the provisions of Regula�on 17 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015. The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 10 (Ten) 10 Directors – 3 (Three) Execu�ve Directors and 7 
(Seven) Non-Execu�ve Directors, of whom 5 (Five) are Independent Directors including 1 (One) Independent Women 
Director. The Board does not have any nominee director as on March 31, 2020.

The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Lis�ng 
Regula�ons. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as men�oned under the Regula�on 
16(1)(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.1 Brief Profile of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises of Professionals from the diverse fields. They bring to the force a wide range of 
skills and experience to the Board  which make the Board's decision effec�ve.

The following is the list of core skills/exper�se/competencies iden�fied by the Board of Directors as required in the 
context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to func�on effec�vely and those actually available with the Board

 1. Nature of Industry: Knowledge of industry, policies, major risks / threats and poten�al opportuni�es in 
which the Company operate.

 2. Financial Management: Experience in accoun�ng / finance/ Government or public policy / economy / 
strategy development and implementa�on.

 3. Governance: Governance competencies like compliance focus, risk management experience, 
building long term effec�ve stakeholder engagements and driving corporate ethics and value.

 4. Strategic Planning: Evalua�ng long term projec�ons, experience in guiding and leading 
management teams to make decision in uncertain condi�ons.
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 5. Technology: An�cipa�ng in Technological trends, developing the so�ware programs Quality assurance and 
design so�ware.

The table below expresses the specific areas of focus or exper�se of individual Board members. However, 
absence of a �ck mark does not necessarily mean the member does not possess the corresponding 
skills/exper�se.

2. Details of Listed En�ty where the person is Director and Category of Directorship as on March 31, 2020.
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3   Names and categories of Directors, number of Board Mee�ngs held and a�ended by Directors, number 
of Directorship held in other public companies, a�endance of last annual general mee�ng and number 
of shares held as on March 31, 2020 are given below:

Name of 

Director 

Category No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

Held 

during the 

year  

No. of 

Board  

Meetings  

attend 

during the 

year  

Attended  

last  

AGM 

 

No of 

Directorship 

in other 

Indian 

Public Limited 

Companies 

 

No of committee 

/chairmanship/m

embership held 

in public 

companies 

(including 

Scanpoint 

Geomatics Ltd.) 

No of Shares 

held as on 

March 31, 

2020 

Mr. Ramesh  

Sojitra  

Chairmanand 

Managing Director 

11 11 Yes Nil 2 7,37,319 

Mr. Chirag 

Soni 

CTO and Whole 

Time Director 

11 10 Yes Nil 1 5,00,000 

Mr. Kantilal 

Ladani  

CFO and Director 11 11 Yes 1 1 2,70,810 

Mr. Mitesh 

Sanghvi 

 

Non-Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 6 No Nil 2 Nil 

Mr. Manish 

Kumar Dangi 

 

Non-Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 6 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Dinesh 

Shah  

Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 11 Yes 1 4 Nil 

Mr. Ankur 

Fofaria 

 

Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Mr.  Suresh 

Tejwani 

Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Kalpesh 

Rachchh 

Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Ms. Pooja 

Shah  

Independent, 

Non-Executive 

Director 

11 11 Yes Nil 3 Nil 

 As required under Regula�on 26(b) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”) the Chairmanship and Memberships in Audit Commi�ee and Stakeholders' 
Rela�onship Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee are only considered. Other directorships 
do not include directorships held in private limited companies. The Company is in compliance with the 
composi�on of Board of Directors in terms of the Lis�ng Regula�ons. None of the Non-Execu�ve Directors 
held shares in the Company.

4. Informa�on Material

 The Company has a system to circulate and provide adequate informa�on to the Board, including minimum 
informa�on to be placed before the Board as required under Part- A of Schedule II of Lis�ng Regula�ons to 
enable the Board to take informed decisions. As required under Regula�on 17(3) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, 
the Board periodically reviews compliances of various laws applicable to the Company.
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5. Date and Number of Board Mee�ngs Held: 

 During the year 2019-20, 11 (Eleven) Mee�ngs were held on the following dates: May 3, 2019, May 15, 
2019, May 30, 2019, June 24, 2019, August 2, 2019 August 7, 2019, September 3, 2019, September 30, 
2019, October 7, 2019, December 14, 2019 and February 14, 2020. The Company has observed the 
provisions of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 regarding mee�ng 
of Board of Directors and that the �me gap between two consecu�ve board mee�ngs was not more than 
one hundred and twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all the mee�ngs.

6. Performance Evalua�on of Directors:

 The Board of directors have approved and laid down the criteria for performance evalua�on of all 
Directors by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee. The performance evalua�on has been done 
by the en�re Board of Directors, except the Director concerned being evaluated at the separate mee�ngs 
of Independent Directors and Non-Independent Directors held. The criteria for performance evalua�on 
are as follows: 

· To understand the nature and role of Independent Director's posi�on. 

· Understand the risks associated with the business. 

· Applica�on of knowledge for rendering advice to the Management for resolu�on of business issues. 

· Offer construc�ve challenge to management strategies and proposals.

· Non-par�san appraisal of issues.

· Give own recommenda�ons professionally without tending to majority or popular views. 

· Handling issues as Chairman of Board and other commi�ees.

· Driving any func�on or ini�a�ve based on domain knowledge and experience.

· Level of commitment to roles and fiduciary responsibili�es as a Board Member.

· A�endance and ac�ve par�cipa�on.

· Ability to think proac�ve, strategic and laterally. 

7. Separate Mee�ng of Independent Directors:- 

 As s�pulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and with Regula�on 
25 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�on, 2015, a separate mee�ng of 
the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 20, 2020 in which majority Independent 
Directors were present and they have discussed and evaluated:

· Performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;

· Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Execu�ve Directors 
and Non-Execu�ve Directors.

· Quality, quan�ty content and �melines of flow of informa�on between the Management and the 
Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform its du�es.

 7.1  Familiariza�on Programme for Directors 

   Your company follows a structured familiariza�on programme through various reports and internal 
policies for all the Directors with a view to update them on the Company's policies on a regular 
basis. A detailed Familiariza�on programme as followed by the Company is available at 
h�ps://www.sgligis.com/wp-content/uploads/Familiarisa�on-Programme.pdf

 7.2   Confirma�on as regards independence of Independent Directors

   In the opinion of the Board, both the exis�ng Independent Directors and those who is    proposed to 
be re-appointed at the Annual General Mee�ng, fulfill the condi�ons specified in the Lis�ng 
Regula�ons and are independent of the Management.
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 7.3  Criteria for Evalua�on of Independent Directors

   Performance of evalua�on of Independent Directors shall be done by the en�re Board of Directors,   
excluding the director being evaluated.

   Independent Director shall be evaluated on the basis of Role and Func�ons performed and du�es 
discharged by him during the year. Their role, func�ons and du�es are evaluated on the basis of 
criteria such as a�endance and contribu�on in the mee�ng, exercise of Independent Judgment, 
Managing Rela�onship with fellow Board Members, their knowledge and skill, assist the Company 
in implemen�ng best corporate governance prac�ces and its monitor, level of confiden�ality and  
ethical standards of integrity and probity.

8. Code of Conduct 

 The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and senior management Personnel 
which is posted on the website of the Company. All Board members have affirmed the compliance with 
this Code of Conduct. Consequently Chairman and Managing Director has signed a declara�on sta�ng 
that the member of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed Compliance 
with the Code of Conduct.

9. Audit Commi�ee

 The Audit Commi�ee of the Company consists of 3 Directors consis�ng of independent and execu�ve 
directors. All members of the Audit Commi�ee have accoun�ng and financial management exper�se. 
7 ( Seven) Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs were held during the period under review viz., May  3, 2019, May 
30, 2019, August 02, 2019, September 30, 2019, October 7, 2019, January 3, 2019 and February 14, 2020. 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Commi�ee. 

 The Audit Commi�ee reviews the ma�ers falling in its terms of reference and addresses larger issues and 
examines those facts that could be of vital concerns to the Company. The terms of reference of the Audit 
Commi�ee cons�tuted by the Board in terms of Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, broadly includes 
ma�ers pertaining to adequacy of internal control systems, review of financial repor�ng process, 
discussion of financial results, interac�on with auditors, appointment and remunera�on of auditors, 
adequacy of disclosures and other relevant ma�ers.

 The role of Audit Commi�ee shall include the following:

· The recommenda�on of appointment, remunera�on and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
Company. 

· Review and monitor the auditors' independence, their performance and effec�veness of audit 
process.

· Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval, with par�cular reference to. 

· Ma�ers required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board 
Report in terms of Sec�on 134 of the Act.

· Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reason for the same. 

· Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements. 

· Disclosure of any related party transac�ons.

· Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board 
for approval.

· Approval or subsequent modifica�on of transac�ons of the listed en�ty with related par�es. 

· Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

· Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
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internal control systems. 

· Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

· To review the func�oning of the whistle blower mechanism. 

· Carrying out any other func�on as is men�oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee.

· Oversight of the en�ty's financial repor�ng process and the disclosure of its financial informa�on to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

· Iden�fying and managing risks to the company. 

· Reviewing  the  u�liza�on of  loans  and/  or  advances  from/investment  by  the holding  company  in  
the  subsidiary  exceeding  rupees  100  crore  or  10%  of  the  asset size  of  the  subsidiary,  whichever  
is  lower  including  exis�ng  loans  /  advances  / investments exis�ng as on the date of coming into 
force of this provision.

  Composi�on of Audit Commi�ee

  The composi�on of the audit commi�ee as on March 31, 2020 is as under: 

10. Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee

 The terms of reference of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee cover all applicable ma�ers 
specified under SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements)Regula�ons, 2015 and Sec�on 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee comprises of 3 (Three) members consis�ng of 
Independent Director and Non-Execu�ve Director. During the year, 3 (Three) mee�ng of Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee were held i.e. May 3, 2019, August 7, 2019 and February 14, 2020. The  
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Nomina�on and Remunera�on. 

 The role of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee shall include the following:

· Iden�fy persons qualified to become directors or hold senior management posi�ons and advise the 
Board for such appointments / removals where necessary. 

· Formulate criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of director and 
recommend to the Board a policy rela�ng to the remunera�on of directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees.

· Evaluate the performance of every director.

· Devising a policy on Board diversity. 

· Whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent directors, on the basis of 
the report of their performance evalua�on. 

· Recommend to the board, all remunera�on, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
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 Remunera�on Policy 

 Company's remunera�on policy is based on the principles of pay for growth. Keeping in view of the above, 
the Remunera�on Commi�ee is being vested with all the necessary powers and authori�es to ensure 
appropriate disclosures on remunera�on to the Execu�ve Directors. The remunera�on policy is directed 
towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements on a periodical basis. The 
remunera�on policy is in consonance with the exis�ng industry prac�ce. 

 Remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Employees Policy is available on the 
website of the Company at h�ps://www.sgligis.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/Remunera�on-of-
Directors-Key-Managerial-Personnel-and-Senior-Employees-Policy.pdf

 As for the Non-execu�ve Directors, their appointment on the Board is for the benefit of the Company due 
to their vast professional exper�se in their individual capacity.

 Remunera�on To Directors

 The details of remunera�on and si�ng fees paid or provided to each of the Directors during the year 
ended March 31, 2020 are given below:

 Note:

§ Salary includes Basic Salary, Allowances, Perquisites (including monetary value of taxable perquisites), etc.

§ The Non Execu�ve Directors are not paid any remunera�on. 
** Mr. Kan�lal Ladani does not form the part of remunera�on.

11. Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee

 The Company has a structured system of reviewing Shareholder's/ Investors' complaints.  A Commi�ee of 
Directors designated as “Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee” is cons�tuted to review the status of 

Amount in ` 

 Composi�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee

 As on March 31, 2020, the following Directors were members of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on 
Commi�ee: 
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investors' grievances and effec�ve redressal of the complaints of the shareholders. 

 The Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee looks a�er the complaints made by any shareholder of the 
company and prompt redressal of complaint made. Majority of complaints received are rela�ng to share 
transfers/ transmission, non-receipt of Annual report. The commi�ee also recommends steps to be taken 
for future improvement in the quality of service to the investors. As on March 31, 2020, the Stakeholder 
and Rela�onship Commi�ee consists of 5 (Five) Directors with an op�mum mix of Independent, Non-
execu�ve and Execu�ve directors. During the year 2 (two) mee�ng of Stakeholder Rela�onship 
Commi�ee were held i.e August 19, 2019 and October 07, 2019. The Company Secretary acts as the 
Secretary of Commi�ee.

 As on March 31, 2020 No Investor complaints were remain unresolved.

 The role of Stakeholder and Rela�onship Commi�ee shall include the following:

· Resolving  the  grievances  of  the  security  holders  of  the  listed  en�ty including complaints related 
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new/duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.

· Review   of   measures   taken   for   effec�ve   exercise   of   vo�ng   rights   by shareholders.

· Review  of  adherence  to  the  service  standards  adopted  by  the  listed  en�ty  in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

· Review  of  the  various  measures  and  ini�a�ves  taken  by  the  listed en�ty  for reducing  the  
quantum  of  unclaimed  dividends  and  ensuring  �mely  receipt  of  dividend warrants/annual 
reports/statutory no�ces by the shareholders of the company.

 Composi�on

 As on March 31, 2020 Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee consists of following Directors: 

12. Risk Management Policy

 The Board of Directors has framed, approved and implemented risk management policy of the Company 
including iden�fica�on and elimina�on of risk. The Primary purpose of policy is to review the major risks 
iden�fied by the Management along with mi�ga�on plan, Monitoring and reviewing the Company's Risk 
Management plan and to apprise the Board on the risk assessment and minimiza�on process. The risk 
management policy is available on the website of the Company https://www.sgligis.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/07/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf

13. Code of Fair Disclosure

 The Company's Code of Conduct has been complied with by all the members of the Board and selected 
employees of the Company. The Company has in place a preserva�on of Insider Trading Code based on 
SEBI (Insider Trading Regula�ons) 2018. This code is applicable to all the Directors and designated 
employees. The code ensures preven�on of dealing in shares by persons having access to the 
unpublished price sensi�ve informa�on.  The Code of Conduct is made available on the website of the 
Company https://www.sgligis.com/investors/#governance.  
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No Special Resolu�ons were passed by Company in last three Annual General Mee�ng and No Extra 
Ordinary General Mee�ng (EGM) was held during the year 2019-20.

15. Disclosures: 

 A. Related Party Transac�on:

  Pursuant to provisions of regula�on 23(2) read with schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015, all the related party transac�on are approved by the Audit Commi�ee as per 

the terms and condi�ons of the Lis�ng Regula�ons. The details showing the related party transac�on are 

provided in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended on March 

31, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of prescribed Accoun�ng Standard. The Policy on materiality and 

dealing with related party transac�ons has been posted on the website of the Company 

h�ps://www.sgligis.com/investors/#governance

 B. Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

  The Company has complied with the requirements of the provisions of Corporate Governance specified under 

the Lis�ng Regula�ons, as well as with the Regula�ons of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India and such other 

authority rela�ng to the Capital Markets.

  There has been no instance of non Compliance by Company on any ma�er related to Capital Markets during the 

last three years and no penalty has been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other 

Statutory Authority.

 C. Disclosure of Accoun�ng Treatment 

  In prepara�on of the Financial Statements, the Company has followed the applicable Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards. The Significant Accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on and presenta�on of financial 

statements have been set in Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 

March 31, 2020.

16 Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

 Pursuant to Sec�on 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 22 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 

Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for Vigil Mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the 

management about the unethical behavior, fraud or viola�on of Company's code of conduct. The mechanism 

provides for adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of employees and directors who use such mechanism and 

makes provision for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Commi�ee in excep�onal cases. None of the 

personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. The Vigil Mechanism policy has been 

posted on the website of the Company h�ps://www.sgligis.com/investors/#governance.

14. General Mee�ngs: 

 Details of Loca�on and �me for the last three Annual General Mee�ngs (AGM) of the Company are as under:
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17 Subsidiaries Companies

 During the year, none of the subsidiaries of the Company comes under the purview of the material non-listed 

subsidiary as per criteria given in Regula�on 16(1)(C) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 The policy for determining the material subsidiaries has been posted on the website of the Company. 

h�ps://www.sgligis.com/investors/#governance

18 Means of Communica�on 

 The Company has published its Quarterly / Half yearly / Annual Financial Results in a daily news papers “Financial 

Express” both English and in principle vernacular language of the district where the registered office of the 

Company is situated. 

 These results are not sent individually to the shareholders but are displayed on the Company's website 

www.sgligis.com. The result was also submi�ed to Stock Exchanges as per Regula�on 33 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. No presenta�ons were made to the ins�tu�onal investors or to 

the analysts.

19 Green Ini�a�ve

 The Company's philosophy focuses on making the environment greener for the benefit of prosperity. To support 

the Green Ini�a�ve, members (holding shares in electronic form) who have not registered their email addresses, 

are requested to register the same with their Depository Par�cipants. Members holding shares in physical mode 

are requested to register their email ID with Link In�me India Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of 

the Company.

20 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION: 

 20.1 Annual General Mee�ng
th   As indicated in the no�ce accompanying this Annual Report, the 28  AGM of the Company will be held on

Monday, September 28, 2020 at 12:30 P.M. through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means 

(OAVM).

 20.2 Book Closure 

   The Transfer books will remain closed from Wednesday, September 23, 2020 to Monday, September 28, 

2020 (Both days inclusive).

 20.3 � Financial Year: April, 01 to March, 31

 20.4 � Stock Exchange where Equity Shares of the Company are listed and scrip code for the Company's are as 

follow:

 20.5 Payment of Lis�ng Fees: The Company has paid the Lis�ng Fees for the year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021.

 20.6 � CIN: L22219GJ1992PLC017073

 20.7 � Address for Correspondence for Share/Debenture and Related Ma�ers

· Company's Secretarial Department for any kind of correspondence:

    Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

12, Abhishree Corporate Park, Iskcon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad – 380058

Phone: 02717-297096 Website: www.sgligis.com Email: info@sgligis.com

· Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: 

Link In�me India Private Limited (Investor Rela�on office at Ahmedabad)
th5  Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre – 1 (ABC-1) 

Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, Off C G Road, Ahmedabad - 380006

Phone: 079 - 2646 5179/86/87   Website: www.linkin�me.co.in   Email: ahmedabad@linkin�me.co.in

 

Name of Stock Exchange Scrip Code 

BSE Limited 526544 
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The Company has not issued any GDR's/ADR's warrants or any other conver�ble instruments. 
 20.9 Distribu�on of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020

 20.10 Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2020

 20.8 Dematerialized Mode

    The Company's ISIN No. for both the depositories is INE967B01028.

   Details of Equity Shares of the Company held in demat form as on March 31, 2020 is as under:- 
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 20.11 Stock Market Data
   Monthly High and Low quota�ons of share traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange is as follows:

21  OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 21.1� Statutory Compliance, Penal�es and Structures 

During the year, there were no penal�es imposed by SEBI or Stock Exchanges or any statutory 
authority, for non-compliance of any ma�er related to the capital markets during the last three 
years.

 21.2 Code of Conduct for Prohibi�on of Insider Trading

Your company had adopted a Code of conduct as per SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) 
Regula�ons, 2018 as amended from �me to �me. All Directors, Designated Employees who could 
have access to the Unpublished Price Sensi�ve Informa�on of the Company are governed by this 
Code. During the year under review, the Company had made due compliance with SEBI (Prohibi�on 
of Insider trading) Regula�ons, 2018. 
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 21.3 Proceeds From Public Issues, Rights Issues, Preferen�al Issues Etc.

The Company discloses to the Audit Commi�ee, the uses / applica�on of proceeds /funds raised 
from Rights Issue, Preferen�al Issue as part of the quarterly review of financial results whenever 
applicable.

 21.4� Cer�ficate of Non-Disqualifica�on of Directors 

The Company has obtained cer�ficate from CS Harish Jain, Prac�cing Company Secretary 
confirming that none of the Directors of the Company is debarred or disqualified by the Securi�es 
and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority from being 
appointed or con�nuing as Director of the Company and the same is also a�ached to this Report.

 21.5 Total Fees for all Services paid by the Listed En�ty and its Subsidiaries, on a Consolidated basis, to 
the Statutory auditor

 21.6 Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, 
Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013

  As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on 
& Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has cons�tuted Internal 
Complaints Commi�ee which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual 
harassment. During the year under review, there were no complaints pertaining to sexual 
harassment.

 21.7 Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 

  The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down under the provision of 
Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

 21.8 Shareholding Pa�ern as on March 31, 2020 

`

`

`

1,04,850/-

5,54,850/-



51

 21.9 Reconcilia�on of Share Capital Audit

  As s�pulated by SEBI, Prac�cing Chartered Accountant carry out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the 
total admi�ed capital with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every 
quarter. The audit confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital is in agreement with the 
aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized from (held with NSDL and CDSL) and 
total number of shares in physical form.

 21.10 CEO/CFO Cer�fica�on

  The CEO / CFO of the company have given cer�fica�on on the financial repor�ng and internal 
controls to the Board in terms of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015. The CEO/CFO has also given quarterly cer�fica�on on financial results to the 
Board in terms of Regula�on 33 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015.

  The Company has complied with major provisions specified in the Regula�on 17 to 27 and Clause 
(b) to (i) of Sub-Regula�on 46 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015. 

 For and on behalf of the Board

Date:   August 25, 2020  

Place: Ahmedabad Ramesh Sojitra Chirag Soni

 Managing Director Director

 DIN : 00016149   DIN : 01684683
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Corporate Governance Compliance Cer�ficate

To,
The Members of
Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

We have examined the compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance by SCANPOINT GEOMATICS 
LIMITED for the year ended March 31 2020, as s�pulated in SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 of the said Company with Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examina�on was limited to procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the 
compliance of the condi�ons of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has generally complied with the mandatory condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.�
We state that no investor grievance(s) is/are pending for a period exceeding for one month against the 
Company as per the records maintained by the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Harish P. Jain & Associates

 Prac�cing Company Secretary

 

Date: August 25, 2020 Harish Jain

Place: Ahmedabad Proprietor

 FCS.:  4203      CP No.: 4100
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng

Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015)

To,

The Members of

SCANPOINT GEOMATICS LIMITED

9, MAHAKANT COMPLEX,OPP. V. S. HOSPITAL, 

ASHRAM ROAD, AHMEDABAD – 380006, GUJARAT, INDIA.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
SCANPOINT GEOMATICS LIMITED having CIN L22219GJ1992PLC017073 and having registered office at 9, 
MAHAKANT COMPLEX, OPP. V. S. HOSPITAL, ASHRAM ROAD, AHMEDABAD- 380006 GUJARAT, INDIA. 
(hereina�er referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Cer�ficate, in accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(I) of the 
Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors 
Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana�ons 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 
the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifica�on. 
This cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For, Harish P. Jain & Associates
 Prac�cing Company Secretary

Date: August 25, 2020 

Place: Ahmedabad Harish Jain

 Proprietor
 FCS: 4203 C.P. No.: 4100
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with exis�ng accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons.

3. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company during the year 
ended March 31, 2020 which are fraudulent, illegal or viola�on of the Company's Code of Conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have 
evaluated the effec�veness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Commi�ee, efficiencies in the design or opera�on of internal control system, if any, 
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rec�fy these deficiencies.

5. We further cer�fy that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Commi�ee:

 a) There have been no significant changes in internal control system during the year;

 b) There have been no significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year and that the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

 c) There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, involving 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.

For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

Date: August 25, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad            Ramesh Sojitra                      Kan�lal Ladani

        Managing Director             Chief Financial Officer

               DIN: 00016149                            DIN: 00016171
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SCANPOINT GEOMATICS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Scanpoint Geoma�cs Ltd. (“the 

company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for 

the year then ended, and a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards prescribed 

under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 

(“Ind AS”) and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 

year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng 

specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibili�es under those standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibiliy for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements sec�on of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of 

Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

1. Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers. We have determined the ma�ers 

described below to be the key audit ma�ers to be communicated in our report.
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Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

· The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on 
comprises the informa�on included in the Board's Report, Management discussion and Analysis and 
Report on corporate governance but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

· Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

· In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

· If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements �
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accoun�ng principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng 
frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments 
and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate 

Key Audit Matters How our auditor addressed the key audit matter

1. Recoverability of Loans to 
Subsidiary Company

The Company has advanced a sum of 
` 78.45 Lakhs as on March 31, 2020. 
The company had given the advance 
to its subsidiary during the previous 
financial year as well as during the 
current financial year.

The aggregate of advance as on 
March 31, 2019 was ` 52.80 Lakhs 
which has increased to ̀  78.45 Lakhs 
as on March 31, 2020.

This payment is in nature for 
technology transfer to Holding 
Company. When the technology is 
ready for transfer, the said will be 
asset of Holding Company. 

We reviewed management's rational and objective for providing advance to 
subsidiary. We reviewed management's assessment of recoverability 
advances to subsidiary and corroborated the same with the financials of 
subsidiary. We reviewed the Company's internal control system for advancing 
the money to suppliers and subsidiary and carried out a combination of 
procedures involving enquiry and observation and inspection of evidence in 
respect of these loans and advances. Our audit approach consisted testing of 
design and operating effectiveness of internal controls and substantive testing 
as follows: 

Ÿ Review of complete details of advance given to subsidiary and 
corroborating the same with of ledger Accounts and confirmation of 
subsidiary. 

Ÿ Review of onward payment by subsidiary to various parties and with the 
supporting documents / Purchase Orders / Invoices etc. 

Ÿ Reviewed the procedures followed by Scanpoint and subsidiary for 
selection of vendors and justification of terms of payments, delivery, 
warranties/Guarantees etc. 

Ÿ  Assessed present status of Advance, receipt / availability of 
material/services. 

Ÿ  Obtained explanation from the management and went through the report 
obtained by the company from external independent expert on fund 
utilization. Based on our procedures, we found management's judgment 
around the recovery of the Advance to be appropriate. 
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internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the Standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Audi�ng, we exercise    professional judgment and maintain 
professional skep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

· Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Sec�on 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a 
going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
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the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes 
public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Sec�on 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by   the Company so far 
as it appears from our examina�on of those books.

 c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Sec�on 133 of the Act.

 e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 
Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng 
effec�veness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng.

 g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
remunera�on paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,  in our opinion and to the best of 
our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us:

  I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 
standalone financial statements.
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  ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

  iii There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on fund by the company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Sec�on 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the ma�ers 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

 For Jayamal Thakore & Co.
Date: July 28, 2020 Chartered Accountants
Place: Ahmedabad Firm's Registra�on Number: 104098W

   Mudit Singhal
 Partner
 Membership number: 187823
 UDIN: 20187823AAAAAU6504
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec�on of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of 
Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunc�on with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al 
components of internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These  responsibili�es  include  
the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng 
effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”)issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the 
design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit 
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prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or 
�mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial  statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

1. In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial  controls system over financial 
repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 
March 31, 2020, based on the Internal Control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the 
Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

 For Jayamal Thakore & Co.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm's Registra�on Number: 104098W

Date: July 28, 2020
Place: Ahmedabad� Mudit Singhal
 Partner
 Membership number: 187823
 UDIN: 20187823AAAAAU6504
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec�on of our 
report of even date)

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including
 quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of fixed assets.

 (b) According to informa�on and explana�on given to us, during the year, the management conducted 
physical verifica�on of certain fixed assets in accordance with its policy of physical verifica�on in a 
phased manner. In our opinion, such frequency is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its fixed assets. As explained to us, the discrepancies no�ced on physical 
verifica�on as compared to book records maintained, were not material and have been properly 
dealt with in the books of account.

 (c) According to informa�on and explana�on given to us and the records examined by us and based on 
the examina�on of the registered conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the �tle deeds, 
comprising all the immovable proper�es of buildings which are freehold as at the balance sheet 
date, are held in the name of the Company. In respect of immovable proper�es of land that have 
been taken on lease, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is 
the lessee in the agreement.

2. The Company deals in nature of so�ware business in which inventory of the company could not be 
physically verified as all the inventories are of intangible assets. Inventory as on March 31, 2020 is work in 
progress and it would be transferred to unbilled revenue whenever its comple�on stage comes to 100%. 
The inventory of ₹ 3,74,92,559 shown in balance sheet represents project work in progress expenditure 
which is under development stage.

3. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, during the year the Company has granted 
advance of ₹ 78.45 lakhs as on March 31, 2020 to its subsidiary company covered in the register 
maintained under sec�on 189 of companies Act, 2013. The terms are not prejudicial to the Company's 
interest.

4. In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securi�es, as applicable.

5. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 
during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits and hence repor�ng under clause 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable.

6. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sec�on 148(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business ac�vi�es carried out by the Company. Thus repor�ng under 
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

7. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in respect of statutory due:

 (a) The company has generally been regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income–tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
cess and other material Statutory Dues applicable to it with the appropriate authori�es.

 (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund , Employees' State 
Insurance, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears 
except for TDS applicable under Income tax Act, 1961 as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. Details of dues of TDS are as under: 

Name of the 

statue 

Nature of Dues Amount unpaid as on 

September 30, 2019 

(in ` ) 

Amount unpaid as on 

March 31, 2020 

(in ` ) 

Income Tax Act Tax deducted at 

source on Rent 

4,02,033 1,22,773 
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 (c) According to the records of the Company, except Income Tax dues no dues of Service tax, Duty of 

Customs, Excise Duty, Value Added tax, Goods and Service tax, cess which have not been 

deposited on account of disputes.

  The particulars of dues of Income Tax outstanding as at March 31, 2020 which have not been 

deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not committed any default in 
repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. The Company has not borrowed any funds by way of 
issue of debentures. 

9. The Company has not raised any moneys by ways of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under Clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 
However, the company has received ₹ 9,96,77,837(₹ 86,67,638 for face value and ₹  9,10,10,199 for 
securities premium reserve) towards issue of 43,33,819 right shares to its existing shareholders.

10. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
Management.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance 
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the 
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. During the year, the company except shares has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
or fully or partly convertible debentures. During the year the company has issued 43,33,819 right shares of 
face value ₹ 2 per share at a premium of ₹ 21.

15. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

 For Jayamal Thakore & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm's Registration Number: 104098W

Date: July 28, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad Mudit Singhal

 Partner

 Membership number: 187823

 UDIN: 20187823AAAAAU6504

Name of the 

statue  

Nature of 

Dues  

Amount 

unpaid  

(in ` ) 

Period to 

which the 

amount relate  

Forum where 

dispute is 

pending  

Income Tax Act  Income Tax  1,04,86,430  A.Y. 2016-17 CIT(A) -8, Ahmedabad
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

  PARTICULARS  Notes No. As at As at

    March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 I ASSETS

  Non-Current assets 

  Property plant and equipment 5 1,80,80,579 1,46,17,907 

  Intangible asset under development  6 32,20,48,025 20,85,71,089

  Intangible Assets  6 3,70,37,781 4,25,05,909

  Financial Assets - - -

   Investments 7 1,55,06,900 1,41,27,400

   Loans 8 44,00,000 44,00,000

   Other Financial assets  - -

  Other non-current assets 10 3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

  Total non current assets  43,43,88,367 37,94,10,145

  Current assets

  Inventories 11 3,74,92,559 -

  Financial assets  - -

   Trade Receivables 12 11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

   Cash and cash equivalents 13 13,53,252 3,00,333

   Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalent 13 1,05,038 1,63,362

   Loans 8 94,80,511 2,92,10,824

   Other financial assets 9 7,32,85,843 8,24,20,908

  Other current assets 10 22,93,17,826 7,64,55,631

  Total current assets  47,04,44,644 33,34,13,499

  Total Assets  90,48,33,011 71,28,23,644

 II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  Equity

  Equity Share Capital  14 9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

  Other Equity     45,81,90,144 35,22,08,791

  Total Equity    55,70,29,180 44,23,80,189

  Liabili�es 

  Non Current Liabili�es

  Financial liabili�es 

  (i) Borrowings  15             6,75,34,404 4,39,00,145

  Provisions  16                33,76,288 23,83,862

  Total non-current liabili�es               7,09,10,692 4,62,84,007

  Current Liabili�es  

   Financial liabili�es  15 - 7,06,25,329

   Trade payables  17             1,14,58,535 3,58,40,039

   Other financial liabili�es  18           14,40,16,019 4,42,60,349

   Borrowings  15           10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

  Other Current liabili�es  19                49,27,858 79,91,173

  Provisions  16                  1,49,408 1,39,907

   Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 20                65,41,646 59,74,774

  Total current liabili�es            27,68,93,139 22,41,59,448

  Total Equity and Liabili�es             90,48,33,011 71,28,23,644

 Significant accoun�ng policies and notes to accounts 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date 

For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni

 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta

(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary

M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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STANDALONE  STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount in `)

  PARTICULARS  Notes No. 2019-2020 2018-2019

  Revenue from opera�ons 21          48,77,33,843            39,70,46,258
  Other Income 22                47,27,888              1,56,61,327

  Total Income           49,24,61,731            41,27,07,585

  Expenses
   Cost of Materials Consumed 23          23,57,97,966            21,39,01,089 
   Increase in inventories of finished goods, work in
   progress and Stock-in- trade 24           (3,74,92,559) -
   Employee benefits expense 25             8,26,25,250              4,45,37,172
   Finance Costs 26             1,78,14,443              1,19,19,711
   Travel Expenses 27             1,05,49,696                  77,31,581
   Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 5&6                87,75,339                  78,14,943
   Other expense 27          14,93,47,647            10,42,66,109

  Total Expense           46,74,17,782            39,01,70,605

  Profit before tax               2,50,43,949              2,25,36,980

  Tax expense:
    Current tax                 70,47,628                  48,46,607
   Deferred tax                   5,66,872                    9,40,432

  Profit for the period              1,74,29,449              1,67,49,941

  Other Comprehensive Income
   Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
   or loss Remeasurement of the net defined liability/asset                   2,64,499                       73,684
   Equity instruments through other comprehensive income                 10,92,564                (36,21,420)
  Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - -
  Total Comprehensive income, net of tax                 13,57,063                (35,47,736)

  Total Comprehensive income for the period              1,87,86,512              1,32,02,205

  Earning per equity share
  Equity shares of par value ₹ 2 each              4,94,19,518              4,50,85,699
   Basic (`)                           0.35                             0.37 
   Diluted (`)  0.35 0.37
  Weighted average equity shares used in compu�ng
  earning per equity share              4,94,19,518              4,50,85,699

significant accoun�ng policies and notes to accounts 2 
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni

 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta

(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary

M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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STANDALONE  CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

 (Amount in `) 

   PARTICULARS   2019-20 2018-19

  A. Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es  

  Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax  2,50,43,949 2,25,36,980

  Adjustments for: 

  Add :

  Deprecia�on   87,75,339 78,14,943

  Interest Paid  1,78,14,443 1,09,84,747

  Actuarial Gain  13,57,063 10,24,764

  Prior Period Adjustment  (8,61,245) 12,48,069

  Less:

  Interest Received  26,64,684 58,81,221

  Pre-Opera�ve Right Issue Exps  - 2,30,000

  Opera�ng Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes   4,94,64,865 3,74,98,282

  Adjustments for: 

  Stock Work in Progress                    (3,74,92,559) -

  Trade Receivable                        2,54,52,826 (4,99,22,865)

  Loans                     2,22,94,813 (2,20,51,591)

  Other financial assets                         91,35,065 (1,62,79,913)

  Other non current assets                        5,78,72,758 (27,40,041)

  Other Current Assets                    (15,28,62,195) (2,39,22,306)

  Provisions                           10,01,927 7,12,961 

  Trade payables                      (2,43,81,504) 10,14,343

  Other financial liabili�es                        2,91,30,341 80,36,448

  Other current liabili�es                          (30,63,315) (2,32,078)

  Cash Generated from Opera�on                      (2,34,46,978) (6,78,86,760)

  Income tax Paid                          70,47,628 48,46,607

  Net Cash  Generated by opera�ng ac�vi�es                     (3,04,94,606) (7,27,33,367)

 B. Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es 

  Intangible Asset under development   (11,34,76,936) (11,38,81,389)

  Long Term Investments   (13,79,500) -

  Purchase of assets   (67,69,883) (61,69,586)

  Net Cash used in Inves�ng Ac�vi�es   (12,16,26,319) (12,00,50,975) 

 C. Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es 

  Interest Recieved   26,64,684 58,81,221 

  Proceeds from issue of share capital (incl.securi�es premium)                      9,67,23,724 -

  Borrowing  7,41,06,055 14,55,38,383  

  Less: 

  Loan to subsidiary   25,64,500 19,59,760  

  Interest paid    1,78,14,443 1,09,84,747

  Net Cash used in Financing Ac�vi�es   15,31,15,521 13,84,75,098  

  Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  9,94,595 (5,43,09,244) 

  Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 31-3-2019   4,63,695 5,47,72,939

  Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 31-3-2020  14,58,290 4,63,695 

 NOTES : Previous year's figure has been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's classifica�on. 
As per our report of even date 

For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni

 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta

(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary

M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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Par�culars Equity Share 
Capital

OTHER EQUITY

Total equity 
a�ributable to 
equity holders 

of the 
company

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Securi�es 
Premiuim 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensi
ve income

Balance as on April 1, 2018 9,01,71,398 25,97,93,884 6,05,59,366 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 - (72,689) 42,81,59,915 

Changes in the equity for the 
year ended March 31, 2019

Increase in share 
capital/Securi�es Premium on 
account of Rights issue

- - - - - - - -

Pre-opera�ve issue expenses - (2,30,000) - - - - - (2,30,000)

Equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income, 
net of tax effect

- - - - -
(36,21,420)

-
(36,21,420)

Prior Period Item Adjustments 12,48,069 12,48,069 

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liablity, net of 
tax effect

- - - - - -
73,684 

                                  
73,684 

Profit for the period - - 1,67,49,941 - - - - 1,67,49,941 

Balance as on March 31, 2019 9,01,71,398 25,95,63,884 7,85,57,376 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (36,21,420) 995 44,23,80,189 

Statement of Changes in Equity
F.Y.2018-19

Statement of Changes in Equity F.Y.2019-2020

Par�culars Equity Share 
Capital

OTHER EQUITY

Total equity 
a�ributable to 
equity holders 

of the 
company

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Securi�es 
Premiuim 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensi
ve income

Balance as on April 1, 2019 9,01,71,398 25,95,63,884 7,85,57,376 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (36,21,420) 995 44,23,80,189 

Changes in the equity for the
 year ended March 31, 2020

Increase in share 
capital/Securi�es Premium on 
account of Rights issue

86,67,638 9,10,10,199 - - - - - 9,96,77,837 

Pre-opera�ve issue expenses - (29,54,113) - - - - - (29,54,113)

Equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income, 
net of tax effect

- - - - - 10,92,564 - 10,92,564 

Prior Period Item Adjustments (8,61,245) (8,61,245)

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liablity, net of 
tax effect

- - - - - - 2,64,499 2,64,499 

Profit for the period - - 1,74,29,449 - - - - 1,74,29,449 

Balance as on March 31, 2020 9,88,39,036 34,76,19,970 9,51,25,580 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (25,28,856) 2,65,494 55,70,29,180 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 The Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

 The Company Is engaged in the business of GIS based so�ware development and sales.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION & PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

  (a) Statement of Compliance

   These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under sec�on 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as amended 
from �me to �me.

  (b) Basis of measurement

   The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost conven�on  and on an 
accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at end 
of the each repor�ng period, as explained in the accoun�ng policies below.

  (c) Use of judgement, es�mates and assump�ons

   The prepara�on of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
management to make judgements, es�mates and assump�ons considered in the reported 
amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosure rela�ng to con�ngent liabili�es as at the date 
of financial statement and the reported amounts of income and expenditure during the 
reported year. Es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on a periodic basis. 
Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mates are 
revised and in any future periods affected. 

   In par�cular, informa�on about significant areas of es�ma�on, uncertainty and cri�cal 
judgments in applying accoun�ng policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

   I) Income taxes

    The Company's major tax jurisdic�ons is India. Significant judgments are involved in 
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax posi�ons. In assessing the reliability of deferred 
income tax assets, management considers whether some por�on or all of the deferred 
income tax assets will not be realized. The realiza�on of deferred income tax assets is 
dependent upon the genera�on of future taxable income during the periods in which 
the temporary differences become deduc�ble. Management considers the scheduled 
reversals of deferred income tax liabili�es, projected future taxable income and tax 
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable 
income and projec�ons for future taxable income over the periods in which the 
deferred income tax assets are deduc�ble, management believes that the company will 
realize the benefits of those deduc�ble differences. The amount of the deferred income 
tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if 
es�mates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

   ii) Impairment tes�ng

    Investments in subsidiaries, goodwill and intangible assets are tested for impairment 
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annually and when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
recoverable amount of the asset or cash genera�ng units to which these pertain is less 
than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash genera�ng units is higher of 
value-in-use and fair value less cost to dispose. The calcula�on of value in use of a cash 
genera�ng unit involves use of significant es�mates and assump�ons which includes 
turnover and earnings mul�ples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate 
projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market 
condi�ons.

   iii) Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on

    Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on is based on management es�mates of the future useful 
lives of certain class of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Es�mates 
may change due to technological developments, compe��on, changes in market 
condi�ons and other factors and may result in changes in the es�mated useful life and 
in the deprecia�on and amor�sa�on charges.

   iv) Other es�mates

    The prepara�on of financial statements involves es�mates and assump�ons that affect 
the reported amount of assets, liabili�es, disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es at the date 
of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the 
repor�ng period. Specifically, the Company es�mates the probability of collec�on of 
accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment pa�erns, customer 
concentra�ons, customer credit worthiness and current economic trends. If the 
financial condi�on of a customer deteriorates, addi�onal allowances may be required. 

    The stock compensa�on expense is determined based on the Company's es�mate of 
equity instruments that will eventually vest. 

    Fair valua�on of deriva�ve hedging instruments designated as cash flow hedges 
involves significant es�mates rela�ng to the occurrence of forecast transac�on.

   v) Es�ma�on of uncertain�es rela�ng to the global health pandemic COVID-19:

    The management has considered the possible effects, if any, that may result from the 
pandemic rela�ng to Covid 19 on the carrying amounts of receivables. In making the 
assump�ons and es�mates rela�ng to the uncertain�es as at the Balance sheet date in 
rela�on to recoverable amounts of these assets, the management has considered the 
global economic condi�ons prevailing at the date of approval of these financial 
statements and has used internal and external sources of Informa�on to the extent 
determined by it. The actual outcome of these assump�ons and es�mates may vary in 
the future due to the impact of the pandemic.

 2.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

  (a) Func�onal and presenta�on currency

   Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “func�onal 
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the na�onal currency of 
India, which is the func�onal currency of the Company.

  (b) Investment In Subsidiaries, Associate And Joint Venture:

   Investment in subsidiary companies, associate and joint venture companies are carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indica�on of Impairment exists, 
the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and wri�en down immediately to its 
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recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary companies, associate and joint 
venture companies, the difference between net disposal of proceeds and the carrying 
amounts are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

  (c) Property, plant and equipment

   Property, plant and equipment are measured at histo�cal cost or its deemed cost less 
accumulated deprecia�on and impairment losses, if any. Historical Cost includes 
expenditures directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the asset.

   When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
Subsequent expenditure rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss when incurred.

   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the con�nued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or re�rement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (d) Capital work-in-progress

   Amounts paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of 
each repor�ng date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use 
before such date are disclosed under capital advances and capital work-in-progress 
respec�vely.

  (e) Deprecia�on/ Amor�sa�on

   Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of asset less its es�mated residual value.

   Deprecia�on has been provided on all assets on the straight line method, as per the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

   The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecia�on of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate. 
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is objec�ve evidence that a 
asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset's carrying amount is wri�en down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its 
es�mated recoverable amount.

   The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

  (f) Leases

   From April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 'Leases' is applicable to all the listed companies. Ind AS 116 has 
certain exemp�ons from the applica�on of Ind AS – 116:

   (I) Short Term Leases

    A lease that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. 
However, a lease that contains an op�on to purchase the asset is not a short-term lease.

· The elec�on for short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to 
which the right of use relates and can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.
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   (ii) Leases for low value assets

    An underlying asset can be of low value only if:

    - the lessee can benefit from use of the underlying asset on its own or together with 
other resources that are readily available to the lessee; and

    - the underlying asset is not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other 
assets.

§ Examples of low-value underlying assets can include tablet and personal 
computers, small items of office furniture and telephones.

§ When new, if the asset is typically not of low value, the lease of such asset does 
not qualify as a lease of a low-value asset.

§ If a lessee subleases an asset, or expects to sublease an asset, the head lease does 
not qualify as a lease of a low-value asset.

§ The assessment of whether an underlying asset is of low value is performed on an 
absolute basis. Leases of low-value assets qualify for recogni�on exemp�on 
regardless of whether those leases are material to the lessee. The assessment is 
not affected by the size, nature or circumstances of the lessee.

   Accoun�ng for short term and low value asset leases

   If a lessee elects to opt for the recogni�on exemp�on for either short-term leases or leases for 
which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments 
associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term 
or another systema�c basis.

   According to informa�on and explana�on provided to us, all the lease agreements of 
company are short term lease agreements so applica�on of new Ind AS – 116 'Leases' is not 
applicable to us.

  (g) Financial Instruments

   All financial instruments are recognised ini�ally at fair value. Transac�on costs that are 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase 
or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a �me frame established by 
regula�on or conven�on in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade 
date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly a�ributable 
transac�on costs.

   For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are 
classified in the following categories: non-deriva�ve financial assets comprising amor�sed 
cost, debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity 
instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL), non deriva�ve 
financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost or FVTPL and deriva�ve financial instruments (under the 
category of financial assets or financial liabili�es) at FVTPL.

   The classifica�on of financial instruments depends on the objec�ve of the business model for 
which it is held. Management determines the classifica�on of its financial instruments at 
ini�al recogni�on.
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  Non-deriva�ve financial assets

  I. Financial assets at amor�sed cost

   A financial asset shall be measured at amor�sed cost if both of the following condi�ons are 
met:

   (a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

   (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.

   They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months a�er 
the repor�ng date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured 
ini�ally at fair value plus transac�on costs and subsequently carried at amor�zed cost using 
the effec�ve interest rate method, less any impairment loss.

   Financial assets at amor�sed cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, 
cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current and non-
current assets.

   Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with 
banks which can be withdrawn at any �me without prior no�ce or penalty on the principal.

   For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdra�s that are 
repayable on demand, book overdra� and are considered part of the Company's cash 
management system.

  ii. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income   (FVTOCI)

   For assets, if it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the company has exercised the 
op�on to classify the equity investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the investment 
are recognised in OCI. The accumulated gains or losses on such investments are not recycled 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale of such investment.

  iii. Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL)

   Financial assets which is not classified in any of the above category is measured at FVTPL. 
These include surplus funds invested in mutual funds etc.

   Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair values with all 
changes recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

  Non-deriva�ve financial liabili�es

   Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost

   Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables 
are ini�ally recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amor�zed cost using the 
effec�ve interest rate method. For trade and other payable maturing within one year from 
the Balance Sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity.

   Financial liabili�es at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL)

   Financial liabili�es at FVTPL represented by con�ngent considera�on are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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   Deriva�ve financial instruments and hedging ac�vi�es

   A deriva�ve is a financial instrument which changes value in response to changes in an 
underlying asset and is se�led at a future date. Deriva�ves are ini�ally recognised at fair value 
on the date a deriva�ve contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their 
fair value. The method of recognizing the resul�ng gain or loss depends on whether the 
deriva�ve is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being 
hedged.

   The Company enters into deriva�ve contracts to hedge the risks asserted with currency 
fluctua�ons rela�ng to firm commitments and highly probable transac�ons. The Company 
does not use deriva�ve instruments for specula�ve purposes.

   The Company documents, at the incep�on of the transac�on, the rela�onship between 
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objec�ves and 
strategy for undertaking various hedging transac�ons. The Company also documents its 
assessment, both at hedge incep�on and on an on-going basis, of whether the deriva�ves 
that are used in hedging transac�ons are effec�ve in offse�ng changes in cash flows of 
hedged items.

   The effec�ve por�on of changes in the fair value of deriva�ves that are designated and qualify 
as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The ineffec�ve por�on of 
changes in the fair value of the deriva�ve is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Amounts accumulated in hedging reserve are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the periods when the hedged item affects the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   The full fair value of a hedging deriva�ve is classified as a current/ non-current, asset or 
liability based on the remaining maturity of the hedged item.

   When a hedging instrument expires, swapped or unwound, or when a hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accoun�ng, any cumula�ve gain or loss exis�ng in Statement of 
Changes in Equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Offse�ng financial instruments

   Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realize the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

   Fair value measurement

   The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments in the following hierarchy, 
based on the inputs used in their valua�on:

   i) Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in ac�ve markets is based on 
their quoted closing price at the Balance Sheet date.

   ii) Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market is 
determined by using valua�on techniques using observable market data. Such 
valua�on techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valua�on models based 
on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer 
quotes for similar instruments and use of comparable arm's length transac�ons.

   iii) Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of en�ty 
specific valua�ons using inputs that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be 
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measured with sufficient reliability, the Company carries such instruments at cost less 
impairment, if applicable.

  (h)    Employee Benefits

   i. Short term employee benefits:

    Short Term benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amounts in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

   ii. Post employment benefits:

    a) Defined contribu�on plan:

     The Employee and Company make monthly fixed Contribu�on to Government of 
India Employee's Provident Fund equal to a specified percentage of the Cover 
employee's salary, Provision for the same is made in the year in which service are 
render by employee.

    b) Defined benefit plans:

     The Liability for Gratuity to employees, which is a defined benefit plan, as at 
Balance Sheet date determined on the basis of actuarial Valua�on based on 
Projected Unit Credit method and the contribu�on thereof paid/payable is 
absorbed in the accounts.

     The present value of the defined benefit obliga�ons is determined by discoun�ng 
the es�mated future cash flows at a predetermined rate of interest, taking into 
account the probability of payment. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

     Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assump�ons are recognized in the period in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in balance sheet. Changes in 
present value of the defined benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendment 
or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

   iii. Other long term employee benefits:

    Other long term employee benefits comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed 
leave and compensated absences, these are recognized based on the present value of 
defined obliga�on which is computed using the project unit credit method, with 
actuarial valua�ons being carried out at the end of each annual repor�ng period. These 
are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as 
permi�ed.

    Remeasurement of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and compensated 
absences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except those included in 
cost of assets as permi�ed in the period which they occur.

  (I) Provisions

   Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required 
to se�le the obliga�on, and a reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on.

   The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the considera�on  required to 
se�le the present obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on.
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   When some or all of the economic benefits required to se�le a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

   Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by 
the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of mee�ng the future 
obliga�ons under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present 
value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of 
termina�ng the contract.

  (j) Income Taxes

   Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in 
equity or in other comprehensive income.

   a) Current income tax - Current income tax liability/ (asset) for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxa�on authori�es based on the taxable income for the year. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substan�vely 
enacted by the repor�ng date and applicable for the year. The Company off sets current 
tax assets and current tax liabili�es, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts and where it intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the 
asset and liability simultaneously.

   b) Deferred tax - Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. 
Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are recognized for deduc�ble and taxable 
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabili�es and their 
carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transac�on that is not 
a business combina�on and affects neither accoun�ng nor taxable profits or loss at the 
�me of the transac�on.

    Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deduc�ble temporary differences and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be u�lized. Deferred 
income tax liabili�es are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

    The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each repor�ng date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be u�lized.

    Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is se�led, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted at the 
repor�ng date.
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INCOME TAX

A) Major Components of Deferred Tax Liabili�es /(Assets) arriving on account of �ming difference are as follow:

As at March 31, 2020            (`) 

Par�culars As at March 31, Availment of Recognised Recognised  As at March 31, 
 2019  MAT Credit  in profit & loss in OCI 2020

Fixed assets :- Impact of difference       52,82,597 - 3,21,391 - 56,03,988
between WDV as per Income Tax Act
and as per books of accounts 

Fair Value on Unquoted Investment 
MAT Credit En�tlement  - - - - -

Expense Allowable for 
Tax on payment 6,92,177 - 2,45,481 - 9,37,658

Carried Forward 
Capital Loss FY 2018-19  - - - - -

Total 59,74,774 - 5,66,872 - 65,41,646 

As at March 31, 2019            (`) 

Par�culars As at March 31, Availment of Recognised Recognised  As at March 31,
 2018  MAT Credit  in profit & loss in OCI 2019

Fixed assets :- Impact of difference       71,00,991 - (18,18,394) - 52,82,597
between WDV as per Income Tax Act 
and as per books of accounts

Fair Value on Unquoted Investment 

MAT Credit En�tlement  - - - - -

Expense Allowable for 
Tax on payment 4,82,731 - 2,09,446 - 6,92,177

Carried Forward 
Capital Loss FY 2018-19  - - - - -

Total 75,83,722 - (16,08,948) - 59,74,774 

Par�culars  As at  March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

B) Income Taxes

Major component of Tax expenses for the year are as under :

(I) Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Tax 70,47,628 48,46,607 

Income Tax for Prior years - -

Deferred Tax 5,66,872 9,40,432

 76,14,500 57,87,039

(ii) Income tax recognised in OCI

Income tax expenses on remeasurement of defined employee benefits plans 1,01,945 28,399

Income Tax expenses on remeasurement of financial instruments 2,86,936 (9,51,080)

 3,88,881 (9,22,681)

 80,03,381 48,64,358 

C) Reconcilia�on of Tax expenses and the accoun�ng profit for the year is as under :

Profit before tax 2,50,43,949 2,23,88,839

Income Tax exp 70,47,628 48,46,607 

Tax effect on non deduc�ble exp - 1,24,057 
effect of income which is tax at Special Rate - -

effect of income exempted from tax - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80IC - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80G - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80JJAA - -

Tax effect for exemp�on u/s 10AA - -
Tax effect of R & D expenses - - 

MAT Credit en�tlement - - 

Income Tax for Prior years - -

Other

 70,47,628 49,70,664 
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  (k) Cash flow Statement:

   Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for 
the effects of transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
opera�ng cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense associated with inves�ng or 
financing cash-flows. The cash flow from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the 
Company are segregated.

  (l) Revenue Recogni�on

   The Company derives revenue primarily from so�ware development and from the licensing of 
so�ware products. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or a 
service to a customer. The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of 
the services rendered.

   The �ming of revenue recogni�on, billings and cash collec�ons results in receivables, unbilled 
revenue, and unearned revenue on the Company's Balance Sheet. Amounts are billed as work 
progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, either at periodic intervals (e.g., 
monthly or quarterly) or upon achievement of contractual milestones.

   The Company's receivables are rights to considera�on that are uncondi�onal. Unbilled revenues 
comprising revenues in excess of billings from �me and material contracts and fixed-price 
maintenance contracts are classified as financial asset when the right to considera�on is 
uncondi�onal and is due only a�er a passage of �me.

   Invoicing to the clients for other fixed-price contracts is based on milestones as defined in the 
contract and therefore the �ming of revenue recogni�on is different from the �ming of invoicing 
to the customers. Therefore unbilled revenues for other fixed-price contracts (contract asset) are 
classified as “non-financial asset” because the right to considera�on is dependent on comple�on 
of contractual milestones. Invoicing in excess of earnings is classified as “unearned revenue”.

   Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet. 
During the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, 4.15 crore and 4.32 crore of unbilled 
revenue pertaining to other fixed price and fixed �me frame contracts as of April 1, 2019 and April 
1, 2018, respec�vely has been reclassified to “trade receivables” upon billing to customers on 
comple�on of milestones. 

   Remaining performance obliga�on disclosure:

   The remaining performance obliga�on disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the 
transac�on price yet to be recognized as at the end of the repor�ng period and an explana�on as 
to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the prac�cal 
expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance 
obliga�on-related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly 
with the value to the customer of the en�ty's performance completed to date, typically those 
contracts where invoicing is on �me and material and unit of work-based contracts. Remaining 
performance obliga�on es�mates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, 
including termina�ons, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalida�ons, adjustment for 
revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency. 

   a) Time and materials contracts

    Revenues from contracts priced on a �me and material basis are recognised as the related 
services are performed and related costs are incurred.

   b) Fixed-price contracts

    Revenues from fixed-price contracts are recognized using the “percentage-of-comple�on” 
method. Percentage of comple�on is determined based on project costs incurred to date as 
a percentage of total es�mated project costs required to complete the project. The cost 
expended (or input) method has been used to measure progress towards comple�on as 
there is a direct rela�onship between input and produc�vity.
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    If the Company does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of comple�on or to 
es�mate the total contract revenues and costs, revenue is recognized only to the extent of 
contract cost incurred for which recoverability is probable.

    When total cost es�mates exceed revenues in an arrangement, the es�mated losses are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such losses become 
probable based on the current contract es�mates.

   c) Maintenance Contracts

    Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognized ratably over the period of the contract 
using the “percentage-of-comple�on” method. When services are performed through an 
indefinite number of repe��ve acts over a specified period of �me, revenue is recognized 
on a straight line basis over the specified period or under some other method that be�er 
represents the stage of comple�on.

    'Unbilled revenues' represent cost and earnings in excess of billings as at the end of the 
repor�ng period.

    'Unearned revenues' represent billing in excess of revenue recognized. Advance payments 
received from customers for which no services are rendered are presented as 'Advance 
from customers.

    Revenues are reported net of GST and applicable discounts and allowances.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Par�culars Year 2019-2020 Year 2018-2019

(a) Sale of products
GiS Product and Other Ancilliery 23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265

 23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265
(b) Sale of Services
Gis So�ware Solu�ons and Customiza�on 25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993
 25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993

Total 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258 

Par�culars   Year 2019-2020  Year 2018-2019

Revenue from contracts with customers 
disaggregated based on geography   
a. Domes�c 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258
b. Exports - -

Total Revenue from Opera�on 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

C. Reconcilia�on of gross revenue from contracts with customers
Gross Revenue 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258
Less : Commission & Discount - -
Less : Return/Rejec�on/Shortage/Deduc�on - -
Less : Deduc�on for Rework/Rec�fica�on/Price Difference - -
Net revenue recognized from contracts with customers 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

OTHER INCOME   

Par�culars Year 2019-2020 Year 2018-2019 

a) Interest income
 I. On Deposit with Banks 26,64,684 41,63,003
 ii. Interest from Others - 17,18,218
c) Other  Receipts
 I. Others  5,81,148 56,33,530
d) Other gain and losses
I. Net gain on foreign currency transac�on 14,82,056 41,46,576

Total  47,27,888 1,56,61,327
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  (m) Dividend and dividend distribu�on tax

   Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the 
shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declara�on by 
the Company's Board of Directors. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees 
and are subject to applicable distribu�on taxes. The applicable distribu�on taxes are treated 
as an appropria�on of profits.

  (n) Foreign Currency transac�ons and transla�ons

   Transac�ons in foreign currency are translated into the respec�ve func�onal currencies using 
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respec�ve transac�ons. Foreign exchange 
gains and losses resul�ng from the se�lement of such transac�ons and from the transla�on 
at the exchange rates prevailing at repor�ng date of monetary assets and liabili�es 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and 
reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses).

   Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in a foreign currency and measured at 
historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transac�on.

   Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair 
value of foreign exchange deriva�ve instruments, which are accounted at fair value through 
profit or loss.

  (o) Finance Income and expense

   Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, dividend income and fair value 
gains on the FVTPL financial assets. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the 
statement of profit and loss, using the effec�ve interest method.

   Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date that the 
Company's right to receive payment is established.

   Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effec�ve interest method.

  (p) Impairment

   a) Financial assets

    In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model 
for measurement and recogni�on of impairment loss.

    The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for 
recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable and unbilled revenue. 
The applica�on of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes 
in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on life�me ECLs at 
each repor�ng date, right from its ini�al recogni�on. The Company recognizes life�me 
expected credit losses for all trade receivables and/or other contract assets that do not 
cons�tute a financing transac�on. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses 
are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an 
amount equal to the life �me expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial 
asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on.

    ECL allowance (or reversal) is recognised as income / expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.
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   b) Non-financial assets

    The Company assesses at each repor�ng date whether there is any objec�ve evidence 
that a non financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such 
indica�on exists, the Company es�mates the amount of impairment loss.

    An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount 
and recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss and 
reflected in an allowance account. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently 
decreases and the decrease can be related objec�vely to an event occurring a�er the 
impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, 
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined (net off any accumulated deprecia�on/amor�sa�on) had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

    The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-genera�ng unit (as defined below) is the 
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the 
es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, assets are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the “cash-genera�ng unit”).

  (q) Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit a�ributable to the 
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period.

   Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit a�ributable to the 
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity 
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.    
The dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity 
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding 
equity shares). Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of 
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented.

  (r) Con�ngent Liabili�es

   Con�ngent liabili�es exist when there is a possible obliga�on arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obliga�on 
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ou�low of resources will 
be required or the amount cannot be reliably es�mated. Con�ngent liabili�es are 
appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an ou�low of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote.

  (s) Con�ngent Assets

   A con�ngent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the en�ty. The Company does not recognize a con�ngent 
asset.
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  (t) Events a�er the repor�ng period

    Adjus�ng events are events that provide further evidence of condi�ons that existed at the 
end of the repor�ng period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before 
authorisa�on for issue. Non-adjus�ng events are events that are indica�ve of condi�ons that 
arose a�er the end of the repor�ng period. Non-adjus�ng events a�er the repor�ng date are 
not accounted, but disclosed.

  (u) Intangible Assets

   Intangible assets are measured on ini�al recogni�on at cost (net of recoverable taxes, if any). 
Subsequently, intangible assets are carried out at cost less any accumulated amor�za�on and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

   The gain or loss arising on the disposal or re�rement of an intangible asset is determined as 
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized as income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year or disposal.

  (v) Borrowing Costs

   Borrowing costs include interest and amor�za�on of ancillary costs incurred to the extent 
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connec�on with the 
borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisi�on of qualifying assets are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, 
allocated to and u�lised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement 
of ac�vi�es rela�ng to construc�on / development of the qualifying asset up to the date of 
capitalisa�on of such asset is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisa�on of borrowing costs 
is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when 
ac�ve development ac�vity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

   During the year company has not capitalized any borrowing cost.

  (w) Rounding of amounts

   All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the 
nearest rupees as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

  (x) Goods & Service Tax:

   GST credit on materials purchased for produc�on / service availed for produc�on / input 
service are taken into account at the �me of purchase and GST credit on purchase of capital 
items wherever applicable are taken into account as and when the assets are acquired.

   The GST credits so taken are u�lized for payment of excise duty/GST on sales. The unu�lized 
GST credit is carried forward in the books. The GST credits so taken are u�lized for payment of 
tax on goods sold. The unu�lized GST credit is carried forward in the books.

3. Recent Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS)

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standard or amendments to the exis�ng standards. 
There are following amendments based on the exposure dra� available as on date.

 Amendments to exis�ng Standards

 1.  Ind AS 103 – Business Combina�on
 2. Ind AS 1, Presenta�on of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accoun�ng   Policies,

Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors
 3. Ind AS 40 – Investment Property

4. Equity shares movement during the year ended March 31, 2020

 The Company has issued 43,33,819 right shares of face value ̀  2 per share during the current financial year.
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NOTE 5 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

  Par�culars Building  Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Computer & Electric  Total

  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment Peripheral Installa�on 

  Year Ended March 31,2019

  Gross Carrying amount 13,40,578 46,82,059 48,21,224 11,94,843 9,66,702 20,87,821 8,83,273 1,59,76,500

  Addi�ons                            - 4,42,750 11,57,340 - 67,806 34,18,609 3,91,415 54,77,920

  Disposals - - - - - - - -

  Closing Gross 

  Carrying Amount 13,40,578 51,24,809 59,78,564 11,94,843 10,34,508 55,06,430 12,74,688 2,14,54,420

  Accumulated Depreci�on 1,49,817 16,20,103 14,32,984 4,13,387 1,96,505 6,41,409 2,05,503 46,59,708

  Depreciated during the year 75,352 3,72,174 7,07,019 1,91,090 2,00,777 5,18,539 1,11,854 21,76,805

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 2,25,169 19,92,277 21,40,003 6,04,477 3,97,282 11,59,948 3,17,357 68,36,513

  Net carrying amount  11,15,409 31,32,532 38,38,561 5,90,366 6,37,226 43,46,482 9,57,331 1,46,17,907

  Par�culars Building  Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Computer & Electric  Total

  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment Peripheral Installa�on 

  Year Ended March 31,2020

  Gross Carrying amount 13,40,578 51,24,809 59,78,564 11,94,843 10,34,508 55,06,430 12,74,688 2,14,54,420

  Addi�ons - 4,35,641 2,07,211 - 1,06,064 53,94,647 3,82,642 65,26,204

  Disposals - - - - - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount 13,40,578 55,60,450 61,85,775 11,94,843 11,40,572 1,09,01,077 16,57,330 2,79,80,624

  Accumulated Depreci�on 2,25,169 19,92,277 21,40,003 6,04,477 3,97,282 11,59,948 3,17,357 68,36,513

  Depreciated during the year 75,344 3,99,491 7,65,377 1,91,041 2,20,630 12,55,824 1,55,825 30,63,532

  Disposals - - - - - - - -  

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 3,00,513 23,91,768 29,05,380 7,95,518 6,17,912 24,15,772 4,73,182 99,00,045 

  Net carrying amount 10,40,065 31,68,682 32,80,395 3,99,325 5,22,660 84,85,305 11,84,148 1,80,80,579

NOTE 6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

  Par�culars IGIS So�ware  So�ware Intangible Assets Total
 Ver. 2.0  Under Development

  Year Ended March 31,2019 

  Gross Carrying amount              5,54,34,677 2,00,000 9,46,89,700 15,03,24,377

  Addi�ons - 6,91,666 11,38,81,389 11,45,73,055 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount              5,54,34,677 8,91,666 20,85,71,089 26,48,97,432

  Accumulated Depreci�on                  81,73,551 8,745 - 81,82,296 

  Depreciated during the year 55,25,260 1,12,878 - 56,38,138 

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 1,36,98,811 1,21,623 - 1,38,20,434 

  Net carrying amount 4,17,35,866 7,70,043 20,85,71,089 25,10,76,998

  Par�culars IGIS So�ware  So�ware Intangible Assets Total
   Ver. 2.0  Under Development

  Year Ended March 31,2020

  Gross Carrying amount 5,54,34,677 8,91,666 20,85,71,089 26,48,97,432 

  Addi�ons - 2,43,679 11,34,76,936 11,37,20,615 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount 5,54,34,677 11,35,345 32,20,48,025 37,86,18,047 

  Accumulated Depreci�on 1,36,98,811 1,21,623 - 1,38,20,434 

  Depreciated during the year 55,23,640 1,88,167 - 57,11,807 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 1,92,22,451 3,09,790 - 1,95,32,241

  Net carrying amount 3,62,12,226 8,25,555 32,20,48,025 35,90,85,806 
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 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 (Amount in  `) 

 PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `

NOTE 7

Financial Assets

Investments 

non-current investment

unquoted

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

Shreejikrupa Buildcon Ltd   

310000 Equity Shares   1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

Investment carried at cost

Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiary

Jyacad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd

9990 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid  99,900 99,900

Total Investment   1,55,06,900 1,41,27,400

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  1,55,06,900 1,41,27,400

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income  1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

 Investment carried at cost   99,900 99,900

NOTE 8

Financial Assets

LOANS

Non-current

Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured

Other Loans   44,00,000 44,00,000

     44,00,000 44,00,000

Current

Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured

Advance to subsidiary for technology transfer  78,44,760 52,80,260

Loan to employees   53,150 86,000

Intercorporate Loan   15,11,870 2,41,06,396

Other loans  & Advances   70,730 (2,61,832)

     94,80,511 2,92,10,824

    TOTAL  1,38,80,511 3,36,10,824

NOTE 9

Other Financial Assets

Current

Security Deposits*   67,36,806 67,92,516

Rental Deposits*   18,41,700 10,81,700

Margin Money for Bank Gurantee  1,20,15,460 6,81,93,859

Fixed Deposit in Lien of Axis Bank  5,25,00,000 61,37,013

Interest receivable   1,91,877 2,15,820

     7,32,85,843 8,24,20,908

NOTE 10

Other Assets

Non-current

Others

Long Term Trade Receivable, unsecured considered good  3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

     3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

Other Current Assets

Unbilled Revenue   21,42,28,026 6,16,97,826

Pre-paid expenses   20,97,292 10,42,702

Balance with Government Authority  1,29,92,509 1,37,15,103

     22,93,17,826 7,64,55,631

    TOTAL  26,66,32,908 17,16,43,471



84

PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `

NOTE 11

INVENTORIES

Work- in - Progress   3,74,92,559 -

    TOTAL 3,74,92,559 -

NOTE 12

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  - -

Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired  - -

Less: Allowance for doub�ul trade receivables  - -

Total Receivables   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Secured,considered good   - -

Unsecured,considered good   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Doub�ul    - -

    TOTAL 11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

NOTE 13

Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash on Hand   13,53,252 3,00,333

  Balance with  Banks 

  - In Current  Accounts   1,05,038 1,63,362

  -In CC  Account   - -

    TOTAL  14,58,290 4,63,695

NOTE 14

SHARE CAPITAL

-Authorised

65000000 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  13,00,00,000 13,00,00,000

-Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
* 4,94,19,518 Equity Shares of `2/- each  fully    paid-up.  9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

    TOTAL 9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

   Reconcilia�on of Shares:  Number Amt (`) Number Amt (`)

Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398

Add: Shares issued During the year - - - - 

Add: Rights/Bonus Shares Issued 43,33,819 86,67,638 - - 

   Total 4,94,19,518 9,88,39,036 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398 

Less: Buy back of Shares  - - - -

Less Reduc�on in Capital  - - - -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 4,94,19,518 9,88,39,036 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398

Terms and rights a�ached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of equity share is en�tled 
to one vote per share

List of Share holders having 5% or more Shares (In Nos)

Name of Shareholders  Number of   %  of    Number of  %  of    

    shares held Holding shares held Holding

Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Limited                                  1,10,59,203 22.38% 1,12,59,203 24.97% 

Rajesh Chandubhai Thakkar  31,00,000 6.27% 46,18,680 10.24% 

Theeta Trading LLP  41,65,693 8.43% 41,65,693 9.24% 

SMC Global Securi�es Limited  38,16,006 7.72% 625 0.14% 

Upsilon Trading LLP  26,51,263 5.36% - - 

Rajesh Chandubhai Thakkar HUF 24,70,712 4.99% 24,70,712 5.48%
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 15
Financial Liabili�es 
Long Term Borrowings 
Unsecured 
From NBFC   73,30,193 15,68,477
From Bank    48,18,750
Intercorporate Deposits 
From Shareholders   - 1,27,05,510
From others   5,33,02,724 2,86,26,158
Loans and advances from Related Par�es
From Directors   10,00,000 10,00,000
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Par�es   10,82,737 -

     6,75,34,404 4,39,00,145 

Short Term Borrowings 
Secured
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from banks  10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

     10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

Unsecured
Loans and advances from Related Par�es
From Directors   - 2,85,00,000
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Par�es   - 4,21,25,329

     - 7,06,25,329

A) For Working Capital Loans 
 1) Nature of Security:- Secured by way of hypothica�on of book debts and collateral Security of exten�on of mortgage of
  Residen�al Flat and Bunglow at Ahmedabad
 2) Rate of Interest :- Working Capital Loan from banks carry interest rate of 9.80%   Per annuam(For previuos year the rate 
  was 12.6%
B) For Intercorporate Deposits 
 1) Inter corporate deposits carry interest @ and is in the course of business
C) For Business Loans: It is Unsecured Loan
 1) Nature of Security:- It is Unsecured Loan
 2) Rate of Interest :-
 Loan from Bajaj Finance Limited carry interest rate of @ 18.5% per annum.
 Loan from ECL Finance LTD carry interest rate of @ 18.5% per annum
 Loan from ICICI BANK carry interest rate of @ 17% per annum
 Loan from India Infoline Finanace Limited carry interest rate of @ 19% per annum
 Loan from KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED carry interest rate of @ 19.43% per annum
 Loan from Magma Fincorp Limited carry interest rate of @ 18.50% per annum
 Loan from Tata Capital interest rate of @ 18.25% per annum

    TOTAL 17,73,34,077 17,38,53,351

NOTE 16
Provisions
Long Term
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity    25,28,444 20,42,315
Leave Encashment   8,47,844 3,41,547

     33,76,288 23,83,862

Short Term
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity    50,005 1,07,358
Leave Encashment   99,403 32,549
     1,49,408 1,39,907

    TOTAL  35,25,696 25,23,769 



86

PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 17
Trade Payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 5,00,53,301 7,11,40,118
Others    (3,85,94,766) (3,53,00,079)

    TOTAL 1,14,58,535 3,58,40,039

Note:
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprise
The Company has certain dues to suppliers under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act,2006 (MSMED Act).  The disclosures pursuant  to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

 As at   March 31, 
2020 

 As at   March 31, 
2019 

 a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 
end of the year 

5,00,53,301 7,11,40,118 

 b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
the year 

- -

 c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec�on 16 
of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

- -

 d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyong the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act, 2006 

- -

 e)  The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accoun�ng year 

- -

f)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the interest 
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure under 
sec�on 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

- -

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro,Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 
2006" is based on the informa�on available with the Company regarding the status of registra�on of such 
vendors under the said Act, as per the in�ma�on received from them on requests made by the 
Company.There are no overdue principle amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such 
vendors at the Balance Sheet date. The payment is made to vendors according to terms and condi�ons 
mutually agreed to both par�es and accordingly there is no delay in payment to these vendors and no interest 
liability therefore.
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 18
Other Financial Liabili�es 
Current 
Employee Benefits payable   79,09,618  62,05,036
Provision for Expenses   12,06,96,202  3,42,43,198
Income Tax Provision   44,37,511
Advance from customers   - 23,55,423
Other payables   4,75,061 1,33,044
Current maturi�es of long term borrowings 
Unsecured: 
From NBFC    71,70,628 13,23,648
From Bank   33,27,000 
Terms and condi�ons of the above financial liabili�es: 
-Other payables include fees payable which are normally se�led on quarterly basis
-Employee benefits payables are normally se�led on monthly basis 
-Provision for expenses are se�led as and when invoices are received by the company 

    TOTAL 14,40,16,019 4,42,60,349

NOTE 19
Other Liabili�es
Current
Provident Fund   10,531  25,833
Statutory Dues   49,17,327 79,65,340

     49,27,858 79,91,173

NOTE 20
Income Taxes
Deferred Income Tax Liability
Intangible Assets    60,40,930 62,20,109
Employee Benefits   9,37,658 6,92,177
Deferred Expenditures   - -
Other Equity   - -

     69,78,588 69,12,286

Deferred Income Tax Assets 
Property,plant and equipment    4,36,942 9,37,512

Deferred Income Tax Liabili�es a�er set off   65,41,646  59,74,774

NOTE 21
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Indigenous Sales 
Sales of Products    23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265
Services Sales    25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993

    TOTAL 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

NOTE 22            
OTHER INCOME 
Interest On Fixed Deposit    26,64,684 41,63,003
Foreign Exchange Fluctua�on   14,82,056 41,46,577
Creditors Wri�en Back   1,91,400 5,53,534
Statutory Provision Wri�en off as not payable  - 50,63,095
Interest from Others   - 17,18,218
Other non-opera�ng income   3,89,749 16,900

    TOTAL 47,27,888 1,56,61,327
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 23
COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Raw Materials' Consump�on
Inventory at the beginning of the year  - -
Add: Purchases during the year   23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089
Less : Inventory at the beginning end of the year  - -

Cost of Raw material consumed  23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089

NOTE 24
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
Project Work in process   (3,74,92,559) -

Change in inventories of WIP   (3,74,92,559) -

NOTE 25
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc.   7,98,80,304 4,26,29,269
Contribu�on to P.F, E.S.I and Other Statutory Funds  1,80,514 3,59,076    
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses  10,85,210 6,98,066
Leave Encase Allowance   6,43,380 2,05,954
Provision of Gratuity   8,35,842 6,44,807

    TOTAL 8,26,25,250 4,45,37,172

NOTE 26
FINANCE COSTS  
Interest Expense
Interest on Working Capital Loan  83,86,099 46,22,520
Bank & Other Charges   43,96,305 9,34,964
Other Borrowing Costs
Interest to others    50,32,039 63,62,227

    TOTAL 1,78,14,443 1,19,19,711

NOTE 27
OTHER EXPENSES
Survey Expenses   11,44,47,829 5,86,09,225
Base Map Crea�on & Satellite Image  30,97,772 
Digi�sa�on & Prin�ng Of Map   35,55,982 2,71,39,500
Store and Spares   94,202 87,716

Repairs To  - Building   75,715  2,64,030
  -   Machinery   2,95,835  2,67,703
  -   Others   1,44,339 5,15,889 2,07,864 7,39,597

Electricity    10,37,259 6,13,830
Insurance    40,807 53,840
Audit Fees    4,50,000 4,50,000
Legal and Professional Fees   97,51,785 61,39,895
Prin�ng, Sta�onery, Postage and Telephone Expenses  10,67,747 9,92,453
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  1,05,49,696 77,31,581
Rent, Rates and Taxes   44,47,499 49,11,666
Adver�sment & Business Promo�on Expenses  15,41,350 10,57,108
Computer & So�ware Expenses   4,75,094 3,22,716
Office Expenses    1,04,717 69,177
Interest and Penalty Expenses   - 2,08,447
Brokerage & Commi.   - 5,49,800
Bank Guarantee Charges   12,40,312 6,74,212
Other Expenses   74,79,403 16,46,927
    TOTAL 15,98,97,343 11,19,97,690
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28. Segment repor�ng

 The company is engaged in the business of providing Informa�on Technology So�ware services and GIS 
products. The company is therefore having one business segment, only.

29. Con�ngent Liabili�es

 a. Income Tax Matters – There is only one particular disputed demand in relation to A.Y. 2016-17 as 

disclosed above. The recovery of demand has been stayed and appeal is pending at CIT level. The 

said assessment was completed in haste and inconclusively by the A.O. u/s 143(3) without 

considering the submission placed. The CIT has already heard the matter and the demand is surely 

going to be deleted as invalid. So the management and tax advocates expect this matter to be 

resolved soon and will not have a material adverse effect on the company's financial position and 

results of operations.

  Originally, the tax demand was raised for ̀  2,08,74,300, but ̀  1,03,87,870 is adjusted from previous 

years refund and company has also paid an amount of ̀  7,50,000 against pending demand.

 b. A petition has been filed by the Shareholder against the Company in NCLT to restore their name in 

the Registers of Members, ideally matters relate to share transfer, Transmission, maintaining 

registers, etc. are dealt by RTA & depository  participants. Any grievances in this matter are to be 

directly addressed to the RTA, though the Company has been made party to the case. Our advocate 

for NCLT has confidently advised that when the matter will be heard by NCLT, Company would be 

removed from the list of defendant.

30.� Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the  Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development  Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2020 is  ̀  5,00,53,301 .

31.� Directors Remuneration:

 The Profit and Loss Account includes payments and provisions of remuneration to the Managing Director 

and Whole Time Directors as under:
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32. Costs of Materials consumed

 I Particulars of Materials consumed:

 II. Break up of Raw Material consumed:

33. In the opinion of Management, any of the assets other than items of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets and Non-Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of 

business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated, unless otherwise stated.

34. On periodical basis and as and when required, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets 

and found that there is no indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. Hence, no such 

impairment loss have been provided in the Financial Year 2019-20 (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

35. Defined Benefit Plans

 35.1 Risk exposure to defined benefit plans

  The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as:  investment risk, longevity risk 

and salary risk

  Investment risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated  using a discount 

rate which is  determine by reference to  market yields at the end of the reporting period  on Indian 

government securities; if the  return on plan asset is below this rate , it will create  a plan deficit.

  Interest risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be 

partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investment.

  Longevity risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the 

best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An 

increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

  Salary risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated reference to the future 

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase 

the plan's liability.

  The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the defined benefit obligation were 

carried out at March 31, 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related 

current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Particulars 
FY 2019-2020 

(`) 

FY 2018-2019 

(`) 

Opening Stock  - 

Purchases 23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089 

Less: Closing stock  - - 

Total 23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089 

Particular 2019-2020 2018-2019 

 % Rupees % Rupees 

Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Indigenous 100 23,57,97,966 100 21,39,01,089 

Total 100 23,57,97,966 100 21,39,01,089 
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 35.2 Summary of Demographic Assumption

 35.2 Expenses recognized for defined benefit plan and movement of plan assets and liabilities 

(Gratuity)

  Following is the amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, 

movement in defined benefit liability (I.e. gratuity) and movement in plan assets

Particulars  Valuation Date  
March 31,  2020  March  31,  2019  

Mortality Rate (as % of IALM(2006-08) (Mod.) 
Ult. Mortality  

100%  100%  

Disability Rate (as % of above mortality rate)   0.00%  0.00%  
Attrition Rate  For service 4 years and 

below –  10.00 % p.a  
For service 5 years and 

above –  2.00 % p.a  

2.0% to10.0%  

Normal retirement age  58 Years  58 years  
Leave Encashment Rate during employment  0.00%  1.00%  
Leave Availment Rate  1.00%  1.00%  
 

    

Par�culars (in `)
For the year ended

March 31, 2020

(in `)
For the year ended

March 31, 2019

A. Components of expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 
Loss Account

 

Current service cost

 

Past service cost and (gain) loss from se�lements

 

Net interest expenses

 

 

6,69,887

 
 

1,65,955

 

 

5,24,357

 
                           

-

 

1,20,450

 

Total (a) (refer note 25)

 

8,35,842

 

6,44,807

 

B. Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

 

- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net  interest 
expense)

 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assump�ons 

 

-

 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from demographic adjustments

 

 
 
 

 
 

2,58,834

 
 

(2,54,176)

 

(3,71,102)

 

 
 
 

-

 
 

(54,562)

 
 

(36,575)

 

-

 

Total

 

(b)

 

(3,66,444)

 

(91,137)

 

C. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on 

 

- opening defined benefit obliga�on
 

- current service cost
 

- interest expenses
 

- Remeasurement (gains)/loss: 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
demographic assump�ons 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assump�ons 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from
 

changes in experience 
assump�ons

 - Liabili�es assumed for employee transferred  from other en�ty 
benefits paid

 

 

21,49,673
 

6,69,887
 

1,65,955
 
 
 

(3,71,102) 
 

        2,58,834 
 

       
(2,54,176)

 
 

        
(40,621)

 

 

16,16,003
 

5,24,357
 

1,20,450
 
 
 

- 
                  

(54,562) 
               (36,575)
 
 (20,000) 

Closing defined benefit obliga�on

 

(c)

 

25,78,450

 

21,49,673

 D Movements in the fair value of the plan assets

 
- Opening fair value of plan  assets

 
- Interest income

 
- Remeasurement (gains)/loss:

 

- Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)

 

- Contribu�on by employer

 

- Asset transferred in for employee transferred from other en�ty 
benefits paid

 

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

-

 
 

-

 

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

20,000

 
 

(20,000)

 

Closing fair value of plan assets (d) - -
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36. Financial Instruments and  Risk Management

 Risk Management Framework

 The Company's risk management is governed by policies and approved by the board of directors. 

Company's identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the 

Company's operating units. The company has policies for overall risk management, as well as 

policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use 

of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments.

 The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company's risk 

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 

framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its 

oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 

management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

 36.1 Credit Risk

  Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a 

financial loss. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 

with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and 

also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis. The maximum exposure to credit 

risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Credit risk has always been 

managed by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 

continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants 

credit terms in the normal course of business.  On account of the adoption of Ind AS 109, the 

company uses ECL model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The company uses a 

provision matrix to compute the ECL allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. 

The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors 

and the company's experience for customers.

  The Company reviews trade receivables on periodic basis and charges to profit and loss 

account when management feels the amount will not be receivable in future. The Company 

also calculates the expected credit loss (ECL) for non-collection of receivables.

 36.2 Liquid Risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 

associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 

asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 

will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 

Company's reputation. Management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash 

equivalents vis-à-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and 

liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios 

are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.
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 36.3 Market Risk
  Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market factors. Market risk comprises three types of risks:
  a) Currency Risk
   The func�onal currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company is exposed to currency 

risk on account of receivables in foreign currency. Company is exposed to currency risk on 
account of receivables in foreign currency.  

   I) Par�culars of unhedged foreign currency exposures at the repor�ng date

  Exposure to Liquid Risk:

  The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 

date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments 

and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

* The trade receivable men�oned above is non-current in nature so exchange rate prevailing at 
31/03/2020 is not considered as foreign exchange gain/ loss is not recognized on non-current 
receivables.

March 31,  2020  
Carrying 
Amount  

Contractual Cash Flow  

<1year  1-2 Year  3-5 Year  

More 
than 5 
Years  

Total

Financial 
Liabilities

 
      

Non Current 
Borrowings

 
6,75,34,404

 
-

 
3,80,42,846

 
2,94,91,558

 
-

 
6,75,34,404

Current 
Borrowings

 
10,97,99,673

 
10,97,99,673

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
10,97,99,673

Trade 
Payables

 

1,14,58,535

 

1,14,58,535

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

1,14,58,535
Current 
Finacial 
Liabilities

 

14,40,16,019

 

14,40,16,019

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

14,40,16,019
Total 33,28,08,631 26,52,74,227 3,80,42,846 2,94,91,558 - 33,28,08,631

March 31,  2019  
Carrying 
Amount  

Contractual Cash Flow  

<1year  1-2 Year  3-5 Year  

More 
than 5 
Years

Total

Financial 
Liabilities

 
     

Non Current 
Borrowings

 
4,39,00,145

 
-

 
1,52,73,987

 
2,86,26,158

 
- 4,39,00,145

Current 
Borrowings

 
12,99,53,206

 
12,99,53,206

 
-

 
-

 
- 12,99,53,206

Trade 
Payables

 

3,58,40,039

 

3,58,40,039

 

-

 

-

 

- 3,58,40,039
Current 
Finacial 
Liabilities 4,42,60,349 4,42,60,349 - - - 4,42,60,349
Total 25,39,53,739 21,00,53,594 1,52,73,987 2,86,26,158 - 25,39,53,739
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   II) Foreign Currency Risk Sensi�vity
    A change of 3% in foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax.

  b) Price Risk

   As of 31st March 2020, the company has nil exposure on security price risks.

 36.4 Fair value measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date under current market 
condi�ons. 

  The Company categorizes assets and liabili�es measured at fair value into one of three levels 
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described 
as follows:

  (a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or 
liabili�es. 

  (b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than 
quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability. 

  (c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflec�ng significant 
modifica�ons to observable related market data or Company's assump�ons about pricing 
by market par�cipants

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables considered to be 

the same as their values due to their short term nature.

-
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37. Related Party Transac�ons

 Following are the name and rela�onship of related par�es with which company have 
transac�ons/balances:

 Associate/Subsidiary/Related Company/Enterprise/Firms:
 - Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Ltd
 - Scanpress Ltd
 - Diyatec Pvt Ltd
 - Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt Ltd
 - Jyacad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd
 - Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd

Key Management Personnel along with their rela�ves having significant influence:

 a. Key Management Personnel
  - Ramesh Sojitra
  - Chirag Soni
  - Kan� Ladani

 b. Rela�ves of KMP
  - Minal Soni
  - Vishwas Sojitra
  - Leelavan� Sojitra
  - Vaacha Sojitra

37.1 Disclosures in respect of significant transac�ons with related par�es during the year:

  Transac�ons Year Ended  Year Ended 

   March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Remunera�on

 Ramesh K Sojitra   24,00,000 24,00,000

 Chirag Soni  21,00,000 18,00,000

 Salary

 Vishwas R Sojitra  5,04,000 4,20,000

 Vaacha Sojitra  2,91,760 -

 Professonal Fees

 Minal Soni  - 67,500

 Diya Tech Pvt Ltd  19,25,000 15,52,500

 Kan� Ladani  3,00,000 2,70,000

 Chirag Soni HUF  1,75,000 -

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 11,80,000 -

 Turnrest Resources Pvt. Ltd. 45,00,000 -

 Interest Paid 

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 2,83,742 11,74,248

 Turnrest Resources Pvt. Ltd. 9,19,300 33,61,216

 Investment in Subsidiary Shares 

 JyaCad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd 99,900 99,900
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 Loan given to 

 JyaCad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd 25,64,500 21,00,760

 Repayment of Loan from

 JyaCad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd - 1,41,000

 Receipt of Loan 

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd     6,36,75,250 11,27,95,093

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd.       52,00,375 1,35,56,822

 Repayment of Loan 

 Turnest Resources Pvt Ltd    9,11,59,667 8,53,10,676

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd.    1,98,41,287 -

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd 1,50,17,380 -

 Disclosure of closing balances: 

 Amount Due to  

 Kan�lal V Ladani_Loan A/c 10,00,000 10,00,000

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd - 1,27,05,510

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 2,55,367 1,46,40,912

 Ramesh K Sojitra   - 2,85,00,000

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd_Loan A/c 8,27,370 2,74,84,417

  Chirag Soni  3,930 14,748

 Amount Due From 

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd 15,11,870 -

 JyaCad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd 78,44,760 52,80,260

 Trade Payables 

 Diyatec Pvt Ltd  5,04,000 4,81,500

 Kan�lal V Ladani   15,842 1,18,044

 Chirag Soni Huf  1,57,500 -

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd 6,06,775 -

38. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary, to make them 
comparable with those of current year. 

As per our report of even date 
For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra Chirag Soni
 Managing Director Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149 DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani Shaili Mehta
(Partner) Director & CFO Company Secretary
M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171 M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020 Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF SCANPOINT GEOMATICS LIMITED 

 Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Scanpoint Geoma�cs Ltd. (“the 
company”) and its subsidiaries, (the company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated 
Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and 
other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards prescribed 
under Sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group as at March 31, 2020, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, 
their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng 
specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibili�es under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibiliy for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sec�on of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

1. Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers. We have determined the ma�ers 
described below to be the key audit ma�ers to be communicated in our report.
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Informa�on other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

· The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on 
comprises the informa�on included in the Board's Report, Management discussion and Analysis and 
Report on corporate governance but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

· Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

· In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

· If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial posi�on, consolidated financial performance including Other 
Comprehensive Income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. The respec�ve Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsibe for maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng 
policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy 

Key Audit Matters How our auditor addressed the key audit matter

1. Recoverability of Loans to 
Subsidiary Company

The Company has advanced a sum of 
` 78.45 Lakhs as on March 31, 2020. 
The company had given the advance 
to its subsidiary during the previous 
financial year as well as during the 
current financial year.

The aggregate of advance as on 
March 31, 2019 was ` 52.80 Lakhs 
which has increased to ̀  78.45 Lakhs 
as on March 31, 2020.

This payment is in nature for 
technology transfer to Holding 
Company. When the technology is 
ready for transfer, the said will be 
asset of Holding Company. 

We reviewed management's rational and objective for providing advance to 
subsidiary. We reviewed management's assessment of recoverability 
advances to subsidiary and corroborated the same with the financials of 
subsidiary. We reviewed the Company's internal control system for advancing 
the money to suppliers and subsidiary and carried out a combination of 
procedures involving enquiry and observation and inspection of evidence in 
respect of these loans and advances. Our audit approach consisted testing of 
design and operating effectiveness of internal controls and substantive testing 
as follows: 

Ÿ Review of complete details of advance given to subsidiary and 
corroborating the same with of ledger Accounts and confirmation of 
subsidiary. 

Ÿ Review of onward payment by subsidiary to various parties and with the 
supporting documents / Purchase Orders / Invoices etc. 

Ÿ Reviewed the procedures followed by Scanpoint and subsidiary for 
selection of vendors and justification of terms of payments, delivery, 
warranties/Guarantees etc. 

Ÿ  Assessed present status of Advance, receipt / availability of 
material/services. 

Ÿ  Obtained explanation from the management and went through the report 
obtained by the company from external independent expert on fund 
utilization. Based on our procedures, we found management's judgment 
around the recovery of the Advance to be appropriate. 
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and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respec�ve en��es to con�nue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
unless the respec�ve Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respec�ve en��es or to cease 
opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

The respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing 
the financial repor�ng process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Audi�ng, we exercise    professional judgment and maintain 
professional skep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

· Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Sec�on 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Group to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Group to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

· Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direc�on, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such en��es included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other en��es included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other ma�ers, 
the planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on 
precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Sec�on 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examina�on of those 
books.

 c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other 
comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained 
for the purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated financial statements.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Sec�on 133 of the Act.

 e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the Company as on March 
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors of the 
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng and the 
opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A” which is based 
on the auditor's reports of the Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of those companies.

 g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

          In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
remunera�on paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
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the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,  in our opinion and to the best of 
our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us:

  I. The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending li�ga�ons on the 
consolidated financial posi�on of the Group.

  ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 
deriva�ve contracts. 

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on fund by the company and its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India.

For Jayamal Thakore & Co.

 Chartered Accountants
Date: July 28, 2020 Firm's Registra�on Number: 104098W

Place: Ahmedabad   Mudit Singhal
 Partner
 Membership number: 187823
 UDIN: 20187823AAAAAV4985
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec�on of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunc�on with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of 
Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited (hereina�er referred to as “the Company”) and its subsidiary company, which is a 
company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respec�ve Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial repor�ng criteria established by the respec�ve Companies considering the essen�al components of 
internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng 
issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These  responsibili�es  include  the design, 
implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respec�ve company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 
Company and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and 
opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng of the Company and its 
subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the 
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company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of 
unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial  statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

1. In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
Company and its subsidiary Company which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial  controls system over financial repor�ng and such internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2020, based on the 
criteria for Internal financial Control over financial repor�ng established by the respec�ve Companies 
considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Jayamal Thakore & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm's Registration Number: 104098W

Date: July 28, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad Mudit Singhal

 Partner

 Membership number: 187823

 UDIN: 20187823AAAAAV4985
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

  PARTICULARS  Notes No. As at As at

    March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 I ASSETS

  Non-Current assets 

  Property plant and equipment 5 1,80,80,579 1,46,17,907 

  Intangible asset under development  6 32,96,71,617 21,36,92,181

  Intangible Assets  6 3,70,37,781 4,25,05,910

  Financial Assets - - -

   Investments 7 1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

   Loans 8 44,00,000 44,00,000

   Other Financial assets  - -

  Other non-current assets 10 3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

  Total non current assets  44,19,12,059 38,44,31,338

  Current assets

  Inventories 11 3,74,92,559 -

  Financial assets  - -

   Trade Receivables 12 11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

   Cash and cash equivalents 13 13,60,209 3,07,390

   Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalent 13 1,09,321 1,72,267

   Loans 8 16,35,851 2,39,30,564

   Other financial assets 9 7,32,85,843 8,24,20,908

  Other current assets 10 22,93,17,826 7,64,55,632

  Total current assets  46,26,11,224 32,81,49,202

  Total Assets  90,45,23,283 71,25,80,540

 II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  Equity

  Equity Share Capital  14 9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

  Other Equity     45,78,62,575 35,19,44,093

  Non - Controlling Interest   (229) (166) 

  Total Equity    55,67,01,382 44,21,15,325

  Liabili�es 

  Non Current Liabili�es

  Financial liabili�es 

  (i) Borrowings  15             6,75,34,404 4,13,31,668

  Provisions  16                33,76,288 23,83,862

  Total non-current liabili�es               7,09,10,692 4,37,15,530

  Current Liabili�es  

   Financial liabili�es  15 - 7,06,25,329

   Trade payables  17             1,14,23,612 3,58,43,865

   Other financial liabili�es  18           14,40,16,019 4,68,38,826

   Borrowings  15           10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

  Other Current liabili�es  19                49,70,851 79,99,107

  Provisions  16                  1,59,408 1,39,907

   Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 20                65,41,646 59,74,774

  Total current liabili�es            27,69,11,209 22,67,49,685

  Total Equity and Liabili�es             90,45,23,283 71,25,80,540

 Significant accoun�ng policies and notes to accounts 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date 

For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni

 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta

(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary

M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount in `)

  PARTICULARS  Notes No. 2019-2020 2018-2019

  Revenue from opera�ons 21          48,77,33,843            39,70,46,258
  Other Income 22                47,27,888              1,56,61,327

  Total Income           49,24,61,731            41,27,07,585

  Expenses
   Cost of Materials Consumed 23          23,57,97,966            21,39,01,089 
   Increase in inventories of finished goods, work in
   progress and Stock-in- trade 24           (3,74,92,559) -
   Employee benefits expense 25             8,26,25,250              4,45,37,172
   Finance Costs 26   1,78,14,443 1,19,22,949
   Travel Expenses 27             1,05,49,696                  77,31,581
   Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 5&6                87,75,339                  78,14,943
   Other expense 27          14,94,10,579 10,44,11,012

  Total Expense           46,74,80,714            39,03,18,746

  Profit before tax               2,49,81,017              2,23,88,839

  Tax expense:
    Current tax  70,47,628 48,46,607
   Deferred tax  5,66,872 9,40,432

  Profit for the period              1,73,66,517 1,66,01,800

  Other Comprehensive Income
   Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
   or loss Remeasurement of the net defined liability/asset  2,64,499                       73,684
   Equity instruments through other comprehensive income                 10,92,564                (36,21,420)
  Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - -
  Total Comprehensive income, net of tax                 13,57,063                (35,47,736)

  Total Comprehensive income for the period              1,87,23,580 1,30,54,064

  Owners of the Company  1,73,66,578 1,66,01,948
  Non-Controlling Interest  (61) (148)
  Earning per equity share
  Equity shares of par value ` 2 each              4,94,19,518              4,50,85,699
   Basic (`)                           0.35                             0.37 
   Diluted (`)  0.35 0.37
  Weighted average equity shares used in compu�ng
  earning per equity share              4,94,19,518              4,50,85,699

significant accoun�ng policies and notes to accounts 2 
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 
For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni
 Managing Director  Whole Time Director

 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta
(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary
M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440
Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

 (Amount in `) 

   PARTICULARS   2019-20 2018-19

  A. Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es  

  Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax                         2,49,81,017                         2,23,88,839 

  Adjustments for: 

  Add :

  Deprecia�on                             87,75,339  78,14,943

  Interest Paid  1,78,14,443 1,09,84,747

  Actuarial Gain                              4,95,818                           22,72,833

  Less:

  Interest Received  26,64,684 58,81,221

  Pre-Opera�ve Right Issue Exps  - 2,30,000

  Opera�ng Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes                          4,94,01,933                         3,73,50,141 

  Adjustments for: 

  Stock Work in Progress                    (3,74,92,559) -

  Trade Receivable                        2,54,52,826 (4,99,22,865)

  Loans  2,22,94,713                       (2,20,51,591)

  Other financial assets  91,35,065                        (1,62,79,914)

  Other non current assets                        5,78,72,758 (27,40,041)

  Other Current Assets                    (15,28,62,194)                       (2,39,22,306)

  Provisions  10,11,927  7,12,961 

  Trade payables  (2,44,20,253)                           9,79,597 

  Other financial liabili�es  2,65,51,864                            80,11,135 

  Other current liabili�es                                                  (30,28,256)                            (5,52,314)

  Cash Generated from Opera�on  (2,60,82,176) (6,84,15,197)

  Income tax Paid                          70,47,628 48,46,607

  Net Cash  Generated by opera�ng ac�vi�es                                          (3,31,29,804)                       (7,32,61,804)

 B. Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es 

  Intangible Asset under development                      (11,59,79,436)                     (11,38,81,389)

  Long Term Investments   (13,79,500) -

  Purchase of assets   (67,69,883)                          (84,02,830)

  Net Cash used in Inves�ng Ac�vi�es                      (12,41,28,819)                     (12,22,84,219)

 C. Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es 

  Interest Recieved   26,64,684 58,81,221 

  Proceeds from issue of share capital (incl.securi�es premium)                      9,67,23,721 -

  Borrowing                         7,66,74,532                       14,55,36,482  

  Less: 

  Interest paid    1,78,14,443 1,09,84,747

  Net Cash used in Financing Ac�vi�es                        15,82,48,494                       14,04,32,957  

  Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents                              9,89,871                        (5,51,13,066)

  Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 31-3-2019                               4,79,659                         5,55,92,725 

  Cash and Cash Equivalent as at 31-3-2020                            14,69,530                              4,79,659 

 NOTES : Previous year's figure has been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's classifica�on. 

As per our report of even date 
For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra  Chirag Soni
 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149  DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani  Shaili Mehta
(Partner) Director & CFO  Company Secretary
M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171  M No. 42440
Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020  Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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Par�culars Equity Share 
Capital

OTHER EQUITY

Total equity 
a�ributable to 
equity holders 

of the 
company

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Securi�es 
Premiuim 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensi
ve income

Balance as on April 1, 2018 9,01,71,398 25,97,93,884 6,04,42,662 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 - (72,689) 42,80,43,210 

Changes in the equity for the 
year ended March 31, 2019

Increase in share 
capital/Securi�es Premium on 
account of Rights issue

- - - - - - - -

Pre-opera�ve issue expenses - (2,30,000) - - - - - (2,30,000)

Equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income, 
net of tax effect

- - - - - (36,21,420) - (36,21,420)

Prior Period Item Adjustments 12,48,069 12,48,069 

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liablity, net of 
tax effect

- - - - - - 73,684 73,684 

Profit for the period - - 1,66,01,948 - - - - 1,66,01,948 

Balance as on March 31, 2019 9,01,71,398 25,95,63,884 7,82,92,679 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (36,21,420) 995 44,21,15,491 

Statement of Changes in Equity
F.Y.2018-19

Statement of Changes in Equity F.Y.2019-2020

Par�culars Equity Share 
Capital

OTHER EQUITY Total equity 
a�ributable to 
equity holders 

of the 
company

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income

Securi�es 
Premiuim 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Equity 
instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensi
ve income

Balance as on April 1, 2019 9,01,71,398 25,95,63,884 7,82,92,679 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (36,21,420) 995 44,21,15,491 

Changes in the equity for the
year ended March 31, 2020

Increase in share 
capital/Securi�es Premium on 
account of Rights issue

86,67,638 9,10,10,199 - - - - - 9,96,77,837 

Pre-opera�ve issue expenses - (29,54,113) - - - - - (29,54,113)

Equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income, 
net of tax effect

- - - - - 10,92,564 - 10,92,564 

Prior Period Item Adjustments (8,61,245) (8,61,245)

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liablity, net of 
tax effect

- - - - - - 2,64,499 2,64,499 

Profit for the period - - 1,73,66,578 - - - - 1,73,66,578 

Balance as on March 31, 2020 9,88,39,036 34,76,19,970 9,47,98,012 1,65,44,664 11,63,292 (25,28,856) 2,65,494 55,67,01,611 
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Consolidated financial statements of Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited is made up of the Scanpoint Geoma�cs 
Limited together with its subsidiaries Jyacad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd. (collec�vely referred to as the "Group").

The Company Is engaged in the business of GIS based so�ware development and sales. The Scanpoint 
Geoma�cs Limited is a public company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its 
shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. 

The principal accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on of the consolidated financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

  2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION & PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

    (a)  Statement of Compliance

      These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under sec�on 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as amended 
from �me to �me.

    (b)  Basis of measurement

      The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost conven�on 
and on an accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair 
value at end of the each repor�ng period, as explained in the accoun�ng policies below.

    (c)  Use of judgement, es�mates and assump�ons

      The prepara�on of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
management to make judgements, es�mates and assump�ons considered in the reported 
amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosure rela�ng to con�ngent liabili�es as at the date 
of consolidated financial statement and the reported amounts of income and expenditure 
during the reported year. Es�mates and       underlying assump�ons are reviewed on a periodic 
basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mates 
are revised and in any future periods affected. 

      In par�cular, informa�on about significant areas of es�ma�on, uncertainty and cri�cal 
judgments in applying accoun�ng policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following 
notes:

      i)  Income taxes

        The Group's major tax jurisdic�ons is India. Significant judgments are involved in 
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be 
paid/recovered for uncertain tax posi�ons. In assessing the reliability of deferred 
income tax assets, management considers whether some por�on or all of the deferred 
income tax assets will not be realized. The realiza�on of deferred income tax assets is 
dependent upon the genera�on of future taxable income during the periods in which 
the temporary differences become deduc�ble. Management considers the scheduled 
reversals of deferred income tax liabili�es, projected future taxable income and tax 
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable 
income and projec�ons for future taxable income over the periods in which the 
deferred income tax assets are deduc�ble, management believes that the company will 
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realize the benefits of those deduc�ble differences. The amount of the deferred income 
tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if 
es�mates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

      ii)  Impairment tes�ng

        Investments in goodwill and intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and 
when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount 
of the asset or cash genera�ng units to which these pertain is less than its carrying 
value. The recoverable amount of cash genera�ng units is higher of value-in-use and 
fair value less cost to dispose. The calcula�on of value in use of a cash genera�ng unit 
involves use of significant es�mates and assump�ons which includes turnover and 
earnings mul�ples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future 
cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market condi�ons.

      iii)  Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on

        Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on is based on management es�mates of the future useful 
lives of certain class of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Es�mates 
may change due to technological developments, compe��on, changes in market 
condi�ons and other factors and may result in changes in the es�mated useful life and 
in the deprecia�on and amor�sa�on charges.

      iv)  Other es�mates

        The prepara�on of Consolidated financial statements involves es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the reported amount of assets, liabili�es, disclosure of 
con�ngent liabili�es at the date of consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses for the repor�ng period. Specifically, the Company 
es�mates the probability of collec�on of accounts receivable by analyzing historical 
payment pa�erns, customer concentra�ons, customer credit worthiness and current 
economic trends. If the financial condi�on of a customer deteriorates, addi�onal 
allowances may be required. 

        The stock compensa�on expense is determined based on the Company's es�mate of 
equity instruments that will eventually vest. 

        Fair valua�on of deriva�ve hedging instruments designated as cash flow hedges 
involves significant es�mates rela�ng to the occurrence of forecast transac�on.

      v)  Es�ma�on of uncertain�es rela�ng to the global health pandemic COVID-19:

        The management has considered the possible effects, if any, that may result from the 
pandemic rela�ng to Covid 19 on the carrying amounts of receivables. In making the 
assump�ons and es�mates rela�ng to the uncertain�es as at the Balance sheet date in 
rela�on to recoverable amounts of these assets, the management has considered the 
global economic condi�ons prevailing at the date of approval of these financial 
statements and has used internal and external sources of Informa�on to the extent 
determined by it. The actual outcome of these assump�ons and es�mates may vary in 
the future due to the impact of the pandemic.

  2.2 Basis of Consolida�on

 Name of the Company Country of Propor�on of  Propor�on of 
  Incorpora�on Ownership as on  Ownership as on 
   March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Jyacad Solu�ons Pvt. Ltd. India 99.9% 99.9%
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    Principles of Consolida�on and equity accoun�ng

· Subsidiary companies

     Subsidiary companies are all en��es over which the Group has control. The Group controls an 
en�ty when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the en�ty and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant 
ac�vi�es of the en�ty. Subsidiary companies are fully consolidated from the date on which 
control is obtained by the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

     The acquisi�on method of accoun�ng is used to account for business combina�ons by the 
Group. 

     The Group combines the Consolidated Financial Statements of the parent and its subsidiary 
companies line by line adding together like items of assets, liabili�es, equity, income and 
expenses. Intercompany transac�ons, balances and unrealized gains on transac�ons between 
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transac�on 
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accoun�ng Policies of subsidiary 
companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group. 

     Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiary companies are shown separately 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of changes in equity 
and Consolidated Balance Sheet respec�vely.

· Equity Method

     Under the equity method of accoun�ng, the investments are ini�ally recognized at cost and 
adjusted therea�er to recognize share of the Group in post-acquisi�on profit and loss of the 
investee in profit and loss, and share of the Group in Other Comprehensive Income of the 
investee in Other Comprehensive Income. Dividends received or receivable from subsidiary 
Company are recognized as a reduc�on in the carrying amount of the investment. 

     When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its 
interest in the en�ty, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not 
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obliga�ons or made payments on behalf of the 
other en�ty. 

     Unrealized gains on transac�ons between the Group and its subsidiary Company are eliminated 
to the extent of the Group interest in these en��es. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless 
the transac�on provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accoun�ng Policies 
of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with 
the policies adopted by the Group. 

     The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance 
with the policy described in (ix) below.

· Change in ownership interest

     The Group treats transac�ons with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control 
as transac�ons with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an 
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to 
reflect their rela�ve interest in the subsidiary companies. Any difference between the amount of 
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any considera�on paid or received is recognised 
within equity.

     When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of 
control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the en�ty is remeasured to 
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its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss. This fair value becomes the ini�al carrying amount for the purpose of 
subsequent accoun�ng for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. 
In addi�on, any amount previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in respect of 
that en�ty are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 
liabili�es. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
are reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

     If the ownership interest in a joint venture Company or an associate is reduced but joint control 
or significant influence is retained, only a propor�onate share of the amounts previously 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss where appropriate.

  2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

    (a)  Func�onal and presenta�on currency

      Items included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Company are measured using 
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the 
“func�onal currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the na�onal 
currency of India, which is the func�onal currency of the Company. The func�onal currency of 
its subsidiary is also Indian Rupee.

    (b)  Property, plant and equipment

      Property, plant and equipment are measured at histo�cal cost or its deemed cost less 
accumulated deprecia�on and impairment losses, if any. Historical Cost includes 
expenditures directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the asset.

      When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
Subsequent expenditure rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss when incurred.

      An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the con�nued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or re�rement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

    (c)  Capital work-in-progress

      Amounts paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of 
each repor�ng date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use 
before such date are disclosed under capital advances and capital work-in-progress 
respec�vely.

    (d)  Deprecia�on/ Amor�sa�on

      Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of asset less its es�mated residual value. 

      Deprecia�on has been provided on all assets on the straight line method, as per the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

      The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecia�on of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospec�vely, if appropriate. 
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is objec�ve evidence that a 
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asset or a group of assets is impaired. An asset's carrying amount is wri�en down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its es�mated 
recoverable amount.

      The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

    (e)  Leases

      From April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 'Leases' is applicable to all the listed companies. Ind AS 116 has 
certain exemp�ons from the applica�on of Ind AS – 116:

      (i)  Short Term Leases

        A lease that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less. 
However, a lease that contains an op�on to purchase the asset is not a short-term lease.

· The elec�on for short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to which 
the right of use relates and can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.

      (ii)  Leases for low value assets

        An underlying asset can be of low value only if:

        - the lessee can benefit from use of the underlying asset on its own or together with 
other resources that are readily available to the lessee; and

        - the underlying asset is not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other 
assets.

§ Examples of low-value underlying assets can include tablet and personal computers, 
small items of office furniture and telephones.

§ When new, if the asset is typically not of low value, the lease of such asset does not 
qualify as a lease of a low-value asset.

§ If a lessee subleases an asset, or expects to sublease an asset, the head lease does not 
qualify as a lease of a low-value asset.

§ The assessment of whether an underlying asset is of low value is performed on an 
absolute basis. Leases of low-value assets qualify for recogni�on exemp�on regardless 
of whether those leases are material to the lessee. The assessment is not affected by 
the size, nature or circumstances of the lessee.

        Accoun�ng for short term and low value asset leases

        If a lessee elects to opt for the recogni�on exemp�on for either short-term leases or 
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognise the lease 
payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over 
the lease term or another systema�c basis.

        According to informa�on and explana�on provided to us, all the lease agreements of 
company are short term lease agreements so applica�on of new Ind AS – 116 'Leases' is 
not applicable to us.

    (g)  Financial Instruments

      All financial instruments are recognised ini�ally at fair value. Transac�on costs that are 
a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase 
or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a �me frame established by 
regula�on or conven�on in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade 
date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly a�ributable 
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transac�on costs.

      For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Group are 
classified in the following categories: non-deriva�ve financial assets comprising amor�sed 
cost, debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity 
instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL), non deriva�ve 
financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost or FVTPL and deriva�ve financial instruments (under the 
category of financial assets or financial liabili�es) at FVTPL.

      The classifica�on of financial instruments depends on the objec�ve of the business model for 
which it is held. Management determines the classifica�on of its financial instruments at 
ini�al recogni�on.

      Non-deriva�ve financial assets

    i. Financial assets at amor�sed cost

     A financial asset shall be measured at amor�sed cost if both of the following condi�ons are met:

     (a)  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

     (b)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

       They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months a�er 
the repor�ng date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are 
measured ini�ally at fair value plus transac�on costs and subsequently carried at 
amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest rate method, less any impairment loss.

       Financial assets at amor�sed cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, 
cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current and non-
current assets.

       Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with 
banks which can be withdrawn at any �me without prior no�ce or penalty on the principal.

       For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on 
hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdra�s that 
are repayable on demand, book overdra� and are considered part of the Company's cash 
management system.

    ii. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income   (FVTOCI)

     For assets, if it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the company has exercised the 
op�on to classify the equity investment as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the investment are 
recognised in OCI. The accumulated gains or losses on such investments are not recycled to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss even on sale of such investment.

    iii. Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL) 

     Financial assets which is not classified in any of the above category is measured at FVTPL. These 
include surplus funds invested in mutual funds etc.

     Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair values with all changes 
recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

    Non-deriva�ve financial liabili�es

    Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost
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     Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are 
ini�ally recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve 
interest rate method. For trade and other payable maturing within one year from the Balance 
Sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value due to short maturity.

     Financial liabili�es at Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL)

     Financial liabili�es at FVTPL represented by con�ngent considera�on are measured at fair value 
with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

     Deriva�ve financial instruments and hedging ac�vi�es

     A deriva�ve is a financial instrument which changes value in response to changes in an 
underlying asset and is se�led at a future date. Deriva�ves are ini�ally recognised at fair value on 
the date a deriva�ve contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair 
value. The method of recognizing the resul�ng gain or loss depends on whether the deriva�ve is 
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

     The Group enters into deriva�ve contracts to hedge the risks asserted with currency fluctua�ons 
rela�ng to firm commitments and highly probable transac�ons. The Company does not use 
deriva�ve instruments for specula�ve purposes.

     The Group documents, at the incep�on of the transac�on, the rela�onship between hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objec�ves and strategy for 
undertaking various hedging transac�ons. The Group also documents its assessment, both at 
hedge incep�on and on an on-going basis, of whether the deriva�ves that are used in hedging 
transac�ons are effec�ve in offse�ng changes in cash flows of hedged items.

     The effec�ve por�on of changes in the fair value of deriva�ves that are designated and qualify as 
cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The ineffec�ve por�on of 
changes in the fair value of the deriva�ve is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

     Amounts accumulated in hedging reserve are reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

     The full fair value of a hedging deriva�ve is classified as a current/ non-current, asset or liability 
based on the remaining maturity of the hedged item.

     When a hedging instrument expires, swapped or unwound, or when a hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accoun�ng, any cumula�ve gain or loss exis�ng in Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

     Offse�ng financial instruments

     Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount reported in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realize the asset and se�le the liability 
simultaneously.

     Fair value measurement

     The Group classifies the fair value of its financial instruments in the following hierarchy, based on 
the inputs used in their valua�on:

     i)  Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in ac�ve markets is based on their 
quoted closing price at the Balance Sheet date.

     ii)  Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market is 
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determined by using valua�on techniques using observable market data. Such valua�on 
techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valua�on models based on market 
parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for 
similar instruments and use of comparable arm's length transac�ons.

     iii)  Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of en�ty 
specific valua�ons using inputs that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability, the Company carries such instruments at cost less impairment, if 
applicable.

    (h)  Employee Benefits

      i. Short term employee benefits:

       Short Term benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amounts in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

      ii. Post employment benefits:

       a)  Defined contribu�on plan:

         The Employee and Company make monthly fixed Contribu�on to Government of 
India Employee's Provident Fund equal to a specified percentage of the Cover 
employee's salary, Provision for the same is made in the year in which service are 
render by employee.

       b)  Defined benefit plans:

         The Liability for Gratuity to employees, which is a defined benefit plan, as at Balance 
Sheet date determined on the basis of actuarial Valua�on based on Projected Unit 
Credit method and the contribu�on thereof paid/payable is absorbed in the 
accounts.

         The present value of the defined benefit obliga�ons is determined by discoun�ng 
the es�mated future cash flows at a predetermined rate of interest, taking into 
account the probability of payment. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

         Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assump�ons are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in balance sheet. Changes in present value of the 
defined benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendment or curtailments are 
recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

      iii. Other long term employee benefits:

       Other long term employee benefits comprises of leave encashment towards un-availed 
leave and compensated absences, these are recognized based on the present value of 
defined obliga�on which is computed using the project unit credit method, with actuarial 
valua�ons being carried out at the end of each annual repor�ng period. These are 
accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permi�ed.

       Remeasurement of leave encashment towards un-availed leave and compensated 
absences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except those included in cost of 
assets as permi�ed in the period which they occur.
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    (I)  Provisions

      Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to 
se�le the obliga�on, and a reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on.

      The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the considera�on  required to 
se�le the present obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on.

      When some or all of the economic benefits required to se�le a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

      Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by 
the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of mee�ng the future 
obliga�ons under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present 
value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of 
termina�ng the contract.

    (j)  Income Taxes

     � Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly 
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

      a)  Current income tax - Current income tax liability/ (asset) for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxa�on authori�es based on the taxable income for the year. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substan�vely 
enacted by the repor�ng date and applicable for the year. The Group off sets current tax 
assets and current tax liabili�es, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts and where it intends either to se�le on a net basis or to realize the 
asset and liability simultaneously.

      b)  Deferred tax - Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. 
Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are recognized for deduc�ble and taxable 
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabili�es and their 
carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transac�on that is not 
a business combina�on and affects neither accoun�ng nor taxable profits or loss at the 
�me of the transac�on.

        Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deduc�ble temporary differences and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be u�lized. Deferred 
income tax liabili�es are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

        The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each repor�ng date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be u�lized.

        Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is se�led, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted at the 
repor�ng date.
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INCOME TAX

A) Major Components of Deferred Tax Liabili�es /(Assets) arriving on account of �ming difference are as follow:

As at March 31, 2020            (`) 

Par�culars As at March 31, Availment of Recognised Recognised  As at March 31, 
 2019  MAT Credit  in profit & loss in OCI 2020

Fixed assets :- Impact of difference       52,82,597 - 3,21,391 - 56,03,988
between WDV as per Income Tax Act
and as per books of accounts 

Fair Value on Unquoted Investment 
MAT Credit En�tlement  - - - - -

Expense Allowable for 
Tax on payment 6,92,177 - 2,45,481 - 9,37,658

Carried Forward 
Capital Loss FY 2018-19  - - - - -

Total 59,74,774 - 5,66,872 - 65,41,646 

As at March 31, 2019            (`) 

Par�culars As at March 31, Availment of Recognised Recognised  As at March 31,
 2018  MAT Credit  in profit & loss in OCI 2019

Fixed assets :- Impact of difference       71,00,991 - (18,18,394) - 52,82,597
between WDV as per Income Tax Act 
and as per books of accounts

Fair Value on Unquoted Investment 

MAT Credit En�tlement  - - - - -

Expense Allowable for 
Tax on payment 4,82,731 - 2,09,446 - 6,92,177

Carried Forward 
Capital Losses  - - - - -

Total 75,83,722 - (16,08,948) - 59,74,774 

Par�culars  As at  March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

B) Income Taxes

Major component of Tax expenses for the year are as under :

(I) Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Tax 70,47,628 48,46,607 

Income Tax for Prior years - -

Deferred Tax 5,66,872 9,40,432

 76,14,500 57,87,039

(ii) Income tax recognised in OCI

Income tax expenses on remeasurement of defined employee benefits plans 1,01,945 28,399

Income Tax expenses on Remeasurement of financial instruments 2,86,936 (9,51,080)

 3,88,881 (9,22,681)

 80,03,381 48,64,358

C) Reconcilia�on of Tax expenses and the accoun�ng profit for the year is as under :

Profit before tax 2,50,43,949 2,23,88,839

Income Tax exp 70,47,628 48,46,607 

Tax effect on non deduc�ble exp - 1,24,057 

effect of income which is tax at Special Rate - -

effect of income exempted from tax - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80IC - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80G - -

Tax effect for deduc�on u/s 80JJAA - -

Tax effect for exemp�on u/s 10AA - -
Tax effect of R & D expenses - - 

MAT Credit en�tlement - - 

Income Tax for Prior years - -

Other

 70,47,628 49,70,664 
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  (k) Cash flow Statement:
   Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted 

for the effects of transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
opera�ng cash receipt or payments and item of income or expense associated with inves�ng 
or financing cash-flows. The cash flow from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the 
Group are segregated.

  (l) Revenue Recogni�on
   The Group derives revenue primarily from so�ware development and from the licensing of 

so�ware products. The Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or 
a service to a customer. The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the 
nature of the services rendered.

   The �ming of revenue recogni�on, billings and cash collec�ons results in receivables, unbilled 
revenue, and unearned revenue on the Group's Balance Sheet. Amounts are billed as work 
progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, either at periodic intervals 
(e.g., monthly or quarterly) or upon achievement of contractual milestones.

   The Group's receivables are rights to considera�on that are uncondi�onal. Unbilled revenues 
comprising revenues in excess of billings from �me and material contracts and fixed-price 
maintenance contracts are classified as financial asset when the right to considera�on is 
uncondi�onal and is due only a�er a passage of �me.

    Invoicing to the clients for other fixed-price contracts is based on milestones as defined in the 
contract and therefore the �ming of revenue recogni�on is different from the �ming of 
invoicing to the customers. Therefore unbilled revenues for other fixed-price contracts 
(contract asset) are classified as “non-financial asset” because the right to considera�on is 
dependent on comple�on of contractual milestones. Invoicing in excess of earnings is 
classified as “unearned revenue”. 

   Trade receivables and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance 
Sheet. During the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, 4.15 crore and 4.32 crore 
of unbilled revenue pertaining to other fixed price and fixed �me frame contracts as of April 1, 
2019 and April 1, 2018, respec�vely has been reclassified to “trade receivables” upon billing 
to customers on comple�on of milestones. 

   Remaining performance obliga�on disclosure:
   The remaining performance obliga�on disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the 

transac�on price yet to be recognized as at the end of the repor�ng period and an explana�on 
as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the 
prac�cal expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining 
performance obliga�on-related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized 
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the en�ty's performance completed to 
date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on �me and material and unit of work-based 
contracts. Remaining performance obliga�on es�mates are subject to change and are 
affected by several factors, including termina�ons, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic 
revalida�ons, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for 
currency. 

   a) Time and materials contracts
    Revenues from contracts priced on a �me and material basis are recognised as the related 

services are performed and related costs are incurred.
   b) Fixed-price contracts

    Revenues from fixed-price contracts are recognized using the “percentage-of-comple�on” 

method. Percentage of comple�on is determined based on project costs incurred to date as a 

percentage of total es�mated project costs required to complete the project. The cost expended 

(or input) method has been used to measure progress towards comple�on as there is a direct 
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rela�onship between input and produc�vity.

    If the Group does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of comple�on or to es�mate 

the total contract revenues and costs, revenue is recognized only to the extent of contract cost 

incurred for which recoverability is probable.

    When total cost es�mates exceed revenues in an arrangement, the es�mated losses are 

recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which such losses 

become probable based on the current contract es�mates.

   c) Maintenance Contracts

    Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognized ratably over the period of the contract using 

the “percentage-of-comple�on” method. When services are performed through an indefinite 

number of repe��ve acts over a specified period of �me, revenue is recognized on a straight line 

basis over the specified period or under some other method that be�er represents the stage of 

comple�on.

    'Unbilled revenues' represent cost and earnings in excess of billings as at the end of the repor�ng 

period.

    'Unearned revenues' represent billing in excess of revenue recognized. Advance payments 

received from customers for which no services are rendered are presented as 'Advance from 

customers.

    Revenues are reported net of GST and applicable discounts and allowances.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Par�culars Year 2019-2020 Year 2018-2019

(a) Sale of products
GiS Product and Other Ancilliery 23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265

 23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265
(b) Sale of Services
Gis So�ware Solu�ons and Customiza�on 25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993
 25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993

Total 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258 

Par�culars   Year 2019-2020  Year 2018-2019

Revenue from contracts with customers 
disaggregated based on geography   
a. Domes�c 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258
b. Exports - -

Total Revenue from Opera�on 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

C. Reconcilia�on of gross revenue from contracts with customers
Gross Revenue 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258
Less : Commission & Discount - -
Less : Return/Rejec�on/Shortage/Deduc�on - -
Less : Deduc�on for Rework/Rec�fica�on/Price Difference - -
Net revenue recognized from contracts with customers 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

OTHER INCOME   

Par�culars Year 2019-2020 Year 2018-2019 

a) Interest income
 I. On Deposit with Banks 26,64,684 41,63,003
 ii. Interest from Others - 17,18,218
c) Other  Receipts
 I. Others  5,81,148 56,33,530
d) Other gain and losses
I. Net gain on foreign currency transac�on 14,82,056 41,46,576

Total  47,27,888 1,56,61,327
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  (m) Dividend and dividend distribu�on tax

   Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and 

interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declara�on by the Company's Board of 

Directors. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and are subject to applicable 

distribu�on taxes. The applicable distribu�on taxes are treated as an appropria�on of profits.

  (n) Foreign Currency transac�ons and transla�ons

   Transac�ons in foreign currency are translated into the respec�ve func�onal currencies using the 

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respec�ve transac�ons. 

   Foreign exchange gains and losses resul�ng from the se�lement of such transac�ons and from the 

transla�on at the exchange rates prevailing at repor�ng date of monetary assets and liabili�es 

denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses).

   Non-monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost 

are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transac�on.

   Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the fair value of 

foreign exchange deriva�ve instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or loss.

  (o) Finance Income and expense

   Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, dividend income and fair value gains on 

the FVTPL financial assets. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and 

loss, using the effec�ve interest method.

   Dividend income is recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss on the date that the 

Group's right to receive payment is established.

   Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are 

recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss using the effec�ve interest method.

  (p) Impairment

   a) Financial assets

    In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for 

measurement and recogni�on of impairment loss.

    The Group assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial 

assets is impaired. The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recogni�on of impairment loss 

allowance on trade receivable and unbilled revenue. The applica�on of simplified approach 

does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment 

loss allowance based on life�me ECLs at each repor�ng date, right from its ini�al recogni�on. 

The Group recognizes life�me expected credit losses for all trade receivables and/or other 

contract assets that do not cons�tute a financing transac�on. For all other financial assets, 

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses 

or at an amount equal to the life �me expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial 

asset has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on.

    ECL allowance (or reversal) is recognised as income / expense in the Consolidated Statement of 

Profit and Loss.

   b) Non-financial assets

    The Group assesses at each repor�ng date whether there is any objec�ve evidence that a non 

financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indica�on exists, the 

Company es�mates the amount of impairment loss.
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    An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying 

amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and 

Loss and reflected in an allowance account. If the amount of impairment loss 

subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objec�vely to an event 

occurring a�er the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised 

impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, 

provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined (net off any accumulated deprecia�on/amor�sa�on) had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

    The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-genera�ng unit (as defined below) is 

the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in 

use, the es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, 

assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash 

inflows from con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of 

other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-genera�ng unit”).

  (q) Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit a�ributable to the 

equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period.

   Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit a�ributable to 

the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 

considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average 

number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilu�ve 

poten�al equity shares. The dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are adjusted for the 

proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the 

average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares 

are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. 

Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are determined independently for each period 

presented.

  (r) Con�ngent Liabili�es

   Con�ngent liabili�es exist when there is a possible obliga�on arising from past events, 

the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one 

or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group, or a present 

obliga�on that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ou�low of 

resources will be required or the amount cannot be reliably es�mated. Con�ngent 

liabili�es are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an ou�low of resources 

embodying economic benefits is remote.

  (s) Con�ngent Assets

   A con�ngent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence 

will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
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future events not wholly within the control of the en�ty. The Group does not recognize a con�ngent 

asset.

  (t) Events a�er the repor�ng period

    Adjus�ng events are events that provide further evidence of condi�ons that existed at the end of the 

repor�ng period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisa�on for issue.

   Non-adjus�ng events are events that are indica�ve of condi�ons that arose a�er the end of the 

repor�ng period. Non-adjus�ng events a�er the repor�ng date are not accounted, but disclosed.

  (u) Intangible Assets

   Intangible assets are measured on ini�al recogni�on at cost (net of recoverable taxes, if any). 

Subsequently, intangible assets are carried out at cost less any accumulated amor�za�on and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

   The gain or loss arising on the disposal or re�rement of an intangible asset is determined as the 

difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized as 

income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year or disposal.

  (v) Borrowing Costs

   Borrowing costs include interest and amor�za�on of ancillary costs incurred to the extent they are 

regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connec�on with the borrowing of funds to the 

extent not directly related to the acquisi�on of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit 

and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and u�lised for qualifying assets, 

pertaining to the period from commencement of ac�vi�es rela�ng to construc�on / development of 

the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisa�on of such asset is added to the cost of the assets. 

Capitalisa�on of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during 

extended periods when ac�ve development ac�vity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

   During the year company has not capitalized any borrowing cost.

  (w) Rounding of amounts

   All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 

rupees as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

  (x) Goods & Service Tax:

   GST credit on materials purchased for produc�on / service availed for produc�on / input service are 

taken into account at the �me of purchase and GST credit on purchase of capital items wherever 

applicable are taken into account as and when the assets are acquired.

   The GST credits so taken are u�lized for payment of excise duty/GST on sales. The unu�lized GST credit 

is carried forward in the books. The GST credits so taken are u�lized for payment of tax on goods sold. 

The unu�lized GST credit is carried forward in the books.

3. Recent Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS)

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standard or amendments to the exis�ng standards. There is no 

such no�fica�on which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

4. Equity shares movement during the year ended March 31, 2020

 The Company has issued 43,33,819 right shares of face value Rs. 2 per share during the current financial year.
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NOTE 5 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

  Par�culars Building  Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Computer & Electric  Total

  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment Peripheral Installa�on 

  Year Ended March 31,2019

  Gross Carrying amount 13,40,578 46,82,059 48,21,224 11,94,843 9,66,702 20,87,821 8,83,273 1,59,76,500

  Addi�ons                            - 4,42,750 11,57,340 - 67,806 34,18,609 3,91,415 54,77,920

  Disposals - - - - - - - -

  Closing Gross 

  Carrying Amount 13,40,578 51,24,809 59,78,564 11,94,843 10,34,508 55,06,430 12,74,688 2,14,54,420

  Accumulated Depreci�on 1,49,817 16,20,103 14,32,984 4,13,387 1,96,505 6,41,409 2,05,503 46,59,708

  Depreciated during the year 75,352 3,72,174 7,07,019 1,91,090 2,00,777 5,18,539 1,11,854 21,76,805

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 2,25,169 19,92,277 21,40,003 6,04,477 3,97,282 11,59,948 3,17,357 68,36,513

  Net carrying amount  11,15,409 31,32,532 38,38,561 5,90,366 6,37,226 43,46,482 9,57,331 1,46,17,907

  Par�culars Building  Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Computer & Electric  Total

  Equipment  Fixtures  Equipment Peripheral Installa�on 

  Year Ended March 31,2020

  Gross Carrying amount 13,40,578 51,24,809 59,78,564 11,94,843 10,34,508 55,06,430 12,74,688 2,14,54,420

  Addi�ons - 4,35,641 2,07,211 - 1,06,064 53,94,647 3,82,642 65,26,204

  Disposals - - - - - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount 13,40,578 55,60,450 61,85,775 11,94,843 11,40,572 1,09,01,077 16,57,330 2,79,80,624

  Accumulated Depreci�on 2,25,169 19,92,277 21,40,003 6,04,477 3,97,282 11,59,948 3,17,357 68,36,513

  Depreciated during the year 75,344 3,99,491 7,65,377 1,91,041 2,20,630 12,55,824 1,55,825 30,63,532

  Disposals - - - - - - - -  

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 3,00,513 23,91,768 29,05,380 7,95,518 6,17,912 24,15,772 4,73,182 99,00,045 

  Net carrying amount 10,40,065 31,68,682 32,80,395 3,99,325 5,22,660 84,85,305 11,84,148 1,80,80,579

NOTE 6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

  Par�culars IGIS So�ware  So�ware Intangible Assets Total
 Ver. 2.0  Under Development

  Year Ended March 31,2019 

  Gross Carrying amount              5,54,34,677 2,00,000 9,75,77,548 15,32,12,225

  Addi�ons - 6,91,666 11,61,14,633 11,68,06,299 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount              5,54,34,677 8,91,666 21,36,92,181 27,00,18,524

  Accumulated Depreci�on                  81,73,551 8,745 - 81,82,296 

  Depreciated during the year 55,25,260 1,12,878 - 56,38,138 

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 1,36,98,811 1,21,623 - 1,38,20,434 

  Net carrying amount 4,17,35,866 7,70,043 21,36,92,181 25,61,98,090

  Par�culars IGIS So�ware  So�ware Intangible Assets Total
   Ver. 2.0  Under Development

  Year Ended March 31,2020

  Gross Carrying amount 5,54,34,677 8,91,666 21,36,92,181 27,00,18,524 

  Addi�ons - 2,43,679 11,59,79,436 11,62,23,115 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Gross Carrying Amount 5,54,34,677 11,35,345 32,96,71,617 38,62,41,639 

  Accumulated Depreci�on 1,36,98,811 1,21,623 - 1,38,20,434 

  Depreciated during the year 55,23,640 1,88,167 - 57,11,807 

  Disposals - - - -

  Closing Accumulated Deprecia�on 1,92,22,451 3,09,790 - 1,95,32,241

  Net carrying amount 3,62,12,226 8,25,555 32,96,71,617 36,67,09,398 
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 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 (Amount in  `) 

 PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `

NOTE 7

Financial Assets

Investments 

non-current investment

unquoted

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

Shreejikrupa Buildcon Ltd   

310000 Equity Shares   1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

Total Investment   1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income  1,54,07,000 1,40,27,500

NOTE 8

Financial Assets

LOANS

Non-current

Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured

Other Loans   44,00,000 44,00,000

     44,00,000 44,00,000

Current

Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured

Loan to employees   53,150 86,000

Intercorporate Loan   15,11,970 2,41,06,396

Other loans  & Advances   70,731 (2,61,832)

     16,35,851 2,39,30,564

    TOTAL  60,35,851 2,83,30,564

NOTE 9

Other Financial Assets

Current

Security Deposits*   67,36,806 67,92,516

Rental Deposits*   18,41,700 10,81,700

Margin Money for Bank Gurantee  1,20,15,460 6,81,93,859

Fixed Deposit in Lien of Axis Bank  5,25,00,000 61,37,013

Interest receivable   1,91,877 2,15,820

     7,32,85,843 8,24,20,908

NOTE 10

Other Assets

Non-current

Others

Long Term Trade Receivable, unsecured considered good  3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

     3,73,15,082 9,51,87,840

Other Current Assets

Unbilled Revenue   21,42,28,026 6,16,97,827

Pre-paid expenses   20,97,292 10,42,703

Balance with Government Authority  1,29,92,509 1,37,15,103

     22,93,17,826 7,64,55,632

    TOTAL  26,66,32,908 17,16,43,472
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `

NOTE 11

INVENTORIES

Work- in - Progress   3,74,92,559 -

    TOTAL 3,74,92,559 -

NOTE 12

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  - -

Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired  - -

Less: Allowance for doub�ul trade receivables  - -

Total Receivables   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Secured,considered good   - -

Unsecured,considered good   11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

Doub�ul    - -

    TOTAL 11,94,09,615 14,48,62,441

NOTE 13

Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash on Hand   13,60,209 3,07,390

  Balance with  Banks 

  - In Current  Accounts   1,09,321 1,72,267

  -In CC  Account   - -

    TOTAL  14,69,530 4,79,657

NOTE 14

SHARE CAPITAL

-Authorised

65000000 Equity Shares of ` 2/- each  13,00,00,000 13,00,00,000

-Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
* 4,94,19,518 Equity Shares of `2/- each  fully    paid-up.  9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

    TOTAL 9,88,39,036 9,01,71,398

   Reconcilia�on of Shares:  Number Amt (`) Number Amt (`)

Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398 2,69,04,000 5,38,08,000

Add: Shares issued During the year - - - - 

Add: Rights/Bonus Shares Issued 43,33,819 86,67,638 1,81,81,699 3,63,63,398 

   Total 4,94,19,518 9,88,39,036 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398 

Less: Buy back of Shares  - - - -

Less Reduc�on in Capital  - - - -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 4,94,19,518 9,88,39,036 4,50,85,699 9,01,71,398

Terms and rights a�ached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each holder of equity share is en�tled 
to one vote per share

List of Share holders having 5% or more Shares (In Nos)

Name of Shareholders  Number of   %  of    Number of  %  of    

    shares held Holding shares held Holding

Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Limited                                  1,10,59,203 22.38% 1,12,59,203 24.97% 

Rajesh Chandubhai Thakkar  31,00,000 6.27% 46,18,680 10.24% 

Theeta Trading LLP  41,65,693 8.43% 41,65,693 9.24% 

SMC Global Securi�es Limited  38,16,006 7.72% 625 0.00% 

Upsilon Trading LLP  26,51,263 5.36% - - 

Rajesh Chandubhai Thakkar HUF 24,70,712 4.99% 24,70,712 5.48%
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 15
Financial Liabili�es 
Long Term Borrowings 
Unsecured 
From NBFC   73,30,193 -
From Bank    48,18,750
Intercorporate Deposits 
From Shareholders   - 1,27,05,510
From others   5,33,02,724 2,86,26,158
Loans and advances from Related Par�es
From Directors   10,00,000 -
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Par�es   10,82,737 -

     6,75,34,404 4,13,31,668

Short Term Borrowings 
Secured
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from banks  10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

     10,97,99,673 5,93,27,877

Unsecured
Loans and advances from Related Par�es
From Directors   - 2,85,00,000
Intercorporate Deposits
From Related Par�es   - 4,21,25,329

     - 7,06,25,329

A) For Working Capital Loans 
 1) Nature of Security:- Secured by way of hypothica�on of book debts and collateral Security of exten�on of mortgage of
  Residen�al Flat and Bunglow at Ahmedabad
 2) Rate of Interest :- Working Capital Loan from banks carry interest rate of 9.80%   Per annuam(For previuos year the rate 
  was 12.6%
B) For Intercorporate Deposits 
 1) Inter corporate deposits carry interest @ and is in the course of business
C) For Business Loans: It is Unsecured Loan
 1) Nature of Security:- It is Unsecured Loan
 2) Rate of Interest :-
 Loan from Bajaj Finance Limited carry interest rate of @ 18.5% per annum.
 Loan from ECL Finance LTD carry interest rate of @ 18.5% per annum
 Loan from ICICI BANK carry interest rate of @ 17% per annum
 Loan from India Infoline Finanace Limited carry interest rate of @ 19% per annum
 Loan from KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED carry interest rate of @ 19.43% per annum
 Loan from Magma Fincorp Limited carry interest rate of @ 18.50% per annum
 Loan from Tata Capital interest rate of @ 18.25% per annum

    TOTAL 17,73,34,077 17,12,84,874

NOTE 16
Provisions
Long Term
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity    25,28,444 20,42,315
Leave Encashment   8,47,844 3,41,547

     33,76,288 23,83,862

Short Term
Provision for Audit Fee   10,000 -
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity    50,005 1,07,358
Leave Encashment   99,403 32,549
     1,59,408 1,39,907

    TOTAL  35,35,696 25,23,769 
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 17
Trade Payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 5,00,68,301 7,11,55,118
Others    (3,86,44,689) (3,53,11,253)

    TOTAL 1,14,23,612 3,58,43,865

Note:
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprise
The Company has certain dues to suppliers under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act,2006 (MSMED Act).  The disclosures pursuant  to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

 As at   March 31, 
2020 

 As at   March 31, 
2019 

 a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 
end of the year 

5,00,68,301 7,11,40,118 

 b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
the year 

- -

 c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec�on 16 
of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

- -

 d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyong the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act, 2006 

- -

 e)  The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accoun�ng year 

- -

f)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the interest 
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure under 
sec�on 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

- -

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro,Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 
2006" is based on the informa�on available with the Company regarding the status of registra�on of such 
vendors under the said Act, as per the in�ma�on received from them on requests made by the 
Company.There are no overdue principle amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such 
vendors at the Balance Sheet date. The payment is made to vendors according to terms and condi�ons 
mutually agreed to both par�es and accordingly there is no delay in payment to these vendors and no interest 
liability therefore.
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 18
Other Financial Liabili�es 
Current 
Employee Benefits payable   79,09,618  62,05,036
Provision for Expenses   12,06,96,202  3,42,53,198
Income Tax Provision   44,37,511
Advance from customers   - 23,55,423
Other payables   4,75,061 11,33,044
Current maturi�es of long term borrowings 
Unsecured: 
From NBFC    71,70,628 28,92,125
From Bank   33,27,000 
Terms and condi�ons of the above financial liabili�es: 
-Other payables include fees payable which are normally se�led on quarterly basis
-Employee benefits payables are normally se�led on monthly basis 
-Provision for expenses are se�led as and when invoices are received by the company 

    TOTAL 14,40,16,019 4,68,38,826

NOTE 19
Other Liabili�es
Current
Provident Fund   10,531  25,833
Statutory Dues   49,60,320 79,73,274

     49,70,851 79,99,107

NOTE 20
Income Taxes
Deferred Income Tax Liability
Intangible Assets    60,40,930 62,20,109
Employee Benefits   9,37,658 6,92,177
Deferred Expenditures   - -
Other Equity   - -

     69,78,588 69,12,286

Deferred Income Tax Assets 
Property,plant and equipment    4,36,942 9,37,512

Deferred Income Tax Liabili�es a�er set off   65,41,646  59,74,774

NOTE 21
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Indigenous Sales 
Sales of Products    23,74,66,181 21,53,76,265
Services Sales    25,02,67,662 18,16,69,993

    TOTAL 48,77,33,843 39,70,46,258

NOTE 22            
OTHER INCOME 
Interest On Fixed Deposit    26,64,684 41,63,003
Foreign Exchange Fluctua�on   14,82,056 41,46,577
Creditors Wri�en Back   1,91,400 5,53,534
Statutory Provision Wri�en off as not payable  - 50,63,095
Interest from Others   - 17,18,218
Other non-opera�ng income   3,89,749 16,900

    TOTAL 47,27,888 1,56,61,327
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PARTICULARS    As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
     Amount in  ` Amount in  `
NOTE 23
COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Raw Materials' Consump�on
Inventory at the beginning of the year  - -
Add: Purchases during the year   23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089
Less : Inventory at the beginning end of the year  - -

Cost of Raw material consumed  23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089

NOTE 24
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
Project Work in process   (3,74,92,559) -

Change in inventories of WIP   (3,74,92,559) -

NOTE 25
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc.   7,98,80,304 4,26,29,269
Contribu�on to P.F, E.S.I and Other Statutory Funds  1,80,514 3,59,076    
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses  10,85,210 6,98,066
Leave Encase Allowance   6,43,380 2,05,954
Provision of Gratuity   8,35,842 6,44,807

    TOTAL 8,26,25,250 4,45,37,172

NOTE 26
FINANCE COSTS  
Interest Expense
Interest on Working Capital Loan  83,86,099 46,22,520
Bank & Other Charges   43,96,305 9,38,202
Other Borrowing Costs
Interest to others    50,32,039 63,62,227

    TOTAL 1,78,14,443 1,19,22,949

NOTE 27
OTHER EXPENSES
Survey Expenses   11,44,47,829 5,86,09,225
Base Map Crea�on & Satellite Image  30,97,772 
Digi�sa�on & Prin�ng Of Map   35,55,982 2,71,39,500
Store and Spares   94,202 87,716

Repairs To  - Building   75,715  2,64,030
  -   Machinery   2,95,835  2,67,703
  -   Others   1,44,339 5,15,889 2,07,862 7,39,595

Electricity    10,37,259 6,13,830
Insurance    40,807 53,840
Audit Fees    4,60,000 4,60,000
Legal and Professional Fees   97,70,095 61,44,895
Prin�ng, Sta�onery, Postage and Telephone Expenses  10,67,747 9,92,453
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  1,05,49,696 77,31,581
Rent, Rates and Taxes   44,47,499 49,11,666
Adver�sment & Business Promo�on Expenses  15,41,350 10,57,108
Computer & So�ware Expenses   4,75,094 3,22,716
Office Expenses    1,04,717 69,177
Interest and Penalty Expenses   - 2,23,826
Brokerage & Commi.   - 5,49,800
Bank Guarantee Charges   12,40,312 6,74,212
Other Expenses   75,14,025 16,47,687
Foreign Exchange Fluctua�on   - 1,13,766
    TOTAL 15,99,60,275 11,21,42,539
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28. Segment repor�ng

 The company is engaged in the business of providing Informa�on Technology So�ware services and GIS 
products. The company is therefore having one business segment, only.

29. Con�ngent Liabili�es

 a. Income Tax Matters – There is only one particular disputed demand in relation to A.Y. 2016-17 as 

disclosed above. The recovery of demand has been stayed and appeal is pending at CIT level. The 

said assessment was completed in haste and inconclusively by the A.O. u/s 143(3) without 

considering the submission placed. The CIT has already heard the matter and the demand is surely 

going to be deleted as invalid. So the management and tax advocates expect this matter to be 

resolved soon and will not have a material adverse effect on the company's financial position and 

results of operations.

  Originally, the tax demand was raised for ̀  2,08,74,300, but ̀  1,03,87,870 is adjusted from previous 

years refund and company has also paid an amount of ̀  7,50,000 against pending demand.

 b. A petition has been filed by the Shareholder against the Company in NCLT to restore their name in 

the Registers of Members, ideally matters relate to share transfer, Transmission, maintaining 

registers, etc. are dealt by RTA & depository  participants. Any grievances in this matter are to be 

directly addressed to the RTA, though the Company has been made party to the case. Our advocate 

for NCLT has confidently advised that when the matter will be heard by NCLT, Company would be 

removed from the list of defendant.

30.� Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the  Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development  Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2020 is  ̀  5,00,68,301 .

31.� Directors Remuneration:

 The Profit and Loss Account includes payments and provisions of remuneration to the Managing Director 

and Whole Time Directors as under:
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32. Costs of Materials consumed

 I Particulars of Materials consumed:

 II. Break up of Raw Material consumed:

33. In the opinion of Management, any of the assets other than items of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets and Non-Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of 

business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated, unless otherwise stated.

34. On periodical basis and as and when required, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets 

and found that there is no indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. Hence, no such 

impairment loss have been provided in the Financial Year 2019-20 (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

35. Defined Benefit Plans

 35.1 Risk exposure to defined benefit plans

  The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as:  investment risk, longevity risk 

and salary risk

  Investment risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated  using a discount 

rate which is  determine by reference to  market yields at the end of the reporting period  on Indian 

government securities; if the  return on plan asset is below this rate , it will create  a plan deficit.

  Interest risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be 

partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investment.

  Longevity risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the 

best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An 

increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

  Salary risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated reference to the future 

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase 

the plan's liability.

  The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the defined benefit obligation were 

carried out at March 31, 2020. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related 

current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Particulars 
FY 2019-2020 

(`) 

FY 2018-2019 

(`) 

Opening Stock  - 

Purchases 23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089 

Less: Closing stock  - - 

Total 23,57,97,966 21,39,01,089 

Particular 2019-2020 2018-2019 

 % Rupees % Rupees 

Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Indigenous 100 23,57,97,966 100 21,39,01,089 

Total 100 23,57,97,966 100 21,39,01,089 
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 35.2 Summary of Demographic Assumption

 35.2 Expenses recognized for defined benefit plan and movement of plan assets and liabilities 

(Gratuity)

  Following is the amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, 

movement in defined benefit liability (I.e. gratuity) and movement in plan assets

Particulars  Valuation Date  
March 31,  2020  March  31,  2019  

Mortality Rate (as % of IALM(2006-08) (Mod.) 
Ult. Mortality  

100%  100%  

Disability Rate (as % of above mortality rate)   0.00%  0.00%  
Attrition Rate  For service 4 years and 

below –  10.00 % p.a  
For service 5 years and 

above –  2.00 % p.a  

2.0% to10.0%  

Normal retirement age  58 Years  58 years  
Leave Encashment Rate during employment  0.00%  1.00%  
Leave Availment Rate  1.00%  1.00%  
 

Par�culars (in `)
For the year ended

March 31, 2020

(in `)
For the year ended

March 31, 2019

A. Components of expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 
Loss Account

 

Current service cost

 

Past service cost and (gain) loss from se�lements

 

Net interest expenses

 

 

6,69,887

 
 

1,65,955

 

 

5,24,357

 
                           

-

 

1,20,450

 

Total (a) (refer note 25)

 

8,35,842

 

6,44,807

 

B. Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

 

- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net  interest 
expense)

 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assump�ons 

 

-

 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from demographic adjustments

 

 
 
 

 
 

2,58,834

 
 

(2,54,176)

 

(3,71,102)

 

 
 
 

-

 
 

(54,562)

 
 

(36,575)

 

-

 

Total

 

(b)

 

(3,66,444)

 

(91,137)

 

C. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on 

 

- opening defined benefit obliga�on
 

- current service cost
 

- interest expenses
 

- Remeasurement (gains)/loss: 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
demographic assump�ons 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial 
assump�ons 

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from
 

changes in experience 
assump�ons

 - Liabili�es assumed for employee transferred  from other en�ty 
benefits paid

 

 

21,49,673
 

6,69,887
 

1,65,955
 
 
 

(3,71,102) 
 

        2,58,834 
 

       
(2,54,176)

 
 

        
(40,621)

 

 

16,16,003
 

5,24,357
 

1,20,450
 
 
 

- 

                  
(54,562) 

               (36,575)
 
 (20,000) 

Closing defined benefit obliga�on

 

(c)

 

25,78,450

 

21,49,673

 D Movements in the fair value of the plan assets

 
- Opening fair value of plan  assets

 
- Interest income

 
- Remeasurement (gains)/loss:

 

- Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)

 

- Contribu�on by employer

 

- Asset transferred in for employee transferred from other en�ty 
benefits paid

 

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

-

 
 

-

 

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

20,000

 
 

(20,000)

 

Closing fair value of plan assets

 

(d)

 

-

 

-
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36. Financial Instruments and  Risk Management

 Risk Management Framework

 The Company's risk management is governed by policies and approved by the board of directors. 

Company's identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the 

Company's operating units. The company has policies for overall risk management, as well as 

policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use 

of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments.

 The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company's risk 

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 

framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its 

oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 

management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

 36.1 Credit Risk

  Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a 

financial loss. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 

with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and 

also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis. The maximum exposure to credit 

risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Credit risk has always been 

managed by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 

continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants 

credit terms in the normal course of business.  On account of the adoption of Ind AS 109, the 

company uses ECL model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The company uses a 

provision matrix to compute the ECL allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. 

The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors 

and the company's experience for customers.

  The Company reviews trade receivables on periodic basis and charges to profit and loss 

account when management feels the amount will not be receivable in future. The Company 

also calculates the expected credit loss (ECL) for non-collection of receivables.

 36.2 Liquid Risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 

associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 

asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 

will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 

Company's reputation. Management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash 

equivalents vis-à-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and 

liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios 

are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.
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 36.3 Market Risk
  Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market factors. Market risk comprises three types of risks:
  a) Currency Risk
   The func�onal currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Company is exposed to currency 

risk on account of receivables in foreign currency. Company is exposed to currency risk on 
account of receivables in foreign currency.  

   I) Par�culars of unhedged foreign currency exposures at the repor�ng date

  Exposure to Liquid Risk:

  The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 

date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments 

and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

* The trade receivable men�oned above is non-current in nature so exchange rate prevailing at 
31/03/2020 is not considered as foreign exchange gain/ loss is not recognized on non-current 
receivables.

March 31,  2020  
Carrying 
Amount  

Contractual Cash Flow  

<1year  1-2 Year  3-5 Year  

More 
than 5 
Years  

Total

Financial 
Liabilities

 
      

Non Current 
Borrowings

 
6,75,34,404

 
-

 
3,80,42,846

 
2,94,91,558

 
-

 
6,75,34,404

Current 
Borrowings

 
10,97,99,673

 
10,97,99,673

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
10,97,99,673

Trade 
Payables

 

1,14,58,535

 

1,14,58,535

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

1,14,58,535
Current 
Finacial 
Liabilities

 

14,40,16,019

 

14,40,16,019

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

14,40,16,019
Total 33,28,08,631 26,52,74,227 3,80,42,846 2,94,91,558 - 33,28,08,631

March 31,  2019  
Carrying 
Amount  

Contractual Cash Flow  

<1year  1-2 Year  3-5 Year  

More 
than 5 
Years

Total

Financial 
Liabilities

 
     

Non Current 
Borrowings

 
4,39,00,145

 
-

 
1,52,73,987

 
2,86,26,158

 
- 4,39,00,145

Current 
Borrowings

 
12,99,53,206

 
12,99,53,206

 
-

 
-

 
- 12,99,53,206

Trade 
Payables

 

3,58,40,039

 

3,58,40,039

 

-

 

-

 

- 3,58,40,039
Current 
Finacial 
Liabilities 4,42,60,349 4,42,60,349 - - - 4,42,60,349
Total 25,39,53,739 21,00,53,594 1,52,73,987 2,86,26,158 - 25,39,53,739
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   II) Foreign Currency Risk Sensi�vity
    A change of 3% in foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax.

  b) Price Risk

   As of 31st March 2020, the company has nil exposure on security price risks.

 36.4 Fair value measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the measurement date under current market 
condi�ons. 

  The Company categorizes assets and liabili�es measured at fair value into one of three levels 
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described 
as follows:

  (a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or 
liabili�es. 

  (b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than 
quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability. 

  (c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflec�ng significant 
modifica�ons to observable related market data or Company's assump�ons about pricing 
by market par�cipants

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables considered to be 

the same as their values due to their short term nature.

-
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37. Related Party Transac�ons

 Following are the name and rela�onship of related par�es with which company have 
transac�ons/balances:

 Associate/Subsidiary/Related Company/Enterprise/Firms:
 - Karnava� Infrastructure Projects Ltd
 - Scanpress Ltd
 - Diyatec Pvt Ltd
 - Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt Ltd
 - Jyacad Solu�ons Pvt Ltd
 - Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd

Key Management Personnel along with their rela�ves having significant influence:

 a. Key Management Personnel
  - Ramesh Sojitra
  - Chirag Soni
  - Kan� Ladani

 b. Rela�ves of KMP
  - Minal Soni
  - Vishwas Sojitra
  - Leelavan� Sojitra
  - Vaacha Sojitra

37.1 Disclosures in respect of significant transac�ons with related par�es during the year:

  Transac�ons Year Ended  Year Ended 

   March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

 Remunera�on

 Ramesh K Sojitra   24,00,000 24,00,000

 Chirag Soni  21,00,000 18,00,000

 Salary

 Vishwas R Sojitra  5,04,000 4,20,000

 Vaacha Sojitra  2,91,760 -

 Professonal Fees

 Minal Soni  - 67,500

 Diya Tech Pvt Ltd  19,25,000 15,52,500

 Kan� Ladani  3,00,000 2,70,000

 Chirag Soni HUF  1,75,000 -

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 11,80,000 -

 Turnrest Resources Pvt. Ltd. 45,00,000 -

 Interest Paid 

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 2,83,742 11,74,248

 Turnrest Resources Pvt. Ltd. 9,19,300 33,61,216

 Receipt of Loan 

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd     6,36,75,250 11,27,95,093

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd.       52,00,375 1,35,56,822
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 Repayment of Loan 

 Turnest Resources Pvt Ltd    9,11,59,667 8,53,10,676

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd.    1,98,41,287 -

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd 1,50,17,380 -

 Disclosure of closing balances: 

 Amount Due to  

 Kan�lal V Ladani_Loan A/c 10,00,000 10,00,000

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd - 1,27,05,510

 Prop Corporate Mentors Pvt. Ltd. 2,55,367 1,46,40,912

 Ramesh K Sojitra   - 2,85,00,000

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd_Loan A/c 8,27,370 2,74,84,417

  Chirag Soni  3,930 14,748

 Amount Due From 

 Karnava� Infrastracture Projects Ltd 15,11,870 -

 Trade Payables 

 Diyatec Pvt Ltd  5,04,000 4,81,500

 Kan�lal V Ladani   15,842 1,18,044

 Chirag Soni Huf  1,57,500 -

 Turnrest Resources Pvt Ltd 6,06,775 -

38. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary, to make them 
comparable with those of current year. 

As per our report of even date 
For Jayamal Thakore & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For, Scanpoint Geoma�cs Limited

 Ramesh Sojitra Chirag Soni
 Managing Director Whole Time Director
 DIN : 00016149 DIN : 01684683

Mudit Singhal Kan�lal Ladani Shaili Mehta
(Partner) Director & CFO Company Secretary
M.No. : 187823 DIN :  00016171 M No. 42440

Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020 Ahmedabad, July 28, 2020
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